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.. Introductory .Section 



February 15, 2019 

Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 
Toms River School District 
County of Ocean, New Jersey 

Dear Board Members and constituents: 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOLS 

1144 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, NJ 08753 
(732) 505-5500 

The comprehensive annual financial report of the Toms River Regional School District for the year 
ended June 30, 2018 is hereby submitted. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and 
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management of the 
Board of Education ("Board"). To the best of ow· knowledge and belief, the data presented in this report 
is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial 
position of the govenunentaJ activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate 
remaining fund information at June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash 
flows, where applicable, for the year then ended. All disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain 
an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included. 

The CAFR is presented in four sections: introductory, financial, statistical, and single audit. The 
introductory section includes this transmittal letter (designed to complement Management's Discussion 
and Analysis and should be read in conjunction with it), the District' s organizational cha1t, a roster of 
officials, independent auditors and advisors. The financial section includes Management's Discussion 
and Analysis, basic financial statements, required supplementary information and supplementary 
infom1ation, as well as the auditors' report therein. The statistical section includes selected financial and 
demographic information, generally presented on a multi-year basis and is unaudited. The District is 
required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act 
Amendments of 1996, the Federal Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, "Single 
Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid Payments." lnfonnation related 
to this single audit, including the independent auditors' reports on internal control and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations and findings and questioned costs, is included in the single aud it section 
of this report. 



TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOLS 

1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES 

1144 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, NJ 08753 
(732) 505-5500 

The Toms River School District is an independent repo11ing entity within the criteria adopted by the GASB as 
established by Statement No. 14. All funds and the government-wide financial statements of the District are 
included in this report. The Toms River Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District's reporting 
entity. 

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels Pre-K through 12. These 
include regular, vocational and special education for ch ildren with special needs. The District's average daily 
enrol lment for 2017-2018 school year decreased by 203.4 students over the previous year's enrollment. The 
fo llowing details the changes in the student enroll ment of the District for the past five years. These figures are 
based upon average daily enrollment. 

Average Daily Enrollment 

Fiscal Year 
2013-14 
2014-15 
2015-16 
2016-17 
2017-18 (as submitted) 

Student Enrollment 
16,134.1 
15,783.8 
15,812.0 
15,602.8 
15,399.5 

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK 

#Students (+/-) 
-422.3 
-350.3 
+ 28.2 
-209.2 
-203.3 

Percent Change 
-0.0255% 
-0.0217% 

+0.0018% 
-0.0 132% 
-0.0 130% 

Local, state, and federal economic conditions continue to create a relatively unstable and uncertain economic 
environment, fo r all entities, including the school district. In October 2012, the community was devastated by 
Superstorm Sandy which caused significant damage throughout our regional community. Toms River 
Township lost 15%-20% of the ratable base due to the storm and our understanding is that over $500 million 
in ratables have yet to return to the tax rolls, although the ratable recovery process is ongoing. It is expected 
that the aftereffects of Superstorm Sandy will put a strain on tax revenues and services for years to come. 

The 2018-2019 School Budget was approved by the Board of Education in April 2018 and the budget as 
presented provides for a thorough and efficient education. The overall tax levy (general and debt service levy) 
increase with the 2018-19 budget was 2.4% or $3.8 million, although the tax increases for the average home 
in the four towns in the regional district ranged from (.2%) to 3.9%. It should be noted that given the 
Department of Education ' s allocation of taxes between the constituent municipalities in the regiona l district 
being based on equalized valuations, even smaller percentage changes in the largest ratable base (Toms River 
Townsh ip) can have a sign ificant impact on the tax allocation fo r all communities in the regional district. 
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TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOLS 

1144 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, NJ 08753 
(732) 505-5500 

After we finalized the 2018- 19 budget and the New Jersey Department of Education approved it through its 
Ocean County Office, changes in school aid allocations were made in arriving at a final State budget, which 
resulted in a $2.4 million reduction in school aid for our district. Especially given the timing of the notification 
of the reduction in school aid, our district covered that unanticipated, last-minute shortfall by increasing the 
use of surplus and maintenance reserve dollars to unsustainably high levels. The district submitted much 
substantiation in applying for restoration of the $2.4 mill ion in aid that was cut through an emergency aid 
application, which was denied by the NJ Department of Education in a letter dated October 26, 2018. 

With the approval of P.L 20 18, Chapter 67, the district expects to cumulatively lose from $70-$80 million in 
school aid (depending on the calculations presented by NJASBO, or the calculation presented by the Education 
Law Center) over the next 6 budget years, which wi ll decimate our school district and wi ll result in catastrophic 
cuts in staff, programs and services. The district continues to pursue all means of addressing the unjust 
allocation of school aid, inc luding through legislative channels and by the Board approving a resolution for 
ou r district to join with other districts, municipalities and ind ividuals to litigate based on the glaring and known 
material flaws in the school aid formula that continue to generate unjust allocations. 

The District continues to be concerned about the status of the economy and the fiscal health of the State of 
New Jersey. The State again delayed the payment of the final two State Aid payments for the year, totaling 
$6,608,87 1 as of June 30, 2018. Although the District wi ll continue to strive to find fiscal efficiencies in all 
aspects of our operations, we remain concerned about our levels of surplus and reserves, the impact of the 2% 
property tax cap, and most notably the impact of cun-ent and future allocations of State Aid. 

3. MAJOR JNITIA TIVES 

English/Language Arts: 
K-5 
During the 20 18-19 school year, staff members in kinderga11en through grade five are implementing a new 
writing program that was piloted and introduced in several grades during the 2017-18 school year. The writing 
curriculum, Write Now Right Now, is comprised of standards-aligned unit plans that provide comprehensive 
lessons and instructional resources to cover all major writing genres and prepare students to write effectively 
from text using textual evidence for support. Staff members were provided with professional development for 
this implementation during June 2018, as well did they have the opportunity to attend summer workshops and 
district sessions in early October. Kindergarten and grade one also implemented a consistent handwriting 
program for the first time, Handwriting Without Tears, which consists of a developmentally appropriate 
curriculum and related resources to support students through the primary grades. 

Additional ly, tiered interventions and support remain a major focus, with the expansion of school level 
intervention teams and training for effective literacy instruction. Professional development and consulting has 
become more personalized with support being offered at the building level in a variety of structures. 

3 



6-8 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOLS 

1144 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, NJ 08753 
(732) 505-5500 

Engl ish Language Arts at the intermediate level continues to be a blend of our independent reading/conferring 
initiative and whole class read ing and writing instruction, completely aligned to the NJSLS and outlined in our 
grade level curricula. Our 42 minute daily Academic Activity class is comprised of independent reading and 
conferring, as well as on-line, differentiated, informational text reading instruction using Achieve3000, both 
of wh ich provide opport1111ities for focused remediation for students in need. This year, we offered Basic Ski lls 
students the Boost Literacy Solution as part of our Achieive3000 subscription. Students' (exiles, or reading 
levels, are periodically assessed using Ach ieve's LevelSet feature, and classroom libraries, purchased with 
district funds, provide leveled reading materials. Teachers' novice conferring skills will require ongoing 
professional development for continued success. This year, we will continue to build libraries and train teachers 
in conferring. The Achieve3000 subscription wi ll be continued in 2018-19 and provided to all students 6-8. 

9-12 
English Language Arts at the secondary level is continuing to integrate independent reading, literature circles 
and core literary texts (with some conferencing) as our students grow as readers and writers; classroom libraries 
in grades 9-12 are expanding to accommodate this research-supported initiative. Our curricu lum continues to 
be revised to support the New Jersey Student Learning Standards (NJSLS) in English Language Arts. Student 
reading levels are assessed through the Independent Reading Level Assessment (IRLA) programs in grades I 0 
and I I. In 2018, a basic skills read ing class was started at grade 9 to support students who would benefit from 
extra support in reading. 

Mathematics: 
K - 5 
This year we are implementing a new mathematics program entitled Ready Mathematics. Bundled within this 
implementation is the product iReady, which is an adaptive assessment tool that provides personalized learning 
modules that will encourage growth for learners achieving at all levels. This product was one of two 
comprehensive pilots undertaken during the 2017- 18 school year and was chosen due to its al ignment with the 
NJSLS and its capacity for differentiation. 

6 - 8 
The Academic Activity period provided opportunities to introduce lessons employing "productive struggle." 
This cri tical problem solving skill is strongly emphasized in the NJSLS and the NGSS (Next Generation 
Science Standards.) Teachers analyzed data to determine curriculum weaknesses and strengths and modified 
lessons accordingly. Mathematics Basic Skills was altered this year to provide fu ll period support during the 
Academic Activity marking period. Basic Skills Math instruction was supported with " i-Ready." This online, 
personalized learning tool identifies student ski ll deficiencies and provides targeted instruction using one-to­
one conferencing and mini, small group instruction to grow these skills. " i-Ready" will be purchased for 
continued implementation in the 20 18-2019 school year. 
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9 - 12 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOLS 

1144 Hooper Avenue, Toms Rjver, NJ 08753 
(732) 505-5500 

The curriculum has been revised to support the New· Jersey Student Learning Standards in Mathematics. 
Curriculum committees wi ll meet over the summer to continue the review process and align our curriculum 
with the Frameworks provided by the New Jersey Department of Education. The final piece of our new 
mathematics series will be introduced in the high school this year with the purchase of new Precalculus texts. 

In preparation for the NJDOE mandate to have every student take a computer science course by 2022, the 
district will pilot programs in advanced coding, currently offered through the math department, and cross­
curricular applications, working with other depa1tments. 

Science: 
K-5 
Science unit and lesson expansion work that took place during the summer of 2018 is being rolled out during 
the 2018-1 9 school year, with a focus on getting to the core of the NGSS and providing students with 
opportunities to demonstrate mastery through various embedded assessment options. 

6 - 8 
This year we are excited to continue to offer students an exciting, engineering-focused, project-based learning 
oppo1tunity in our Academic Activity period. During this ten-week course, students will work in groups to 
complete mu ltiple hands-on tasks with a focus on innovation, problem solving, and teamwork. Application of 
scientific, mathematic, and engineering principals will be the main focus of the course, supplemented with 
practice in both science-based research and writing. This course has been a favorite with students in the past, 
and we look forward to having many more fun and exciting learning experiences during the 2018-2019 school 
year! Consumable items and materials have been purchased to allow students to build, test, construct, and 
invent their way through these interesting and engaging projects. 

In the regular Science academic course, once again this year, our students will be encouraged to explore the 
relevant curricular topics via a hands-on, inquiry based approach that focuses on learner-driven projects and 
productive struggle. Consumable materials and suppl ies are also necessary on a continuous basis to provide 
teachers and students with what is needed to participate in these activities and experiments. Students will also 
focus on improvement of ELA skills, most notably read ing and interpreting informational text and constructing 
well-written essays that cite evidence to support their claims and opinions. Students wi II also utilize the 
Achieve3000 program in Science class regularly to provide individualized reading material that is targeted to 
each student's specific !exile level. 

9 - 12 
We will continue to provide an inquiry based curricu lum that is aligned with the Next Generation Science 
Standards (NGSS). We will also continue infusing technology to support instruction wherever possible and 
maximize opportunities for students to engage in creative and critical thinking. Summer 2019 Professional 
Development is planned for teachers to provide assistance as NGSS-aligned and adjusted curricula are rolled 
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TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOLS 

1144 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, NJ 08753 
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out. We will also review and revise course offerings in support of the district 's STEAM academy. Additional 
expansion of the STEAM course offerings is planned. Replacement of the non-NGSS aligned Physical Science 
course with Forensic Science is in the discussion phase. We are also considering modification of the existing 
Marine l course (currently being offered at the offsite Poseidon Lab) so that Marine I can be satisfactorily 
adapted to the STEAM academy setting. The use of technology in the classroom, especially at the AP Physics 
level, is continuing to grow. 

Social Studies: 
K-5 
A curriculum team representing all grade levels will continue to collaborate during the school year to create 
an additional project based unit. Social Studies curriculum revision will begin in January 2019. 

6-8 
The 6-8 Social Studies program wi ll work with the Achieve 3000 platform along with ELA (Language Arts) 
and Science teachers. The goal is the further development of key reading ski ll s while developing disciplinary 
knowledge and vocabulary. The program will continuously assess students reading levels and automatically 
differentiate instruction. The 6-8 teachers will also emphasize curriculum delivered in student-centered lessons 
that engage all students in the content. Research simulation tasks will continue to be implemented to develop 
skills for PARCC. 

9-12 
The 9-12 Social Studies program will continue work with student-centered curriculum delivery that engage 
students in the content. LA TIC (learner active, technology-in fused classroom) training network are being 
increasingly implemented in the social stud ies classrooms. AP Government curriculum has been revised to 
match the shift in the exam focus for May of 2019. Materials are being utilized to meet the needs of students 
taking the classes. Continued work is taking place to ensure the New Jersey Student Leaming Standards are 
being met in our curriculum and its del ivery. 

Visual and Performing Arts: 
K-12 
In anticipation of and preparation for revised Arts NJ Student Learn ing Standards next year, curriculum and 
course offerings are being reviewed. Increased integration of the arts across the curricu lum remains a focus as 
does the integration of content knowledge in Arts classes. 

6-8 
At the Intermediate level, a new schedule is being proposed that wi ll require changes to electives including 
visual and performing arts, mak ing them more cross curricular and authentic. 

6 



9-12 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOLS 

1144 Hooper Avenue, Toms River, NJ 08753 
(732) 505-5500 

The Ans Academy is in its second year at Toms River High School North. New courses including Keyboarding 
I & 2 and Dance I & 2 have been created, requiring the purchase of suppo1t materials. Learning spaces are 
being upgraded and modified to accommodate academy classes. The Digital Arts component has required and 
wi ll require some upgrades to technology, and a new or modified course in Mixed Reality/3 D Design has been 
proposed. 

Health and Physical Education: 
K-5 
During the 20 l 8- l 9SY the physical education teachers will place an increased focus on social-emotional 
learning and support their colleagues with a new implementation provided by Sanford Harmony at the K-5 
level. 

6 - 12 district curriculum and common quanerly assessments will be reviewed and adjusted to assure alignment 
to the NJSLS. The high school Option II program will once again be offered as well as reviewed and refined. 
The Dance Academy at Toms River High School North is in the second year of development. A new course 
for year two has been created. The dance room continues to be upgraded and modified to meet curricular needs. 
Training and support materials will be provided on an ongoing basis as we continue to implement a wellness 
and fitness based health and physical education program in grades 6- 12. We wi ll continue to upgrade outdated 
books and materials for classroom use in health. 

World Languages and ESL: 
K-12 
Elementary World Language teachers worked to revise curriculum documents (including pacing guides) during 
the 2018-19 school year. A focus will fa ll on the development of a practical curriculum to support grades K-
2. 

Curriculum committees in the 9-12 World Language Department will work on revising and writing new 
curriculum focusing on developing language proficiency through a communicative approach, while integrating 
culture and cross-curricular study. Teachers will use authentic materials and technology to provide students 
with opportunities to engage in interpersonal, presentational, and interpretive modes of communication. 
Specific areas of focus for curriculum development will be Spanish 4/5 A, Spanish 4/5 B, and Heritage I and 
2. Teachers in these areas will also be researching authentic materials in the form of supplemental books 
and/or textbooks to support the development of new curriculum. Common quarterly assessments and rubrics 
in all areas wil l be reviewed and modified to ensure that they are aligned to the curriculum and standards. 

World Language teachers 6-8 are reviewing the grade 6 and 7 curriculums, which focus on fables and legends, 
to discuss the possibility of rewriting the existing curriculum so that it supports a communicative approach, 
consistent with the K-5 and 9-12 program. This year, Pinnacle students are piloting a full year course of 
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TOMS R IVER REGIONAL SCHOOLS 
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Spanish I, with intention of having these students enter ninth grade enrolled in a Spanish 2 course and 
continuing language study for four years of high school. 

The ESL population at the secondary level has been steadily growing. Many students are entering the district 
at the beginner level, and/or with limited education in their home language. Chromebooks have been a great 
resource for students to access translation and video content for language supports. Title 111 funding will be 
used to continue to build technology inventory so that students have consistent access tl1roughout the day. 
Workshops will be offered to classroom teachers who work with ELLS to provide strategies for how to support 
ELLs in the content areas. 

Technology: 
K-1 2 
As more textbook publishers expand their digital offerings, the district continues to invest in technology tools, 
platforms, and infrastructure improvements to increase student ach ievement, improve communication and 
productivity, and develop career and college-ready skills. These include the first year of Performance Matters, 
a student achievement data platform; expansion of the use of Genesis, a student information system (grades, 
attendance, demographics) and an HR and staff evaluation platform; subscriptions to student support 
technology like Achieve3000, iReady, Read 180; and increasingly digital resources associated with all content 
areas to augment paper texts. 

Engineering design practices, open-ended problem solving, and a maker mindset required for students to 
master the newer Technology, Career, and Next Generation Science Standards are being fu1ther infused in 
classroom instruction. Technology is being used increasingly to help students reach beyond the four walls of 
our classrooms and into local and global collaborative efforts. 

In anticipation of the arrival of new standards from the NJ DOE, curriculum updates and revisions will be 
completed in the 20 19-2020 school year. Training and materials will be provided on an ongoing basis as new 
technologies emerge and existing technologies further meet the instructional needs of our students. 

Computer lifespans have been calculated into the budget. For example, our first generation Chromebooks will 
reach the end of their suppo1ted lifespan at the end of this year. In advance of the 2022 NJDOE mandate to 
have every high school student take a computer science course, many desktop labs will continue to require 
software and hardware updates. 

21st Century Life Skills 
6-12 
At the Intermediate level, a new schedule is being proposed that wi ll require changes to electives including 
cooking, sewing, and CTE, making them more cross curricular and authentic. 

8 
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High School elective 21st Century Life Skills courses are in the areas of business, engineering and design and 
fashion. Toms River Schools is planning to increase Option 11 (alternative pathways to graduation) 
opportunities next year, including dual enrollment, internships, and online learning. The district is also 
expanding its three Career Academies for their 3rd year: STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Art and 
Math); Business and Finance; and Arts (Visual, Performing and Digital). Budgetary considerations include 
fac ilities, equipment, materials, personnel (recruitment and hiring), professional development, and curriculum 
writing both to strengthen existing course offerings and to support needed new programs. 
Targeted teacher training and curriculum revision continued through the summer of 2018 and into the school 
year. Academy teacher tra ining focuses on the creation of Authentic Learn ing Units. These units embed real­
world problem-solving, related to the Career Academy strand. It also promotes interdisciplinary content and 
student-led learn ing. The district's upgraded technology is an integral part of this initiative to foster student 
success and their preparation for careers and college. 

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS 

Management is responsible for establ ish ing and maintaining an internal control environment designed to 
ensure that the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate 
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control environment is designed to provide 
reasonable, but not abso lute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance 
recognizes that: (I) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation 
of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management. 

As a recipient of federa l and state financial assistance, the District is also responsible for ensuring that an 
adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related 
to those programs. The District is also charged with the responsibility of periodic evaluation of this internal 
control structure. 

As pa11 of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy of the internal 
control structure, including that po11ion related to federal awards and state financial assistance programs, as 
well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations. 

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS 

In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these 
budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual appropriated budget 
approved by the voters of the District. Annua l appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the 
special revenue fund and the debt service fund. Project-length budgets that are approved for capital 
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improvements are accounted for in the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended fo r the fiscal 
year is reflected in the financial section. 

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item basis. 
Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund balance in the 
subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported assigned fund balance at June 30, 2018. 

6. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS 

The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted accounting principles, as promulgated by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on 
the basis of funds and government-wide financial statements. These funds and the government-wide financial 
statements are explained in "Notes to the Financial Statement," Note I. 

7. FINANCIAL INFORMATION AT FISCAL YEAR-END 

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the 
District continues to meet its responsibi lity to ensure sound financial management. 

8. OTHER INFORMATION 

Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent certified publ ic accountants or 
registered municipal accountants. In addition to meeting the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments 
of 1996 and the related Federal Uniform Guidance and State Treasury Circular Letter 15-08 0MB, the aud itor's 
report includes financia l statements and combines individual fund statements and schedules to ensure clear 
financial reporting. The auditors' reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single audit 
section of this report. 

Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting Award - the district received the Certificate of Excellence 
in Financial Reporting Award from the Association of School Business Officials International for the June 30, 
2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (the fourth year in row the district has ach ieved this award). 
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WISS 
A Partner to Grow With 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Honorable President and Members 
of the Board of Education 

Toms River Regional School District 
Toms River, New Jersey 
County of Ocean 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Toms River Regional School 
District, County of Ocean, New Jersey (the "District"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements 
as listed in the table of contents. 

Ma11ageme11t's Responsibility for the Financial Stateme11ts 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation 
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; audit 
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; 
and the standards appl icable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards and requirements require that we plan and 
perform the aud it to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of 
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District's preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effoctiveness of the District's internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overal l presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions. 

14 P,]nn Plaza. Suite 1010 
New York. NY 10122 

212.594 8155 

354 Eisenhower Parkway, Suite 1850 
Livingston. NJ 07039 

973.994.9400 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the 
aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the District as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in 
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows, thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Change in Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note l .R. to the basic financial statements, during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the 
District adopted new accounting guidance, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which represents a 
change in accounting principle. As discussed in Note 23 to the basic financial statements, as of July l, 2017, 
the District's net position was restated to reflect the impact of the change in accounting principle. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management's discussion 
and analysis, schedule of funding progress - Post Employment Healthcare Benefit Plan, schedule of employer 
contributions - Post Employment Healthcare Benefit Plan, schedule of the District's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability-PERS, schedule of District pension contributions-PERS, schedule of the State's proportionate 
share of the net pension liability associated with the District-TPAF, schedule of the State's proportionate share of 
the net OPEB liability associated with the District and changes in the total OPEB liability and related ratios-PERS 
and TPAF, schedule of the changes in net OPEB liability-District plan, schedule of District OPEB contributions­
District Plan, and budgetary comparison information as identified in the table of contents be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. 
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary infonnation, such as 
the combining and individual fund financial statements, long-tenn debt schedules and the schedules of 
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements 
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for 
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, respectively, and the other infonnation, such as the 
introductory and statistical section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required 
part of the basic financial statements. 
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The combining and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the schedules of 
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance 
with auditing standards 'generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining 
and individual fund financial statements, long-term debt schedules and the schedules of expenditures of 
federal awards and state financial assistance are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 15, 2019 
on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. 
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the District's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an 
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal 
control over financial reporting compliance. 

Livingston, New Jersey 
February 15, 2019 

Scott A. Clelland 
Licensed Public School Accountant 

No. 1049 

/JI,,:.,., "I" ~ 
WISS & COMPANY, LLP 
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Required Supplementary Information - Part I 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 



Toms River Regional School District 
Toms River, N.ew Jersey 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Year ended June 30, 2018 

The discussion and analysis of the Toms River Regional School District's (the "District") financial 
perfonnance provides an overall review of the District's financial activities for the year ended June 
30, 2018. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District's financial perfonnance 
as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial statements, notes and additional 
infonnation in the transmittal letter to enhance their understanding of the District's financial 
perfonnance. 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary 
Infonnation specified in the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) Statement No. 34 
- Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local 
Governments. Certain comparative infonnation between the current year and the prior year is 
presented in the MD&A. 

Financial Highlights 

Key financial highlights for fiscal year 2018 are as follows: 

• Total net position of the governmental activities and business-type activities is $8,690,745 at June 30, 
2018. It is comprised of both current and capital assets and deferred outflows of resources less 
deferred inflow of resources and current and outstanding long-tenn liabilities (Schedule A-1 ). 

• The District transferred unassigned fund balance in June of 2018 into the restricted reserve for 
maintenance in the amount of $2,500,000. 

• The District issued school energy savings obligations refunding bonds, series 2017 in the amount of 
$16,710,000. 

• The District implemented GASB Statement No. 75 (GASB 75), Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, during the 2018 fiscal year resulting in the recording of 
revenue and expense in the amount of$35,164,015 related to post-employment health benefits paid by the 
state on behalf of The Ditrict. 
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Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Rep_ort (CAFR) 

This annual report consists of a series of basic financial statements and notes to those statements. 
These statements are organized so the reader can understand the Toms River Regional School District 
as a financial whole, an entire operating entity. The statements then proceed to offer an increasingly 
detailed look at specific financial activities. This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an 
introduction to the District's basic financial statements. The three components of the District's basic 
financial statements are: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 
3) notes to the basic financial statements. The CAFR also contains required and other supplementary 
information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Reporting the School District as a Whole 

Government-wide Statements 

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of 
the entire School district and are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District's 
finances, in a manner similar to private-sector business. 

These statements include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of 
resources using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-sector 
businesses. This basis of accounting takes into consideration all of the current year's revenues and 
expenses regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the District's net position and changes in net position. The change in net 
position is important because it informs the reader that, for the School District as a whole, the 
financial position of the School District has improved or worsened. The causes of the change may be 
the result of many factors, some financial and some not. Non-financial factors include the District's 
property tax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue growth, facility conditions, and 
required educational programs to cite just a few. In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement 
of Activities, the District is divided into two distinct types of activities: 

• Governmental activities - All of the District's programs and services are reported here 
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil 
transportation and extracurricular activities. 

• Business-type activities - Programs reported here are used to account for operations that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of 
the District is that the costs of providing goods and services be financed through user charges. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 31 and 32 of this report. 

Reporting the District's Funds 

Fund Financial Statements 

Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the District's funds. The District, like other 
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance­
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the District can be divided into three categories: 
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 
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Governmental Funds 

The District's activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into 
and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end available for spending in the future years. 
These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which 
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental 
fund statements provide a detailed, short-term view of the School District's general government 
operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the reader 
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to 
finance educational programs. The relationship (or differences) that arise between governmental 
activities (as reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds are reconciled in the financial statements. 

The District maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balance for the general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund, and 
debt service fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. 

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund, special revenue fund, and debt 
service fund. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided as required supplementary 
information for the general, and special revenue funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 33 through 35 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds 

The District maintains a proprietary fund type in the form of five enterprise funds. The enterprise 
funds are used to report business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The 
District uses enterprise funds to account for the operations of its food service program, corporate 
center, day care center, and two athletic complexes which are also considered to be major funds of 
the District. 

The basic enterprise funds financial statements can be found on pages 36 through 38 of this report. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside of the 
governmental entity. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements 
because the resources of those funds are not available to support the District's own programs. The 
District utilizes a long established unemployment compensation trust fund to account for 
contributions from the District and employees to reimburse the State of New Jersey for the cost of 
approved unemployment compensation claims. 

The District uses separate and distinct agency funds to account for resources held for student activity 
groups and class funds as well as for payroll related liabilities. The basic fiduciary fund financial 
statements can be found on pages 39 and 40 of this report. 
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Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on 
pages 41 to 86 of this report. 

The School District as a Whole 

The Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the District as a whole. Net position may serve over 
time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. 

The District's financial position is the product of varied financial transactions including the net results of 
activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the 
depreciation of capital assets. 

The following table provides a summary of the District's net position at June 30, 2018 and 2017: 

Toms River Regional School District 
Net Position 

June 30, 

2018 2017 
Business- Business-

Governmental type Governmental type 
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total 

Assets: 
Current and other assets $41,619,020 $ 2,8575, 728 $44,007,258 $21,712,275 $2,906,367 $ 24,618,642 
Capital assets, net 15211171168 819971956 16111151124 15516381797 818l01878 16414491675 

Total assets 193,248,698 11,873,684 205,122,382 177,351,072 11,717,245 189 ,068,3 17 

Deferred outflows of resources: 
Deferred loss on refunding of debt 2,515,899 2,515,899 2,871,087 2,871,087 
Pension deferrals 2518581024 2518581024 3619391417 3619391417 
Total deferred outflows of resources 28,373,923 28,373,923 39,810,504 39,810,504 

Liabilities: 

Current liabilities 31,534,834 391,039 31,925,873 31,379,748 217,858 31,597,606 
Net pension liability 90,355,186 90,355,186 120,038,158 120,038,158 
Long-term liabilities 8010921371 881167 8011801538 6319881366 1301127 6411181493 

Total liabilities 201,982,391 479,206 202,461,597 215,406,272 347,985 215,754,257 

Deferred inflow of resources: 
Pension deferrals 2213431963 2213431963 115731639 115731639 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital assets 99,813,914 8,997,956 I 08,811,870 100,138,595 8,810,878 I 08,949,473 
Restricted for excess surplt.ts-current year 590,534 590,534 1,573,524 1,573,524 
Restricted for excess surplus-prior year 1,573,524 1,573,524 159,120 159,120 
Restricted for capital reserve 5,206,098 5,206,098 5,847,517 5,847,517 
Restricted for maintenance reserve 7,196,820 7,196,820 6,687,720 6,687,720 
Restricted for emergency reserve 709,865 709,865 707,415 707,415 
Restricted for capital projects 143,314 143,314 
Unrestricted (deficit) {11719371802} 213961522 ( 1 I 515411280) (11419321226} 215581382 (11213731844) 

Total net position $ (21703!733) $1113941478 $ 8!6901745 $181,665 $1113692260 $ 11 15501925 
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Unrestricted deficit increased $7,354,482 relating to governmental activities as compared to the prior 
year, mainly as a result of increases in current year expenses and liabil~ties. 

The largest portion of the District's net position is its net investment in capital assets (e.g., land and 
land improvements, buildings and building improvements and machinery and equipment) less any 
related debt (general obligation bonds, capital leases and notes payable) used to acquire those assets 
that are still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to students; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the District's net 
investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources 
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves 
cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Restricted net position increased $444,869 mainly due to an increase to the maintenance reserve in 
the amount of$509,100 offset by the decrease in the capital reserve. 

Current and other assets increased mainly due to increases to restricted cash for Energy Savings 
Obligation Refunding Bonds. 

Capital assets, net decreased as current year depreciation expense and disposals and transfers 
exceeded current year capital asset additions. 

Long-term liabilities increased mainly due to the increase in bonds payable due to the new energy 
savings obligation bond, as well as the other post-employment retirement benefits liability, which is 
the result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 75. 

The net pension liability recorded as of June 30, 2018 is the result of the District following GASB 
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and GASB Statement No. 71, 
Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - an amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 68 whereby the unfunded net pension liability continues to grow as the State of 
New Jersey continues to under-fund the pension system. 
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Government-wide activities. The key elements of the District's changes in net position for the years 
ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 are as follows: 

Toms River Regional School District 
Changes in Net Position 
Year ended June 30, 

2018 2017 

Governmental Business-type 
Total 

Governmental Business-type 
Total 

Activities Activities Activities Activities 

Revenues: 

Program Revenues: 

Charges for services $ 1,401,745 $ 4,636,184 $ 6,037,929 $ 1,524,208 $ 4,602,364 $ 6,126.ST. 

Operating grants and 

contributions 7,889,330 2.217.811 10,107,141 7,941,100 2,311,619 10.252,71~ 

Capital grants and 

contributions 241,092 241,092 78.082 78.0S: 

General Revenues: 
Property Taxes 157,529,469 157,529,469 150,609,021 150,609,021 

Federal and state aid not 

restricted to specific 

purposes 168,480,782 168,480,782 138,865,669 138,865,66~ 

Earning on Investments 161,918 955 162,873 28,209 975 29,J8t 

Miscellaneous 1,537,832 1.537,832 1,065,489 1,065,48~ 

Total Revenues 337,242,168 6,854,950 344,097,118 300,111.778 6,914,958 307,026,73( 

Expenses: 
Instruction and support 

services 337,238,325 6,721,452 343,959,777 310,821,044 6,605,479 317,426.5~ 

Special schools 64,173 64,173 65,624 65,62' 

Cost of issuance 121,402 121,402 35,641 35,641 

Interest on long-term debt 2.819.562 2,819,562 1,590,563 1,590,56" 

Total expenses 340,243,462 6,721.452 346,964,914 312.S 12,872 6,605,479 319,118,351 

Change in net position before 

transfers, special Items, and 

extraordinary Item (3,001,294) 133,498 (2,867,796) (12,401,094) 309,479 (12,091.61! 

Transfers 108,280 (108,280) 112,280 (112,280) 

Special item 5,000,000 5,000,00( 

Extraordinary item 7,616 7,616 365.782 365,78: 

Change in Net Position (2,885,398) 25,218 (2.860,180) (6,923,032) 197,199 (6,725,83" 

Net Position-beginning 181,665 11,369,260 11,550,925 7.104.697 tt,172,061 18,276,751 

Net Position-ending $ (2.703,7332 $ 11.394.478 $ 8,690,745 $ 181,665 s 11.369,260 $ 11,550,92! 
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Tax levy increased due to the increase in the taxable ratables and the tax rate. 

Federal and State aid not restricted to specific purposes increased as a result of the implementation of 
GASB 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which 
required the District to record approximately $26.3 million in revenues, which were contributions on­
behalf of the District by the State for post-employment benefits. This was offset by a decrease in the on­
behalf TPAF pension, disability, and medical contributions required under GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 
71. 

Instruction and support services expenses increased as a result of the District implementing new 
curriculums and as a result, there was an increase in various instruction line items, such as general 
supplies and salaries. In addition, approximately $26.3 million in expenditures were reported for 
contributions made on-behalf of the District by the State for post-employment benefits due to the 
implementation of GASB 75. This was offset by a decrease in the on-behalf TPAF pension, disability, 
and medical contributions required under GASB Statement Nos. 68 and 71. 

Interest on long-term debt has increased from the prior year as a result of increased overall debt, therefore, 
the related interest has increased. 

The special item in the prior year was related to the cancellation of the Community Disaster Loan 
liability, therefore, this was not applicable in the current year. 

The extraordinary item is restitution the District received relating to a prior year court order. 

Governmental Activities 

The unique nature of property taxes in New Jersey creates the legal requirements to annually seek voter 
approval for District operations. Property taxes made up approximately 51 percent of revenues for 
governmental activities in the Toms River Regional School District for fiscal year 2018. Federal, state, 
and local grants and aid accounted for another 48 percent of revenue. The balance of revenues generated 
from tuition and transportation revenue, investment income and other miscellaneous unrestricted sources 
comprised approximately 1 percent of the total governmental revenues. 

The total cost of all programs and services was $313,899,439. Instruction comprised 99 percent of 
District expenses. Instructional expenses include activities directly dealing with the teaching of pupils 
and the interaction between teacher and student, including extracurricular activities. It is important to note 
that additional instructional costs are included with support services, which is in conformity with New 
Jersey Budget Guidelines. 

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants 
offsetting those services. 

Business-Type Activities 

Revenues for the District's business-type activities were comprised of charges for services, day care 
tuition, ticket sales, rental income, and federal and state. reimbursements. Charges for services comprised 
approximately 68 percent of total revenue. This represents revenue recognized in the amount of 
$2,006,216, or 43 percent, for amounts paid by patrons for daily food service. Day care tuition revenue 
was $749,195, or 16 percent, of operating revenue and represents payments for daycare tuition. Rental 
income for the Corporate Center's rental agreements was $933,800, or 20 percent, of operating revenue 
that was recognized from renting office suites at the property located at 1144 Hooper Avenue, Toms 
River, N.J. The Bennett Complex and RWJ Barnabas Health Arena recognized $410,492 and $536,481, 
respectively, or 9 and 12 percent of total operating revenue for various events and activities at the 
respective complexes. Additionally, federal and state reimbursements for meals, including payments for 
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free and reduced-priced lunch and breakfast and donated commodities amounted to $2,217,811 in non­
operating revenue. 

Financial Analysis of the District's Funds 

Governmental Funds 

All governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. The focus 
of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District's financing 
requirements. 

General Fund The general fund is the main operating fund of the District. At the end of the current 
fiscal year, the total fund balance was $18,424,746, including funds restricted for capital, 
maintenance and emergency reserves in the amount of $13,112,783. $590,534 has been generated in 
current year excess surplus. $1,573,524 of prior year excess surplus has been designated for 
subsequent year's expenditures. The remaining amount of $226,476 represents the balance designated 
for subsequent year's expenditures and $1,157,955 has been assigned as additional fund balance 
designated for subsequent year's expenditures as the result of the 2018-19 state aid reduction. 
$3,003,551 was designated for encumbrances offset by a general fund unassigned deficit of 
$2,921,429 (unassigned fund balance netted with the delayed state aid payments) resulting in the 
$1,763,474 balance assigned to other purposes. 

Special Revenue Fund The special revenue fund is used to track the proceeds of specific revenue 
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes, other than debt service 
or capital projects. Revenue and expenditures for the current fiscal year increased by $115,240 
attributable mostly to an increase in federal and local grants expended. IDEA continues to be the 
largest grant in the special revenue fund, with expenditures in the current fiscal year of $3,793,271. 

Capital Projects Fund. The District uses the capital projects fund to account for financial resources to 
be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital projects (other than those financed by 
proprietary funds and trust funds). During the current fiscal year, the District issued $16,710,000 in 
ESIP refunding bonds and expended $685,870 for architectural and engineering services. 

Debt Service Fund. The debt service fund accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for 
principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds. The fund balance 
in the debt service fund is $84,167, which is attributable to the funds generated as result of prior years 
refundings of debt. 

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this 
report, the District continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The schedule 
below presents a summary of the revenues of the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Debt 
Service Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the amount and percentage of increases and 
decreases in relation to prior year revenues. 
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Increase Percent of 
Percent (Decrease) Increase 

Revenues Amount of Total from 2017 (Decrease) 

Local sources $ 160,918,784 59.9% $ 7,331,383 4.8% 
State sources 100,499,530 37.4 4,173,396 4.3 
Federal sources 7,254,486 2.7 (43,391) (0.6) 
Total $ 268,672,800 100.0% $ 11,461,388 8.5% 

Local sources increased primarily relating to the increase in the tax levy. In the prior year, the 
District had a reduction in tax ratables that resulted from Super Storm Sandy, but as the District 
recovered from these losses, the tax levy increased. 

State sources increased due mainly to the increase in the on-behalf pension, disability, and medical 
contributions that were made by the State in fiscal year 2018. 

Federal sources in the current year remained comparable to the prior year. 

The following schedule represents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund, and debt service 
fund expenditures for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, and the amount and percentage of 
increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts. 

Increase Percent of 
Percent (Decrease) Increase 

Expenditures Amount of Total from2017 (Decrease) 

Current expenditures: 
Instruction $ 98,261,574 36.4% $524,083 0.1 % 
Support 

services 158,871,248 58.8 9,706,948 6.5 
Special schools 31,795 0.0 (481) (1.5) 
Capital outlay 4,619,545 1.7 595,007 14.8 
Debt service: 

Principal 6,812,156 2.5 2,139,322 45.8 
Interest 126862469 0.6 (602370) 16.6 

Total $270z282z487 100.0% $.1229042509 4.76% 

Current expenditures reflect an overall increase attributable to normal operational increases in the 
areas of salaries, health benefits, textbooks and supplies, as the District engaged in various 
curriculum changes and improvements during the year. Interest expenditures were increased due to 
additional debt in the current year and prior year refundings which delay payments which came due 
in the current year. 

General Fund Budgeting Highlights 

The District's budget is prepared according to New Jersey statutes. The most significant budgeted 
fund is the General Fund. During the fiscal year, there were several differences between the original 
budget and the final amended budget as a result of transfers being applied to certain line items. These 
transfers were made between line items as part of the normal process as permitted by State guidelines. 
Readers should refer to Section C of the financial report for comparisons between actual and budgeted 
amounts. None of these transfers were significant. 
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Described below are explanations for variations in revenues and expenditures for certain lines where the 
modified budgeted amounts differ from the actual by significant amounts. All other fluctuations were 
considered immaterial and no explanations were deemed required. 

Revenues 

• Actual tuition from other LEAs within the state was in excess of the modified budget by 
$627,656 or 147% as a result of the District budgeting conservatively for homeless tuition as 
this amount varies widely from year to year. 

• Actual miscellaneous revenue was in excess of the modified budget by $629,020 or 153% as a 
result of significantly increased amount of general and payroll account interest earned than 
anticipated in addition to a larger amount of E-rate reimbursements than what was budgeted. 

• Actual extraordinary aid was in excess of the modified budget by $725,963 or 97% as a result 
of the fact that the final award amount is calculated by the State of New Jersey and is not 
required to be budgeted for. 

Capital Assets 

At the end of the fiscal year 2018, the District had $161,115,124 invested in land, land improvements, 
building and building improvements and machinery and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation. 
The following presents a comparison of capital assets, net of depreciation, held at June 30, 2018 and 
2017: 

Land 
Land improvements 
Building and building 

improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Total 

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) 
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 
2018 2017 2018 2017 

$ 5,368,923 $ 5,368,923 $ 1,421,600 $ 1,421,600 
4,982,515 5,936,141 281,501 117,853 

135,011,995 
6,753,735 

$152, 117, 168 

139,468,274 
4,865,459 

$155,638,797 

6,891,706 
403,149 

$8,997,956 

6,872,582 
398,843 

$8,810,878 

For more detailed information, please refer to Note 4 to the basic financial statements. 

Debt Administration and Long-Term Liabilities 

At June 30, 2018, the District had $178,233,519 of outstanding debt and other long-term liabilities, of, 
which $7,775,962 was classified as the current portion. 
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At June 30, 2018 and 2017, the District's long-term liabilities consisted of: 

2018 

Bonds payable 
Other post-employment benefits payable 
Unamortized premium on bonds 
Notes payable 
Deferred pension obligation 
Capital leases payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Net pension liability 
Total long-term liabilities 

$61,075,000 
3,231,183 
2,684,415 

914,170 
776,417 

6,855,568 
12,331,580 
90,355,186 

$178,223,519 

2017 

$49,080,000 
3,718,675 
1,554,395 
1,097,004 

842,878 
6,639,890 

12,739,096 
120,038,158 

$191,991,421 

The District issued School Energy Savings Obligations Refunding Bonds in the amount of$16,7IO,OOO in 
the current year. For more detailed information, please refer to Note 5 to the basic financial 
statements. 

The District recorded a liability for other-post employment benefits under GASB Statement No. 75. 
In the prior year based on the GASB Statement No. 45 valuation, the District was in an overfunded 
position and recorded an asset. Refer to Note 23 to the basic financial statements. 

The net pension liability has decreased based on the actuarial valuation of the District's portion of the 
state pension liability. 

For the Future 

The fiscal outlook in the near term is a concern for most school districts. The District is subject to the 
tax cap limitation of 2 percent. This limit to raise additional revenue is combined with the District 
issue to recognize tax revenue from the lost ratables that occurred as a direct result of Super Storm 
Sandy. To continue essential government functions, the District created cost saving measures such as 
implementing several energy conservation plans and has developed certain budget constraints, 
including addressing non-essential costs. The Toms River Regional School District will continue to 
employ prudent and responsible fiscal practices to maintain its sound financial condition. 

On July 13, 2018, the New Jersey State budget was signed, which included revised state aid for 
school districts. Most districts in the State received an increase in state aid, however, certain districts 
received a decrease. Toms River Regional School District's revised aid allocation when the budget 
was signed resulted in a decrease in State aid of $2,357,955. 

The District filed an application to have the reduction in aid reversed. In November 2018, the District 
received notification from the State that their application was denied. As a result, the District has 
revised the 2018-19 budget to utilize $1,157,955 of unassigned fund balance and $1,200,000 of 
additional maintenance reserve funds. 
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Contacting the District's Financial Management 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a 
general overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the resources 
entrusted to it. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact Mr. 
William Doering, Business Administrator at Toms River Regional School District, 1144 Hooper 
Avenue, Toms River, NJ 08753. Please visit our website at http://www.trschools.com. 
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Basic Financial Statements 



Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements provide a financial overview of the District's 
operations. These financial statements present the financial position and operating results 
of all governmental activities and business-type activities as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2018. 



A-1 

Toms River Regional School District 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2018 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities Total 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,046,236 $ 2,430,020 s 6,476,256 
Investments 100,216 I00,216 
Advance deposit 509,391 509,391 
Accounts receivable 3,307,575 184,860 3,492,435 
Internal balances 36,030 (36,030) 
Inventories 143,028 143,028 
Other assets 153,850 153,850 
Restricted assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 13,623,860 13,623,860 
Cash held with fiscal agent 19,508,222 19,508,222 

Capital assets, non-depreciable 5,368,923 1,421,600 6,790,523 
Capital assets, depreciable, net 14617481245 715761356 154,324:601 

Total assets 1931248:698 11,8731684 20511221382 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred loss on refunding of debt 2,515,899 2,515,899 
Pension deferrals 25,8581024 2518581024 
Total deferred outflows of resources 28,373,923 281373,923 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 6,175,745 99,014 6,274,759 
Intergovernmental accounts payable: 

State 161,160 161,160 
Federal 8,243 8,243 

Accrued interest payable 1,312,729 1,312,729 
Accrued liability for insurance claims 15,240,942 15,240,942 
Accrued salaries and wages 38,889 38,889 
Unearned revenue 508,421 137,961 646,382 
Other liabilities 351,632 83,764 435,396 
Current portion of long-term obligations 7,775,962 31,411 7,807,373 
Net pension liability 90,355,186 90,355,186 
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations 80,092,371 88,167 80,1801538 

Total liabilities 201,982,391 479,206 2021461,597 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 
Pension deferrals 22,343,963 22,343,963 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 99,813,914 8,997,956 108,811,870 
Restricted for: 

Excess Surplus-Current Year 590,534 590,534 
Excess Surplus - prior year designated 

for subsequent years expenses 1,573,524 1,573,524 
Capital Reserve 5,206,098 5,206,098 
Maintenance Reserve 7,196,820 7,196,820 
Emergency Reserve 709,865 709,865 
Capital Projects 143,314 143,314 

Unrestricted (deficit) {117,937,802) 2,396,522 { 115,541,280} 
Total net position $ {2,703.733} $ 11,394.478 s 8!690:745 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 31 



A-2 

Toms River Regional School District 

Statement of Activities 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Nel (Eapense) R...,1111, and 
Proinm Rtwn- Clian1H la Nel , .. 11100 

Operalin& Capllal 
Charp1for Cranband Cr,t11Sand Cov,mmental BWlnHs-lype 

Fu1ttllons/Pro1ram1 E•i!!!!!tt S.mcH ContribulioD1 Con1rib111lom Acd•llla ArciYilia Tor.I 

Cowmmenlal udv!IIH 
INllVClicn s 211,887,9SI $ l,242,S46 s S,80S,S70 s (204,819,BJS) s (204,139,135) 
Suppan lfflli<m 

AUertdancc/,ocid -" 187,746 (317,746) (lS7.746) 
Heald, lfflli<m 6,397,621 (6,397,628) (6,397,621} 
Olhc, S1'IIPOl1 scmccs 24,918,JII 2.0IJ,760 (22,IJ4,62 I) (22.114,621} 
lm;,,owmau or mmldic,n 6,011,197 (6,011,197) (6,011,197) 
Sdlool llMI)' 1,191,313 (],S91.]SJ} (],191,)13} 
lnslnldianal sull' tnillina 220,608 (220,608) (220,608) 
Geaccal adminism,im 4,916.716 (4,916,716) (4,916,716) 
Sdlool ldminisn1ion 17,792.269 (17,792.269} (17,792,269) 
c ... 1111~ S,014,116 (S,014,116} (S,014,116} 
Adminis1nliw information technolcgy 2.B61,ll6 s 241,092 (2,620,194} (2,620,194} 
Reqwrod mainknance 7,377,141 (7,177,141) (7,177,141) 
Operation or plw 20,591,699 (20,S91,699} (20,591,699} 
Security 2,429,200 (2,429,200) (2,429,200} 
SNd<nl transportalion 22,514,118 159,199 (22,154,919} (22,154,919} 

Special sdiools 70,589 (70,589} (70,589} 
CoslS of issuance 121,402 (121,402) (121,402} 
ln1...s1 on long-1erm dcbl 2,819,562 j21ll91S62! j2,819,S621 
Tout gowmmaiw aclivi1ics 140,241,462 I 40174S 7889330 241 092 jl30,7l l129S} !ll0,711,29SI 

Bwlncss-type aclMliH 
FoodSmicc 4,294,142 2,006,216 U17,811 s (70,IIS} 170,IIS} 
C_.ccCauor 916,166 9)),800 16,9]4 16,9]4 
Doy Cuc Caucr 718,499 749.19S 10,696 10,696 
Bemc11 Complex 361,086 410,492 49,406 49,406 
RWI Barnabas llcalcb Arena 4IOSS9 SJUII 125622 125622 
TOia! bminas-1)1>C lldMb<S 61n1 14sz 4 636114 2.217111 IJ1.S4J ll~SO 
TOia! prima,yp...,,_ I i46~Zl4 I 1°12m ~ 10)07141 I Mll!lli !ll01711129S! ll!S4l !ll01S7l17S2I 

Geaccal .......... 
l'n,pa1y IIXCS, lc,,ied for g,nenl pwposes ISl,916,716 ISl,916,716 
l'n,pa1y IIXCS, lc,,ied for dcb1 savi<e S,612.7Sl S,612.7Sl 
S1a1eSawus 161,170,900 168.170,900 
Fedml Solllccs 109,882 ]09,812 
lnveJtmenl Income 161,918 9SS 162,171 
Miscdl111oow lnccmo 1.517,132 l1SJ71SJ2 

T<11al Bcn•nl rcvmuos n11110,001 9SS 121,110,956 
Ching• in ncc position before c><traordinary item mid tronsfcrs (3,001,294) IJ],498 (2,867,796) 

Extraonlina,y item-reslillltion funds 7,616 7616 
Tout c,1r1onlinuy iian 7,616 7,616 

Trwfm 108.280 {108.280! 

Chana• in ... positioil (2.a&S,391) 25218 (2.860.180} 

Nei~ 111,665 11,369.260 ll,S50.92S 
Net posuion-cndin& s !2.7Dl.7lll s 11,394,478 s 8690,745 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 32 



Fund Financial Statements 



Governmental Funds 



Antll 
Cash and cash cquivolenlS 
1n,·es1mmll 
Accounts rc«i•able: 

swe 
Fedcnl 
Odia 

lnurfund ,-, .. ble 
RauidedlSSCIS: 

Cash 1111d cash cqwvalallJ 
Cash held m1h llscol liffll 

TotalwclS 

Uabililln anti rund l>alanca 
Lial>ililics· 

Accounls pa):l>le 1111d ........i expcnddwa 
lnlerBO•-emmaual -pa)"lllle: 

swe 
Federal 

lnlaf'und pa)able 
01hcr lial,ilities 
Unearned revenue 

Tolllliabilities 

Fund balances: 
Ratrictod ror: 

E,u:css S111plus • CUINIII )-ear 

E..as S111plm • prier>= dcsijlllllcd 
ror ••bscqllall , ..... expcndilwa 

Cl!li1al......-e 
Main._......-. 
Emergency RSffl"CI 

C11pilll projects 
Debt service 

Assigned 10: 

Toms River Regional School District 
Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 

June 30, 2018 

s 

s 

s 

Ctatnl 
Fwtd 

4,414,214 
100,216 

l,SIJ,263 

,i4,447 
509,391 
124,180 

13.112.783 
2,213,408 

22
7
641

7
m 

1.933,748 

2,283,408 

4,217,156 

590,534 

I.S7l.S24 
S,206,098 
7,196,120 

709,165 

Special --Fwtd 

s 7,919 
1,198,170 

3,776 

s 1,209,865 

s 522,691 

161,160 
1,243 
1,693 

6S7 
S08421 

1,209,865 

Additional usisncd fund bolance designated ror 1ubscq11Cnt year's expenditwes 
Dcsisnllk<I ror subsequmt )...,.1 e,tpenditwes 

l,IS7,9SS 
226,476 

1,763,474 Other plllpOICI 

Tolll tund blllanca 
Tola! liabilities and tund balances 

18,424,746 

s iH4 t 'I02 S 1209116$ 

Major f'lla4I 
Capital 
Projtcts 

Fwtd 

s S8,932 

17,224 814 

S 17,283.746 

s 79,457 

3S0,97S 

430,432 

16,853,314 

16
1
8SJ,314 

s 17l3J746 

Cllpitlll ....u used in go,·cmm.,n111 actMties .,. no1 f"""1Cilll resources and thcretore .,. not rcponed in lite runds. Tho Cffl 

Dtl>I 
Stnlff 
Fund 

s 114,lr,7 

s 84167 

84,167 

114 167 
84167 

B-1 

Total 
eo ........... 1a1 

s 

s 

s 

Fw1dl 

4,557,313 
100,216 

1,591,182 
1,198,170 

518,223 
S09.l91 
124,180 

13.112.783 
19,508.222 

41,219.680 

2,456.439 

161,160 
87,700 

8.693 
2.635,040 

508,421 
S,8'7,4SJ 

590,534 

1,S7J,S24 
5,206.098 

7,196.820 
709,865 

16,853,314 
84,167 

1,157,955 
226,476 

I 763.474 
JS,362,227 

orlltc wets is S377,JOS,6n 1111d lhe acc...nullllcd depreciation is S22S,l91,S04. 152,117,168 

Accrued interest payoblc on debt is not due and pa)"llllc in lite cuncnt period and llterefore is not reponcd u a liability in lhc funds. (I ,J 12.729) 

Lcsses lrisins from lhe isSIIOllCC of refunding bonds lhal uea result of lhe dill'crence in lhe catl);ng ,'lluc or lhe rcllindcd bonds 
and lhc ...,. bonds ore ddcrrcd and amoniud o•·er lite life of lhc new bonds. :I.SI S,899 

Accrllcd liability fCII imwaoce claims IIOI due and pl)abl¢ in lhe aimN period and lhercfore is not reponed II a liability in lhe (unds. (15,240,942) 

Dercmd pa111on Cffll in go,cmmadal acti,ilia 11e no1 ftnallCial mourccs (uses) and lhercrorc 11C not rq,oncd in lhe runds 3,S 14,061 

Accrllcd pension conuibulions fer lite Juno JO, 2017 plan yeM endue not paid 111ilh cunenl ccenorNC rcsoun:es and AN lltcrero .. 
notreponcd u a liability in lhe runds. but ore included in 11CCOun1S p.tylll)lc in lhe sovemmcn1,mdc statement or net posi~on. (3,719,306) 

Net pension lial>ility is nolducand po)'Oblcin lhccwrcnt period and lltereforc is nol reponed ua liability in lhc funds. (90,JSS,186) 

Other liabilities included in lhe go,·crnmcnlll (unds represent leoses lhal .,..,.. cnlercd into priot IO June 30, 2018 and ore 
included u liabilities in lhe long-tcrm liability note below. 2,283,408 

Other post crnplo)mai1 baldiis pa)'lllle liabi!iua 11e not d .. in 11w cwmu paiod 1111d 1hcrerore reponed as long-icrm b&bd111es m lhc runds. (3.231.183) 

l.oni'tcrm li•b•htics 11C not d"° and P'l)'llllc in 1hc auren1 paiod and lllcrcfore ue not ttpaned II liobilitia in lite runds (S4,6J7,I SO) 

Not position orgo,·cmtnffllal octi>ities(A•I) S fl 703 7J31 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 33 



Revenues 
Local sources: 

Toms River Regional School District 
Governmental Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Caieral 
Fund 

MalorFunds 
Special Capital 

Revenue Projects 
Fund Fund 

Debt 
Service 

Fund 

B-2 

Total 
Gonmmental 

Funds 

Local tax levy $ 151.916;716 $ S,612,7S3 $ 157,529,469 
lnlCre$1 on investments 
Transponation fees ftom other LEAs wilhin !he Swe 
T11ition 
Renllll Income 
Solar Renewable EnCQl.v Credits 
Miscdlanco111 

Tollll m-cnuo-loc:al sources 

State soun:cs 
Feder.ii 50lltCCS 

Total revenues 

E1pendltura 
CWTcnt: 

IDSlruCtion 
Undisaibutcd: 

IIISIIUCli11n 
Ancndancc/social work 
He:illh services 
G11idance services 
Spm:h, OT. PT and relalcd services 
Child S1Udy teams / spcciaJ education 
Improvement of instruction 
School library 
lnsuuetional stafftnining 
General administralion 
School lldministr.Uion 
Central services 
Admini:!Utllive infonnalion tcdinology 
Required maintenance 
()pcralion of plant 
Care and upkeep of grounds 
Security 
Student aansporwion 
Pasonnd semccs-

unalloc:atcd employee benefits 
On-behalf payments 

Special Schools 
Capital outlay 
Debt Service: 

Debi service payment • principaJ 
Debt service payment • interest 
Costs of issuance 

Total cxpcnditurcs 

(Deficiency) excess of Revenues (Under) owr Expcnditurcs 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Bonds iaued 
Premium on bonds issued 
Capillll Leases (non-budgeted) 

Tollll oilier fuiancing sources (IISCS) 

Extraordinary Item • restitution funds 

Ne1 change in fund baJances 

Fund balances. July I 
Fund balances, June 30 

82,461 $ 
159,199 

1,242,546 
119,921 
376,611 

I 041 300 $ 3671277 
IS4,938,7S4 367,277 

99,327,782 
309882 

2S4,S76,4 l8 

92,456,004 

5,941,454 
169,9SO 

3,345,174 
3,868,002 
3,325,414 
3,669,620 
2,645,740 
1,768,899 

197,742 
3,209.748 
7,900.213 
2.271,270 
1,494,232 
3,484,733 

11,069,296 
985,441 

1,073,418 
12,381,904 

S8,726,68S 
29,2S8,SS3 

31,79S 
4,378,153 

1,914,322 
166,392 

2SS.734,IS4 

(1,157.736) 

191,737 
(455,910) 

2184S1S73 
2.SBl,400 

7616 

1,431.280 

822,S41 
6,944.604 
8,134,422 

S,80S,S70 

2,083,760 

241,092 

8,130.422 

4,000 

(4,000) 

(4,000) 

79,4S7 161,918 
IS9,199 

1,242,546 
119,921 
376.611 

114081S77 
79,457 5,612.753 160.998.241 

79,457 

685,870 

3S0,97S 
121,402 

1,158.247 

(1,078,790) 

(79,457) 
16,710,000 
1,301,561 

17,932.104 

16,853,314 

349.207 

S,961,960 

4,897,834 
1,520.077 

6.417.911 

(455,951) 

455,910 

455,910 

(41) 

100,499.530 
7,254,486 

268, 7S2,2S7 

98,261.574 

,,94l,4S4 
169,9SO 

3,345,174 
3,868,002 
3,325,414 
5,753,380 
2,645,740 
1,768,899 

197,742 
3.209,748 
7,900.213 
2,271,270 
1,494,232 
3,484,733 

11,069,296 
985,441 

1,073,418 
12,381.904 

58,726.685 
29,258,553 

31,79S 
S,30S,IIS 

6,812,156 
2,037,444 

121402 
271.440.734 

(2,688.477) 

647.647 
(539,367) 

16,710,000 
1,301,561 
2,845.573 

20.965.414 

7616 

18,284,553 

1619931466 -,,----;.. ____ .....;.. __ __::84:;:,1,:,20:::B:... 17077674 
S 18 424 746 S S 16 RS:1314 S 84 167 S 3S 362 227 

The reconciliation of the fund balances of governmental funds to the net position of governmental activities on the 
slalemenl of activities is presented in an accompanying schedule (B·J). 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 34 



Toms River Regional School District 
Governmental Funds 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, 
and Changes in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Total net ch11nge in fund balances - governmeatal fund• (B-2) 

Amounts reported for go,'fflUllental activities in the Slalemcnt 
of activities (A-2) are different because: 

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. 
However, in the statement ofac1ivities, lhe cost oflhosc assets is 
a1IDC4ted over lheir estimated useful lives as depreciation expense 
and disposals. This is lhe amount by which deprecilllion expense 
exceeded capital asset additions and disposals in the period. 

Depreciation expense S (7,752,087) 
Capital asset additions 4,248,J 63 

Loss on disposals (I 7170S) 

Repayments of bonds, loan, notes and capital lease principal are expenditures in the 
governmental fimds, but the repayment reduces long•tenn liabilities in the 
S111tcmcnt of net position and are not reported in the statement of 
net position. 

Serial bonds 4,715,000 
Issuance ofESIP bonds (16,710,000) 
Capilal lease proceeds (2,130,000) 

Obligations undercapilal leases 1,914.322 
DcfelTCd pension obligation 66,461 

RctircmcnlS of note principal __ ;;.;;18"'2"'18""34"-

Expenses reported in the statement of activities that do not require the 
use of cum,nt financial rcsoun:es. such as the oblisation for postemployment 
benefits olher than pensions, arc not reported as expenditures in 
governmental funds. This amount represents the change from the prior year. 

Claims that ha,i: been incurred but nol yet reported al June 30 are liabililies on 
the statement of net position, but are not reflected in the governmental funds. 
This amount reflects the change in the liability balances at June 30, 20 I 8. 

In lhe current year, the Dislrict entered into capital lease agreements prior to the 
end oftl•e fiscal year in which the .lease proceeds were unspent and recorded as 
other liabilities in the general fund. This amounl represents lhe change from the prior year. 

In the stlllemcnt of activities, interest on long-lenn debt in the 
statement of activities is accrued, reganllcss of when due. 
In the go,i:mmental funds, interest is reported when due. This 
amount reflects lhe change from 1he prior year. 

Governmental funds report lhe elTccl of issuance cosls, premiums 
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts 
arc dcfelTCd and amorliz.ed in the statement of activilies. This amount 
is the ncl effect of these diff'ercnccs. 

Amortization of Premium on Bonds 
Premium on Bond Issuance 

Amortizalion of Deferred Interest Costs 

In lhe statemenl of activilies, certain opaaling expenses, e.g .. 
compensated absences (vacations) are measured by the amounts 
earned during the year. In the go,i:rmncnral funds, howe,u, 
expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of 
financial resources used (paid). The amount Jlrescntcd is the 
net change. 

Certain expenses reported in the Slatement of Aclivities do not require tl1e use of 
current financial resources and lhcrcforc are nOI reported as expendilurcs in 
80\'fflUIICRtal fimds 

Pension expense, contributions made and change in accrued contributions 

Change In net position of governmental activities (A-2) 

Sec accompanying notes to basic fmoncial statements. 

171,543 
(l,301,.S63) 

(3S.S.188) 

8·3 

S 18,284,SS3 

(3,521,629) 

(11,961,383) 

487,492 

(1,492,689) 

(713,326) 

(598,471) 

(1,485,208) 

407,516 

(2,292,253) 

S (2,885,398) 

3S 
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B-4 

Toms River Regional School District 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Position 

June 30, 2018 

Basinrss-Ty~ Activities 
Major Enterl!rise Funds 

RWJ 
Barnabas 

Food Corporate Day Care Bennett Heallh 
Assets Service Center Center Coml!lex Arena Totals 
Current assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents s 193,757 s 1,046,378 s 70S,966 s 483,919 s 2,430,020 
Accounts receivable: 

State 3,089 3,089 
Federal 160,472 160,472 
Other 8,424 $ 1,485 11,390 21,299 

Inventories 143,028 143,028 
Other assets 93099 607SI IS3,8SO 

Total current assets 508,770 1,139,477 62,236 705,966 495,309 2,911,758 

Non-current assets: 
Capital assets, non-depreciable 1,421,600 1,421,600 
Capital assets, depreciable, net 2671744 4,275,179 101S81 7881308 212341S44 7,S76,3S6 

Total non-current assets 2671744 S,696,779 IOIS81 788,308 2,2341S44 8199719S6 
Total assets 776,514 6,836,256 72.817 1,494,274 2,7291853 111909,714 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable S12 97,440 1,062 99,014 
Accrued salaries and wages I l,99S 24,800 2,094 38,889 
Unearned revenue 134,288 4SO 3,223 137,961 
Security deposits 83,764 83,764 
lnterfund payable 36,030 36,030 
Current portion of compensated absences payable 31411 31411 

Total current liabilities 178,206 181,654 60,830 6,379 427,069 

Non-current liabilities: 
Compensated absences payable 88 167 881167 

Total liabilities 2661373 181 16S4 60,830 6379 SIS1236 

Net position 
Investment in capital assets 267,744 S,696,779 10,SBI 788,308 2,234,544 8,997,956 
Unrestricted 2421397 9S71823 1,406 705,966 4881930 2,396,522 
Total net position $ S101141 $ 6,654,602 s 11,987 s 1,494,274 $ 2,7231474 S 11,3941478 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 36 



8-S 

Toms River Regional School District 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Fund Net Position 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Business-Type Activities 
Major Enle!J!rise Funds 

RWJ 
Barnabas 

Food Corpomte Day Care Dennett Health 
Service Center Center Comelex Arena Totals 

Operating revenues: 
Local sources: 

Daily food sales-reimbursable programs s 901,165 s 901,165 
Daily food sales-non-reimbursable programs l,IOS,OS1 l,IOS,OSI 
Tuition s 749,195 749,195 
Rental income s 933,775 s 284,361 s IOS,240 1,323,376 
Sales 123,845 171,597 295,442 
Fees collected 24S,7S4 24S,7S4 
Miscellaneous 2S 2,286 13,890 16,201 

Total operating revenues 2,006,216 933,800 749,19S 410,492 S36,481 4,636,184 

Operating expenses: 
Salaries 2,039,752 S36,320 17S,417 142,318 2,893,807 
Employee benefits 274,SS7 77,989 13,419 19,042 385,007 
Repairs and maintenance ISS,887 20,496 58,662 23S,04S 
Supplies and materials 83,0SI 38 S2,603 54,436 83,231 273,359 
Cost of sales • reimbursable programs l,3S6,7SS l,356,7SS 
Cost of sales • non-reimbursable prolU1llllS 329.979 329.979 
Depreciation 49,9SI 180,0SS 2,008 22,445 74,481 328,940 
Amortization 48,2S2 48,252 
Utilities 54,S40 239,S47 2S,491 19,983 339,561 
Real estate taxes 14S,S42 145,542 
Rental 34,290 66,264 100,SS4 
Management services 45,780 4S,780 
Tenant improvements 1,872 1,872 
Insurance 11.102 2,021 IO,OS3 23,176 
Other purchased services 27,204 69,977 42,803 139,984 
Miscellaneous 32,961 29,916 3J1S 4~S8 3089 73 839 

Total operating expenses 4,294,142 916,866 738,499 361,086 410,859 6,721,452 

Operating (loss) income (2,287,926) 16,934 10,696 49,406 12S,622 (2,085,268) 

Nonoperating revenues: 
State sources: 

School lunch program 38,487 38,487 
Federal sources: 

School breakfast program 433,S98 433,598 
School lunch program 1,461,821 1,461,821 
Healthy Hunger-Free Kids Act (HHFKA) 43,S96 43,596 
Food donation program • commodities 238,121 238,121 
Federal aid reimbursement. (FEMA) 2,188 2,188 

Interest revenue 9SS 9SS 
Total nonoperating revenues 2,217,811 9SS 2,218,766 

(Loss) income before transfers (70,I IS) 17,889 10,696 49,406 12S,622 133,498 

Transfer in 4,000 4,000 
Transfers out !20,972} (91,308} (112.280} 

Change in net position (66,115) 17,889 I0,696 28,434 34,314 25,218 

Total net position, beginning S76 256 6,636,713 1291 1,465,840 2,689,160 11,369,260 
Total net position, end ! SIO 141 !66S4 603 ! 111987 ! 1,494 274 !2.723 474 i I I 394141s 

See accompan)'ing notes lo basic financial stalemelllS. 37 
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Toms River Regional School District 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Y-endcd June 30, 2018 

Biuincss-T)'pt Acdvldcs 
Major Enlt!]!rlae Funds 

RWJ 
Barnabas 

Food Corporale Da)'Can llfflnett Haith 
Senice Center Center Cometn Anna Tolals 

Cash Rows rrom operalin11: acdvldcs 
RccciplS from aistomcrs $ 2,040,358 s 900,121 s 707,223 s 410,492 $ 527,080 s 4,585,274 
PaymenlS to employees (2,050,30 I) (595,966) (188,836) (160,510) (2,995,613) 
Payments for employee benefits (274,557) (274,557) 
Payments for rent (34,290) (66,264) (100,554) 
Payments co sup11licrs jl.9.S3,794l (594,766! (551918! !149,805! jl73,9.S6l (2, 928,239! 
Net cash (used in) provided by opcnril!JI l!fflvilics (2.272.584! 305 355 (10192.Sl 7118.SI 19~614 (1,713,689! 

Cash Ro\01 rrom lnvestln1 acdvll)I 
lnlCRSI received 9SS 9SS 
Net cash provided by invcslin11 ~ivity 9SS 955 

Cash Ro\01 rrom caplcal and nlated nnancln11: aclivldes 
Pwdwc of cupillll assets (46,911) (257,384) (191,744) (14,063) (510,102) 
Cash received Oom olher lunds for cupillll asscc 4,000 4.000 
Net cash (used in) cai,ilal and n:hlled f1111111Cin11 ac:tivilics (4~911! (2S71384l (191,744! (14,063! (506,102! 

Cash Rows rrom noncapital f111andn11 acllvidcs 
Cash received from state and fedeml sources 2,332,148 2,332,148 
Cash n:ccived (disbursed) from (lo) other funds 1092.S (20,972! (91,308! (101 13.SSl 
Net cash provided by (used in) noncapilal financin11 activities 2,332,148 10925 (20,972! (91,308! 2,230,793 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash cquiwlenlS 16,653 48,926 (140,86.S) 87,243 11,957 
Cash and cash cqujvalcnlS, bcaiMinll of )'QT 177104 9974S2 846,831 396,676 2,418,063 
Cash and cash equivalents. end of r- s l93i1S7 S 11046.378 s $ 7051966 s 483 919 ! 21430.020 

Reconcllladon or operadn2 (loss) Income 10 net cash 
(used In) provided by operadn11 aclMllcs 

()pcmtin11 (loss) income $ (2,287,926) s 16,934 $ 10,696 s 49,406 s 125,622 $ (2,085.268) 
AdjuslmenlS 10 reconcile operaliltll (loss) income to net cash 

(used in) pro\idcd by opcrllil!JI ac:tivilies: 
Dcp,eciation 49,9.SI 180,055 2,008 22,445 74,481 328,940 
Amorlizmion expense 48,2S2 48,252 
Chan11e in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) in intcrgovemmcnllll receivable (1,221) (1,221) 
(lncrC115C) in accounts receivable (2,784) (11,390) (14,174) 
(lncrC115C) in inventory (60,313) (60,313) 
(lncrca.se) in oilier assclS (20,027) (40,751) (60,778) 
Increase (dccn:asc) in accounts payable 21 93,793 1,062 94,876 
Increase (decrease) in unearned RVCnue 36,926 (19,550) 1,989 19,365 
(Dccrasc) in compensated absences pay.,blc (IO,S49) (10,549) 
lnacasc in oilier liabilities S,898 5,898 
lnQ'CaR in accrued salaries 2090 18343 850 21,283 

Net cash (used in) provided by opcratin11 ~vitics s p,27215842 s 30S1355 ! ,,0192.Sl s 71 1851 $ 192.614 s (19'13,689} 

Noneash noncapilal f111anein& 11cdvldes 
The District received $278,549 offood commodities from the U.S. 
Department of Agricultun: for lhc )'CM ended June 30, 2018. 

&t a«ampanying notes 10 btulc financial staltmtnU. 38 
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Toms River Regional School District 
Fiduciary Funds 

B-8 

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Additions 
Interest received 
Contributions-employees 
Donations 

Total additions 

Deductions 
Scholarships awarded 
Unemployment claims 

Total deductions 

Change in net position 

Net position-beginning of the year 
Net position-end of the year 

Private­
Purpose 

Scholarship 
Trust Funds 

$ 200 

46,076 
46,276 

49,400 

49,400 

(3,124) 

52,700 
$ 49,576 

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements. 

Unemployment 
Compensation 

Trust Fund 

$ 175 
407,100 

407,275 

244,090 
244,090 

163,185 

5,615,195 
$ 5,778,380 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The financial statements of the Toms River Regional School District (the "District") have been prepared in 
confonnity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to 
governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body 
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 

The more significant of the District's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Reporting Entity 

The District is a Type II school district located in Ocean County, New Jersey. As a Type II school district, the 
District functions independently from the Township through a Board of Education. The Board is comprised of nine 
members elected to three year staggered tenns. The District provides a full range of educational services 
appropriate to grades Pre-K through 12 and include both regular and special education programs. 

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, b) organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable, and c) other organizations for which the nature and significance of their 
relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial 
statements to be misleading or incomplete. 

The definition of the reporting entity is based primarily on the notion of financial accountability. A primary 
government is financially accountable for the organizations that make up its legal entity. It is also financially 
accountable for legally separate organizations if its officials appoint a voting majority of an organization's 
governing body and either it is able to impose its will on that organization or there is a potential for the organization 
to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government. A 
primary government may also be financially accountable for governmental organizations that are fiscally dependent 
on it. 

The District, as the primary government for financial reporting entity purposes, has oversight responsibility and 
control over all activities related to the Toms River Regional School District in Toms River, New Jersey. The 
District receives funding from local, state, and federal government sources and must comply with the requirements 
of these funding source entities. 

The District has no component units that are required to be included within the reporting entity, as set forth in 
Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards. · 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the l3asic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( continued) 

B. Government-Wide and Fu.nd Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements li.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) 
report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District. Governmental activities, which 
normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type 
activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function. Program revenues include l) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and 
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. 
Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general 
revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, 
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual 
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund 
financial statements. The New Jersey Department of Education requires all funds be reported as major to 
promote consistency among the school districts in the State of New Jersey. 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. 
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the 
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. 
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus 
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable 
and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or 
soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the District considers all 
revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal year. 
Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt 
service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, bonds, capital lease 
obligations, other post-employment benefit liabilities, deferred pension obligation, loans and legal liabilities 
are recorded only when payment is due. 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

Property taxes, interest, and state aid associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal year. All other revenue 
items are considered to be measurable and available only when the District receives cash. 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, funds invested in solar renewable energy certificates associated with 
the current fiscal period are considered revenue under the full accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting. 
These investments, however, are not recognized on the budgetary basis of accounting until sold or expected to be 
sold within 60 days after year end. 

The District has reported the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund: The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and is used to account for all 
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain 
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or non-instructional equipment, which are classified in 
the capital outlay subfund. 

Special Revenue Fund: The District maintains one special revenue fund which includes the proceeds of 
specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes, other than 
debt service or capital projects. 

Capital Projects Fund: The capital projects fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are 
restricted, committed, or assigned to an expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities and other capital assets (other than those financed by proprietary 
funds). The financial resources are derived primarily from the Energy Savings Improvement Plan ("ESIP") 
bonds. 

Debt Service Fund: The debt service fund accounts for and reports financial resources that are restricted, 
committed, or assigned to an expenditure for the principal and interest on long-term general obligation debt 
of governmental funds. 

The District reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Food Service Enterprise Fund: The food service fund accounts for all revenues and expenses pertaining to 
cafeteria program operations and account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar 
to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost (i.e., expenses including depreciation) of 
providing goods or services to the students and others on a continuing basis are financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges. 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

Corporate Center Enterprise Fund: The corporate center enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and 
expenses pertaining to the operations of the Center that are financed and operated in a manner similar to 
private business enterprises. Costs are offset by rental income paid by tenants of the Center. In April 
1997, the District acquired a commercial office building and land for $6,041,170 and $1,421,600, 
respectively. The District's administrative offices are maintained in the building as well as other ancillary 
school services. The District renovated vacant office space for use as additional classrooms, a day care 
facility and a cafe servicing both school board and tenant employees. The District has entered into contract 
with Atlantic Coast Realty Appraisal Group, Inc. to provide professional management services in 
connection with the rental agreements with its commercial tenants. 

Daycare Center Enterprise Fund: The Daycare Center ("Center") accounts for all revenues and expenses 
of the Center and is run as its own separate entity. The Center provides services primarily for District 
employees. The Center operates from September to June and is open 184 days per year. 

John Bennett Athletic Complex Enterprise Fund: The John Bennett Athletic Complex ("Complex") 
accounts for all revenues and expenses of the Complex and is run as its own separate entity and used as the 
gymnasium for Intermediate School East. The Complex is an air structure used for indoor track and 
sporting events that is also rented by outside parties. 

RWJ Barnabas Health Arena Enterprise Fimd: The RWJ Barnabas Health Arena (formerly known as the 
Pine Belt Arena, name change effective December 20, 2017), on the campus of High School North, 
accounts for all revenues and expenses of the Arena and is run as its own separate entity and the facility is 
used as the high school gymnasium during school hours but is rented to other parties for various sporting 
events, trade shows, and concerts during after school hours. 

Additionally, the District reports the following fiduciary fund types: 

Fiduciary Funds: Fiduciary funds of the District include the unemployment compensation and private 
purpose scholarship trust funds and agency funds. The trust funds are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus. Agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve 
measurements of results of operations. The following is a description of the fiduciary funds of the District. 

Trust and Agency Funds: The trust and agency funds are used to account for assets held by the District on 
behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of other funds within the District. 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

Trust Funds: Unemployment compensation and private purpose scholarship funds are accounted for using 
the economic resources measurement focus. The unemployment compensation fund is used to account for 
contributions from the District and employees and interest earned on the balance as well as payments to the 
State for reimbursement of unemployment claims. The private purpose scholarship fund is utilized to 
provide scholarships to students and to account for the related transactions. 

Agency Funds (Payroll and Student Activity Fund): Agency funds are used to account for the assets that 
the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not 
involve measurement of results of operations. 

As a general rule the effect of internal activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial 
statements. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include l) fees charged to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program 
revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 

Enterprise funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection 
with an enterprise fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the District 
enterprise funds are charges for sales of food, rent and tuition. Operating expenses for enterprise funds 
include the cost of sales, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets, if applicable. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

The District reports unearned revenue on its balance sheet and statements of net position. Unearned revenue 
arises when a potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition 
in the current period. Unearned revenue also arises when resources are received by the District before it has 
legal claim to them, as when federal assistance is receiveq prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. 
In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the District has a legal claim 
to the resources, the liability for unearned revenue is removed from the balance sheet and statements of net 
position and revenue is recognized. 

Ad Valorem (Property) taxes are susceptible to accrual as, under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is 
required to remit to its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount certified prior to the end of the 
school year. The District records the entire approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal 
year, since the revenue is both measurable and available. The District is entitled to receive moneys under the 
established payment schedule and the unpaid amount is considered to be an "accounts receivable." 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (continued) 

The County Board of Taxation is responsible for the assessment of properties, and the Municipal Tax 
Collectors are responsible for collection of taxes. Assessments are certified and taxes are levied on January 
I; taxes are due February I, May I, August I and November I. Unpaid taxes are considered delinquent the 
following January 1 and are then subject to lien. 

D. Budgets/Budgetary Control 

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the general, special revenue and debt 
service funds and submitted to the County Office of the New Jersey Department of Education for approval. 
Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting and the special revenue fund uses a non­
GAAP budget (budgetary basis). The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts 
within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established 
pursuant to the minimum chart of accounts referred in N.J.A.C. 6A:23. The over-expenditure in the general 
fund is due to the inclusion of the non-budgeted on-behalf payments made by the State of New Jersey as 
District expenditures. These amounts are offset by related revenues and as such do not represent budgetary 
over-expenditures. All budget amendments must be approved by Board resolution and certain other matters 
require approval by the County Superintendent of Schools. Budgetary transfers were made during the 
current year in accordance with statutory guidelines. 

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during 
the year. For governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of 
accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States with the exception of the 
legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payments for budgetary purposes only and the 
special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal 
budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end. 

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis. 
The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis 
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis 
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis 
financial reports. 

E. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments 

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, amounts on deposit, and money market accounts. Investments 
are recorded at fair value. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

F. Inventories 

Inventories, which benefit future periods are recorded as an expenditure during the year of purchase. The 
consumable inventory is the property of the District. 

At June 30, 2018, there was $47,929 of unused Food Donation Program commodities owned by the District. 

G. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include land and property, plant and equipment, are reported in the applicable 
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital 
assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $2,000 and an 
estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or through estimation 
procedures. Donated capital assets are recorded at their acquisition value on the date of acquistion. 

The costs of nonnal repairs and maintenance that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the 
assets lives are not capitalized. 

Property, plant and equipment of the District is depreciated using the straight line method. The following 
estimated useful lives are used to compute depreciation: 

H. Compensated Absences 

Land improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Buildings 
Building improvements 
Vehicles 

Years 
10-20 
5-12 

50 
20-50 

5-10 

A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered and that are not 
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as 
employees earn the rights to the benefits. The District uses the "vesting method" for estimating its accrued 
sick and vacation leave liability. 

District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts under the District's personnel 
policies and collective bargaining agreements. Sick leave benefits provide for ordinary sick pay and begin 
vesting with the employee after one year of service. Upon retirement, employees shall be paid by the District 
for the unused sick leave in accordance with Districts agreements with the various employee unions. Under 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

H. Compensated Absences (continued) 

terms of association agreements, employees earn vacation and sick leave in amounts varying with tenure and 
classification by the District for the unused sick leave in accordance with District agreements with the 
various employee unions. 

As of June 30, 2018, a liability existed for compensated absences in the governmental activities financial 
statements in the amount of $12,331,580. The liability for vested compensated absences in the proprietary fund 
types is recorded within those funds as the benefits accrue to employees and is recorded in the amount of 
$119,578. 

I. Unearned Revenue 

Unearned revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash from grants, which has been received but not 
yet earned. Unearned revenue in the food service enterprise fund represent cash receipts from students for 
future meals that have been received in advance and the unused portion of Food Donation Program 
commodities, prepayments of fees in the R W J Barnabas Health Arena and prepayments of rent from tenants 
within the Corporate Center. 

J. Deferred Outflows / Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of 
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources 
(expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has two items that qualify for reporting in this category, 
including deferred amounts from the refunding of debt and deferred amounts related to pensions. In addition to 
liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. 
This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position 
that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The 
District has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts related to pensions. 

K. Deferred Loss on Defeasance of Debt 

Deferred loss on refunding arising from the issuance of the refunding bonds is recorded as a deferred outflow 
of resources. It is amortized in a systematic and rational manner over the duration of the related debt as a 
component of interest and other charges on long-term debt. The amortization expense for the year ended 
June 30, 2018 amounted to $355,188. As of June 30, 2018, the District has recorded an unamortized balance 
of $2,515,899 as a deferred outflow of resources. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

L. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and enterprise fund types in the fund financial statements, long­
term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or enterprise fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are 
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight line method which approximates the 
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premiums and discounts. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the 
current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums re~eived on 
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other 
financing uses. 

M. Fund Balances 

GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions ("GASB 54") 
established fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which a 
government is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental 
funds. Under GASB 54, fund balances in the governmental funds financial statements are reported under the 
modified accrual basis of accounting and classified into the following five categories, as defined below: 

1) Nonspendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Assets included 
in this fund balance category include prepaid assets, inventories, long-term receivables, and 
corpus of any permanent funds. 

2) Restricted - includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by 
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation. 

3) Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed by a 
formal action of the government's highest level of decision-making authority. The District's 
highest level of decision-making authority is the Board of Education (the "Board") and formal 
action is taken by resolution of the Board at publicly held meetings. Once committed, amounts 
cannot be used for other purposes unless the Board revises or changes the specified use by taking 
the same action (resolution) taken to originally commit these funds. 

4) Assigned- amounts intended to be used by the government for specific purposes but do not meet 
the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Intent is expressed by either the Board or 
Business Administrator, to whom the Board has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be 
used for specific purposes, including the encumbering of funds. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( continued) 

M. Fund Balances (continued) 

5) Unassigned - includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications in the 
general fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other 
funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to specific purposes within the 
general fund. The general fund is the only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance 
amount. In the other governmental funds, if expenditures incurred for specific purposes exceed 
the amounts restricted, committed or assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a 
negative unassigned fund balance. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. For the unrestricted fund balance, 
the District first spends committed funds, then assigned funds, and finally, unassigned funds. 

Of the $18,424,746 of general fund balance at June 30, 2018, $5,206,098 is restricted in a capital reserve 
($455,910 of the balance is being utilized as part of the 2018-19 budget}, $7,196,820 is restricted in a 
maintenance reserve ($2,600,000 of the balance is being utilized as part of the 2018-19 budget}, $709,865 is 
restricted in an emergency reserve, $3,003,551 is assigned for year-end encumbrances, $590,534 has been 
restricted for excess surplus - current year, $1,573,524 of prior year excess surplus is restricted and has been 
designated for subsequent years expenditures, $226,476 is reported as an assigned fund balance designated 
for subsequent year's expenditures, $1,157,955 is reported as additional assigned fund balance designated for 
subsequent year's expenditures July 1, 2018 to August l, 2018 resulting from a decrease in state aid after 
adoption of the 2018-19 district budget, and $1,763,474 is classified as assigned for other purposes. At June 
30, 2018, the District also had restricted debt service fund balance in the amount of $84,167 and capital 
projects fund balance of$16,853,314. 

N. Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources in the government-wide financial statements. Net investment in capital assets consists 
of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any long-term debt 
used to build or acquire the capital assets. 

Net positions are reported as restricted in the government-wide financial statements when there are 
limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or 
regulations of other governments. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ( continued) 

O. Management Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

P. On-Behalf Payments 

Revenues and expenditures of the general fund include payments made by the State of New Jersey for social 
security and post-retirement pension, medical and long-term disability contributions for certified teachers and 
other members of the New Jersey Teachers Pension and Annuity Fund. Additionally, revenues and expenses 
related to on-behalf pension contributions in the government-wide financial statements have been increased by 
$42,149,888 to adjust for the full accrual basis expense incurred by the State of New Jersey during the most recent 
measurement period. The amounts are not required to be included in the District's annual budget. 

Q. Calculation of Excess Surplus 

The designation for restricted fund balance -- excess surplus is a required calculation pursuant to N.J .S.A. I 8A:7F-
7, as amended. New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal year 
end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted fund balance in their 
subsequent years' budget $1,573,524 of prior year excess fund balance was included in the 2018-19 approved 
budget. The excess fund balance generated in the 2018 fiscal year is $590,534, which will be appropriated in 
the 2019-20 budget. 

R. GASB Pronouncements 

GASBs Pronouncements Implemented in the 2018 Fiscal Year 

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Other Than Pensions (Statement No. 75). This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement 
No. 45 and requires governments to report a liability on the face of the financial statements for the OPEB 
that they provide. Statement No. 75 requires governments in all types of OPEB plans to present more 
extensive note disclosures and required supplementary information (RSI) about their OPEB liabilities. The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for reporting periods beginning after 
June 15, 2017. The District has adopted Statement No. 75 during the year ended June 30, 2018, which 
resulted in an increase in full accrual revenues and expenses and additional disclosures in the notes to the 
basic financial statements. 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

R. GASB Pronouncements (continued) 

In March, 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017. This Statement establishes accounting and 
financial reporting requirements for blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and 
application, and postemployment benefits (pensions and other postemployment benefits). The requirements 
of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The District has adopted GASB 
Statement No. 85 during the year ended June 30, 2018, which did not have a significant impact on the 
financial statements. 

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Principles 

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities in January 2017. This Statement establishes 
standards of accounting and financial reporting for fiduciary activities. The requirements of this Statement 
are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Management has not yet determined the impact 
of the statement on the financial statements. 

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases in June 2017. This Statement establishes standards of 
accounting and financial reporting for leases by lessees and lessors. The requirements of this Statement are 
effective for periods beginning after December IS, 2019. Management has not yet determined the impact of 
the statement on the financial statements. 

S. Subsequent Events 

Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and transactions that occurred between June 30, 2018 
and February 15, 2019, the date that the financial statements were available for issuance, for possible 
disclosure and recognition in the financial statements. On January 22, 2019, the voters of the District 
approved a bond referendum in the amount not to exceed $147,148,269 for various school repairs. In 
addition, see Note 22. 

2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total governmental 
funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net 
position. One element of that reconciliation explains that long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, 
unamortized premiums, long term notes payable, compensated absences, capital leases and deferred pension 
obligations, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds. The 
details of this $87,868,333 difference are as follows: 
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2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (continued) 

Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the 
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position 

Bonds payable 
Other post-employment benefits payable 
Unamortized bond premium 
Notes payable 
Deferred pension obligations 
Capital leases payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental funds 

to arrive at net position - governmental activities 

3. Deposits and Investments 

$ 61,075,000 
3,231,183 
2,684,415 

914,170 
776,417 

6,855,568 
12,331,580 

$ 87,868,333 

Investments are stated at fair value in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools and Statement No. 72, Fair Value 
Measurement and Application. The District classifies certificates of deposit, which have original maturity 
dates of more than three months but less than twelve months from the date of purchase, as investments and 
are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. New Jersey school districts are limited as to 
the types of investments and types of financial institutions they may invest in. New Jersey statute ISA:20-37 
provides a list of permissible investments that may be purchased by New Jersey school districts. 

Additionally, the District has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in 
public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection 
Act ("GUDPA"). 

GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect governmental units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed 
banking institution in New Jersey. N.J.S.A. 17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of 
deposits of governmental units. 

The statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such 
funds are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include savings and loan institutions, banks 
(both state and national banks) and savings banks, the deposits of which are federally insured. 

All public depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the 
average daily balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of governmental units. If a public 
depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the. collateral of all other public depositories, is available to 
pay the full amount of their deposits to the governmental units. 
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Deposits 

New Jersey statutes require that school districts deposit public funds in public depositories located in New 
Jersey that are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, the Federal Savings and Loan 
Insurance Corporation, or by any other agency of the United States that insures deposits made in public 
depositories. School districts are also pennitted to deposit public funds in the State of New Jersey Cash 
Management Fund and the New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management Fund. 

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed 
depository insurance limits as follows: 

The market value of the collateral must equal at least 5% of the average daily balance of collected public 
funds on deposit. 

In addition to the above collateral requirement, if the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital 
funds of the depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value at least equal to 
I 00% of the amount exceeding 75%. 

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, the Federal Reserve Bank of 
Philadelphia, the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or a banking institution that is a member of the 
Federal Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000. 

The District's cash and cash equivalents are classified below to infonn financial statement users about the 
extent to which a government's deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit risk. 

At June 30, 2018, the carrying amount of the District's deposits for all funds was $53,095,592 and the bank 
balance was $56,175,321. Of the bank balance, $831,829 of the District's cash deposits on June 30, 2018 
were secured by federal depository insurance. The New Jersey Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act 
(GUDPA) covered $28,774,353 of the bank balance. $19,508,649 of the balance represents capital lease 
funds held by fiscal agent that is not covered by GUDPA. $7,059,470 held in the District agency accounts are 
not covered by GUDPA. 

Pursuant to GASS Statement No. 40, "Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures" ("GASB 40"), the District's 
operating cash and money market accounts are profiled in order to determine exposure, if any, to Custodial Credit 
Risk ( risk that in the event of failure of the counterparty the District would not be able to recover the value of its 
deposits and investments). Deposits are considered to be exposed to Custodial Credit Risk if they are: 
uncollateralized (securities not pledged to the depositor), collateralized with securities held by the pledging 
financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the financial institution's trust department or agent 
but not in the government's name. 
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Deposits (continued) 

The District does not have a policy for the management of custodial credit risk, other than depositing all of its 
funds in banks covered by GUDPA. At least five percent of the District's deposits were fully collateralized by 
funds held by the financial institution, but not in the name of the District. Due to the nature of GUDPA, further 
information is not available regarding the full amount that is collateralized. 

Operating cash accounts are held in the District's name by several commercial banking institutions. 

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District's 
deposits, in the form of certificates of deposit, money market accounts and checking accounts, may not be 
returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 

Investments 

New Jersey statutes permit the District to purchase the following types of securities: 

a. Bonds and other obligations of the United States or obligations guaranteed by the United States. 

b. Bonds of any Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal National Mortgage 
Agency or of any United States Bank, which have a maturity date not greater than twelve months from the 
date of purchase. 

c. New Jersey Cash Management Fund and New Jersey Asset and Rebate Management Fund. 

As of June 30, 2018, the District's investment balance of $100,216 was in Solar Renewable Energy Certificates 
(SRECs). The District categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair 
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are 
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. 

The District has the following recurring fair value measurement as of June 30, 2018: 

• SRECs in the amount of$ I 00,216 are valued using quoted market prices (Level I inputs). 

New Jersey Cash Management Fund 

In order to maximize liquidity, the District utilizes the New Jersey Cash Management Fund (''NJCMP') as its sole 
investment. The NJCMF is administered by the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury and issues a 
separate report that can be obtained directly from the Department of the Treasury. It invests pooled monies from 
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3. Deposits and Investments (continued) 

New Jersey Cash Management Fund (continued) 

various State and non-State agencies in primarily short-term investments. The pooled shares are equal to the value 
of the District's shares. These investments include: U.S. Treasuries, short-term Commercial Paper, U.S. Agency 
Bonds, Corporate Bonds, and Certificates of Deposit. Agencies that participate in the NJCMF typically earn 
returns that mirror short-term investments rates. Monies can be freely added or withdrawn from the NJCMF on a 
daily basis without penalty. At June 30, 2018, the District's balance was $181,455 and is classified as cash 
equivalents due to its short-term nature and is considered a Level I investment under GASB Statement No. 72. 
The debt instruments in the NJCMF are rated by three national rating agencies. 

All investments in the Fund are governed by the regulations of the Investment Council, which prescribes specific 
standards designed to ensure the quality of investments and to minimize the risks related to investments. In all the 
years of the Division oflnvestment's existence, the Division has never suffered a default of principal or interest on 
any short-term security held by it due to the bankruptcy of a securities issuer; nevertheless, the possibility always 
exists, and for this reason a reserve is being accumulated as additional protection for the "Other-than-State" 
participants. In addition t~ the Council regulations, the Division sets further standards for specific investments 
and monitors the credit of all eligible securities issuers on a regular basis. 

Custodial Credit Risk. Pursuant to GASB 40, the NJCMF, which is a pooled investment, is exempt from 
custodial credit risk exposure. The District does not have a policy for custodial credit risk. 

Credit Risk. The District does not have an investment policy regarding the management of credit risk. GASB 40 
requires that disclosure be made as to the credit rating of all debt security investments except for obligations of the 
U.S. government or investments guaranteed by the U.S. government. 

Interest Rate Risk. The District does not have a policy to limit interest rate risk. The average maturity of the 
District's investment in the NJCMF is less than one year. 

Concentration of Credit Risk: The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one issuer. 
At June 30, 2018, all of the District's investments were invested in NJCMF, except for the SRECs. 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

The following schedule is a summarization of the governmental activities changes in capital assets for the 
year ended June 30, 2018: 

Beginning 
Balance Increases Decreases 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land $ 513681923 
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 5,368,923 
Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Land improvements 22,022,201 $ 64,070 
Buildings and building improvements 324,891,258 1,382,574 
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 2212501885 228011519 $ (124702258) 

Total capital assets being depreciated 369,164,344 4,248,163 (1,470,258) 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land improvements 16,086,060 1,017,696 
Buildings and building improvements 185,422,984 5,838,853 
Machinery, equipment and vehicles 1713851426 8951538 ( I 14541303) 

Total accumulated depreciation 21818941470 727521087 ( I 24541303) 

Total capital assets, being depreciated, 
net I 5022692874 (315031924) (151955) 

Total Governmental activities capital 
assets, net $ I 5516381797 $!315031924} $ (151955} 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows: 

Instruction 
Attendance/social work 
Health services 
Guidance services 
Other support services 
Improvement of instruction 
School library 
Instructional staff training 
General administration 
School administration 
Central services 
Administrative IT 
Required maintenance 
Operation of plant 
Security 
Student transportation 
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities 

Transfers 

$ (21500) 
(2,500) 

(750) 
(750) 

(11750) 

$ (1:750} 

$4,783,356 
7,694 

151,447 
175,118 
586,146 
119,782 
80,084 

8,952 
146,143 
357,669 
102,828 

69,01 
157,766 
545,759 
48,597 

586,845 
$7,752,087 

Ending 
Balance 

$ 513681923 
5,368,923 

22,086,271 
326,273,832 
23:5791646 

371,939,749 

17,103,756 
191,261,837 

1628252911 
22511912504 

1462 7481245 

$1 521 1 171168 
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The following is a summary of business-type changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2018: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Deletions Transfers Balance 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 
Total capital assets not being depreciated 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and building improvements 
Machinery and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land improvements 
Buildings and building improvements 
Machinery and equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 

Total business-type activities capital assets, net 

5. Long-Term Liabilities 

$ 1,421,600 
1,421,600 

486,161 $ 
10,378,076 
2,524,661 

13,388,898 

189,855 
257,384 

66,962 
514,201 

368,308 26,207 
3,505,494 238,260 
2,125,818 64,473 
5,999,620 328,940 
7,389,278 185,621 

$ 8,810,878 $ 185,261 

$ 1,421,600 
1,421,600 

676,016 
10,635,460 

$ (4,100) $ 2,500 2,590,023 
(4,100) 2,500 13,901,499 

394,515 
3,743,754 

(3,417) 2,186,874 
(683) 6,325,143 
(683) 2,500 7,576,356 

$ (683) $ 2,500$ 8,997,956 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the following changes occurred in governmental activities long-term 
liabilities: 

Beginning 
Ending Due within 

Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 
Governmental activities: 

Comiensated absences payable $ 12,739,096 $ 960,552 $ ( 1,368,068! $ 288,775 
Bon s payable 49,080,000 16,710,000 (4,715,000 4,840,000 
Notes payable 1,097,004 ~182,834 182,834 
Premium on bonds 1,554,395 1,301,563 171,543) 204,082 
Deferred pension obligations 842,878 (66,461) 72,166 
OPEB 3,718,675 (487,492) 
Capital leases payable 6 639 890 2 130 000 I 914 322 2 188 105 

Subtotal 75,671, 3 21,102,115 (8,905,72 7,775, 2 
Net pension liability 120,038,158 (29,682,972 
Total governmental activities 

$195,710,096 $ 21,102,115 $(38,588,692) $ 178,223,S 19 $ 7,775,962 long-term liabilities 
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The District expects to liquidate the compensated absences and capital leases with payments made from the 
District's general fund. Bonds and notes payable are expected to be liquidated by expenditures charged to the 
debt service fund. The deferred pension obligations are expected to be paid from budgetary appropriations in the 
general fund. The net pension liability and the OPES will be liquidated with payments from the general fund. 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the District entered into a capital lease in the amount of $2, 130,000 with TD 
Equipment Finance, Inc. for the purpose of purchasing school buses and the acquisition and installation of IT 
equipment. The funds have been deposited into an interest earning escrow account and have not been expended 
as of June 30, 2018. 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the District expended $2,845,573 of prior year unexpended capital lease 
proceeds. 

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the following changes occurred in business-type long-term liabilities 
attributable to the food service enterprise fund: 

Business-type activities: 
Compensated absences 

payable 

Bonds Payable 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 

Ending 
Balance 

Due within 
One Year 

LU0,12s ru2l $ 16_.241 $119,578 $ 31,4ll 

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law or by the voters of the municipality through referendums. 
All bonds are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the 
District are general obligation bonds. 

Principal and interest due on all bonds outstanding is as follows: 

Princi~al Interest Total 
Year ending June 30: 

2019 $ 5,660,000 $ 2,453,316 $ 8,113,316 
2020 5,875,000 1,944,666 7,819,666 
2021 5,125,000 1,761,798 6,886,798 
2022 5,785,000 1,558,165 7,343,165 
2023 6,015,000 1,352,106 7,367,106 
2024-2028 19,390,000 3,599,694 22,989,694 
2029 13,225,000 3,102,297 16,327,297 

$ 61,075,000 $ 1 S, 772,042 $ 76,847,042 

59 



Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

5. Long-Term Liabilities (continued) 

Bonds Payable (continued) 

Bonds payable at June 30, 2018 are comprised of the following issues: 

$15,790,000, 2009 refunding bonds, due in annual installments ranging from $1,275,000 to $1,485,000 
through July 15, 2022 at interest rates ranging from 3.50% to 4.00%. The final payment on the defeased 
bonds was made on July 15, 2014. 

$17,635,000, 2012 school refunding bonds, due in annual installments ranging from $1,125,000 to 
$I, 710,000 through July 15, 2028 at an interest rate of 4.00%. As of June 30, 2018, the amount of defeased 
bonds outstanding is $15,789,000. 

$20,365,000, 2013 school refunding bonds, due in annual installments ranging from $950,000 to $4,630,000 
through July 15, 2024 at interest rates ranging from 1.67% to 3.12%. As of June 30, 2018, the amount of 
defeased bonds outstanding is $16,610,000. 

$6,055,000, 2016 school refunding bonds, due in annual installments ranging from $1,490,000 to $1,550,000 
through January 15, 2021 at an interest rate of 1.40%. As of June 30, 2018, the amount of defeased bonds 
outstanding is $4,520,000. 

On December 20, 2017, the District issued School Energy Savings Obligation Refunding Bonds in the 
amount of $16, 710,000 to finance · energy conservation measures pursuant to an Energy Savings 
Improvement Plan ("ESIP") at interest rates ranging from 3 .125% to S .00%, due in annual installments 
ranging from $385,000 to $1,410,000 through December 15, 2038. 

Notes Payable-CREBS 

Principal and interest due on notes payable outstanding is as follows: 

Princi~al Interest Total 
Year ending June 30: 

2019 $ 182,834 $ 9,461 $ 192,295 
2020 182,834 7,359 190,193 
2021 182,834 5,256 188,090 
2022 182,834 3,154 185,988 
2023 182,834 1,051 183,885 

$ 914,170 $ 26,281 $ 940,451 
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Deferred Pension Obligation 

Principal and interest due on deferred pension obligation liability is as follows: 

Princieal Interest 
Year ending June 30: 

2019 $ 72,166 $ 64,768 
2020 78,360 58,574 
2021 85,086 51,848 
2022 92,390 44,544 
2023 100,320 36,614 
2024-2026 348,095 55,257 

$ 776,417 $ 311,605 

Capital Leases Payable 

Total 

$ 136,934 
136,934 
136,934 
136,934 
136,934 
403,352 

$ 1,088,022 

The District is leasing various items under several capital leases. The following is a schedule of the future 
minimum lease payments and the net present value of the net minimum payments at June 30, 2018: 

Princieal Interest 
Year ending June 30: 

2019 $ 2,188,105 $ 123,403 $ 
2020 1,790,700 67,690 
2021 1,468,000 57,023 
2022 959,002 29,295 
2023 449,761 6,825 

$ 6,855,568 $ 284,236 $ 

Assets capitalized through capital leases at June 30, 2018 are as follows: 

Machinery and equipment 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Total 

$3,617,530 
(237,957) 

$3,379,573 

Total 

2,311,508 
1,858,390 
1,525,023 

988,297 
456,586 

7,139,804 
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Operating Leases 

The District leases copier equipment. The lease expense amounted to $34,394 for fiscal year 2018. The 
future minimum rental payments under the operating lease agreements total $39,993 agreement over the 
remaining life of the lease: 

6. Pension Plans 

Description of Systems 

Year ending June 30: 

2019 
2020 
2021 

$24,834 
12,477 
2,682 

$ 39,993 

Substantially all of the District's employees participate in one of the following contributory defined benefit 
public employee retirement systems which have been established by State statute: the Teachers' Pension and 
Annuity Fund (TPAF) or the Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS). These systems are sponsored 
and administered by the State of New Jersey. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund Retirement System 
is considered a cost-sharing multiple-employer plan, with a special funding situation, as under current statute, 
all employer contributions are made by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system's 
other related non-contributing employers. The Public Employees' Retirement System is considered a cost­
sharing multiple-employer plan. 

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 

The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established in January 1955 under the provisions of 
N.J.S.A. ISA:66 to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time public 
school employees in the State. Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after 
IO years of service for pension benefits and 25 years for health care coverage. Age eligibility and benefit 
provisions were affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89, P.L. 2008, Chapter 1, P.L. 2010, and 
Chapter 78, P.L. 2011. 

Members are classified into one of five tiers dependent upon the date of their enrollment. Tier I, 2 and 3 
members are eligible to retire at age 60, 60, and 62, respectively, with an annual benefit generally determined 
to be 1/SSth of the average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years' compensation for each 
year of membership during years of credited service. 

62 



Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

6. Pension Plans (continued) 

Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62 and 65, respectively, with an annual benefit generally 
determined to be 1160th of the average annual compensation for the highest five fiscal years' compensation 
for each year of membership during years of credited service. 

Anyone who retires early and is under their respective tier's retirement age receives retirement benefits as 
calculated in the above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate in accordance with applicable New Jersey 
Statute based upon their tier. 

Public Employee's Retirement System 

The Public Employees' Retirement System was established in January 1955 under the provisions of 
N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage including post-retirement health care to substantially all full time 
employees of the State or any county, municipality, school Board or public agency provided the employee is 
not a member of another State-administered retirement system. Age eligibility and benefit provisions were 
affected by Chapters 92 and 103, P.L. 2007, Chapter 89, P.L. 2008, Chapter I, P.L. 2010, and Chapter 78, P.L. 
2011. Members are classified into one of five tiers dependent upon the date of their enrollment. Tier I, 2 and 3 
members are eligible to retire at age 60, 60, and 62, respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be 
I/551h of the average annual compensation for the highest three fiscal years' compensation for each year of 
membership during years of credited service. Tier 4 and 5 members are eligible to retire at age 62 and 65, 
respectively with an annual benefit generally determined to be l/601h of the average annual compensation for the 
highest five fiscal years' compensation for each year of membership during years of credited service. Anyone who 
retires early and is under their respective tier's retirement age receives retirement benefits as calculated in the 
above mentioned formulas but at a reduced rate in accordance with applicable New Jersey Statute based upon 
their tier. 

The State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, issued publicly 
available financial reports that include the financial statements and required supplementary information for 
TPAF and PERS. The financial reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New Jersey, Department 
of the Treasury, Division of Pensions and Benefits, P.O. Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey 08625-0295. 

Funding Policy 

The contribution policy is set by New Jersey State Statutes and contributions are required by active members 
and contributing members. Plan member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New 
Jersey legislation. Under the provisions of Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, employee contribution rates for TPAF and 
PERS increased from 5.5% to 6.5% of employees' annual compensation. An additional increase is to be phased in 
through July 2018 that will bring the total pension contribution rate to 7.5% of employees' annual compensation. 
Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both the TPAF and PERS. The 
actuarially determined contribution includes funding for noncontributory death benefits and post-retirement 
medical premiums. Under current statute the Board is a non-contributing employer of the TPAF. 
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During the year ended June 30, 2018, the State of New Jersey contributed $22,493,020 to the TPAF for on­
behalf medical benefits, long-term disability insurance and pension contributions on behalf of the District. 
Also, in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66, the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $6,765,533 
during the year ended June 30, 2018 for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF 
members as calculated on their base salaries. These amounts have been included in the government-wide 
and fund financial statements. 

The District's actuarially determined contributions to PERS for each of the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017, 
and 2016 were $3,595,798, $3,600,625, and $3,477,959 respectively, equal to the required contributions for 
each year. 

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of PERS and 
additions to/deductions from PERS fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by PERS. For the purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are 
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair 
value. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to Pensions 

Public Employee's Retirement System (f ERSJ 

At June 30, 2018, the District reported a liability of $90,355, l 86 for its proportionate share of net pension 
liability. The net pension liability was measured. as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation July 1, 2016, which was rolled 
forward to June 30, 2017. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of 
the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all 
participating school districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the District's proportion was 
0.3881503012 percent, which was a decrease of 0.0171494387 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 
2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized full accrual pension expense of $5,888,05 I in the 
government-wide financial statements. At June 30, 2018, the District reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources: 
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Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences between 
District contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 

District contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 

$ 

Deferred 

Outflows 
of Resources 

2,127,553 
18,203,456 

615,258 

1,192,451 

3 719 306 

Deferred 
Inflows 

of Resources 

$ 18,136,719 

4,207,244 

$ 25,858,024 $ 22,343,963 

$3,719,306 is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from school district 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended June 30: 
2019 $ 1,550,846 
2020 2,714,346 
2021 1,232,762 
2022 (3,396,589) 
2023 (2,306,610) 

$ !205,245) 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The collective total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of July 1, 2016, which was rolled forward to June 30, 2017. This actuarial valuation used the 
following actuarial assumptions: 

65 



Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

6. Pension Plans (continued) 

Inflation rate 

Salary increase through 2026 

Thereafter 

Investment rate of return 

2.25% 

1.65 -4.15% 

based on age 

2.65 - 5.15% 

based on age 

7.00% 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014. It is likely that future experience will not 
exactly conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions, 
the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience deviates, the 
larger the impact on future financial statements. 

Mortality Rates 

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Preretirement Mortality Table for male and female 
active participants. For State employees, mortality tables are set back 4 years for males and females. For 
local employees, mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for females. In addition, the 
tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach 
based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Post-retirement mortality rates were based 
on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (set back I year for males and 
femal~s) for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and a one-year static projection based 
on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of 
former members provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a 
generational approach based on the plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability retirement 
rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality Table (set back 3 years 
for males and set forward I year for females). 

Long-Term Rate of Return 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.0% at June 30, 
2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of 
Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term 
expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of 
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate 
of return by weighting the expecting future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage ancl 
by adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class included 
in PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table: 
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Long-Tenn 

Target Expected Real Rate 
Asset Class Allocation of Return 

Absolute return/risk mitigation 5.00% 5.51% 
Cash equivalents 5.50% 1.00% 
U.S. Treasuries 3.00% 1.87% 
Investment grade credit 10.00% 3.78% 
Public high yield 2.50% 6.82% 
Global diversified credit 5.00% 7.10% 
Credit oriented hedge funds 1.00% 6.60% 
Debt related private equity 2.00% 10.63% 
Debt related real estate 1.00% 6.61% 
Private real asset 2.50% 11.83% 
Equity related real estate 6.25% 9.23% 
U.S. Equity 30.00% 8.19% 
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 11.50% 9.00% 
Emerging markets equity 6.50% 11.64% 
Buyouts/ venture capital 8.25% 13.08% 

100.00% 

Discount rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00% as of June 30, 2017 and 3.98% as of 
June 30, 2016. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-tenn expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 based on the 
Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal 
bonds with an average rating of AN Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to detennine the 
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution 
rates and that contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent 
fiscal year. The State employer contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions and the local 
employers contributed 100% of their actuarially detennined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the 
plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of 
current plan member through 2040. Therefore, the long-tenn expected rate of return on plan investments was 
applied to projected benefit payments through 2040 and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected 
benefit payments after that date in detennining the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability lo changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability as of June 30, 2017 
calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the District's proportionate share of the 
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net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower 
(4.00 percent) or I-percentage-point higher (6.00 percent) than the current rate: 

At I% 
Decrease 
(4.00%) 

At Current 
Discount Rate 

(5.00%) 

$ 112,091,740 $ 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

90,355, 186 $ 

At 1% 
Increase 
(6.00%) 

72,245,942 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
financial report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees Retirement System. 

Additional Information 

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred inflows of resources 
Net pension liability 

District's Proportion 

$ 
$ 
$ 

6,424,455,842 
5,700,625,981 

23,278,401,588 

0.3881503012% 

Collective pension expense for the Local Group for the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 is 
$1,694,305,613. 

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pension through 
the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at July I, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is 5.48, 
5.57, 5.12, and 6.44 years, respectively. 

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund ffPAF) - Special Funding Situation 

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the State in 
accordance with N.J.S.A. 18:66-33. Therefore, these local participating employers are considered to be in a 
special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer 
contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute directly to the plan (except for 
employer specific financed amounts), there is no net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to 
report in the financial statements of the local participating employers. However, the notes to the financial 
statements of the local participating employers must disclose the portion of the nonemployer contributing 
entities' total proportionate share of the net pension liability that is associated with the local participating 
employer. 
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The State's proportionate share of the TPAF net pension liability associated with the District as of June 30, 
2017 was $608,443,545. The District's proportionate share was $0. 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate 
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July I, 2016, which was rolled 
forward to June 30, 2017. The State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the 
District was based on a projection of the State's long-term contributions to the pension plan associated with 
the District relative to the projected contributions by the State associated with all participating school 
districts, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, the State's proportionate share of the TPAF net pension 
liability associated with the District was 0.9024191711 percent, which was an increase of .0053014428 from 
its proportion measured as of June 30, 2016. 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized on-behalf pension expense and revenue in the 
government-wide financial statements of $42,149,888 for contributions incurred by the State. 

Actuarial assumptions 

The actuarial valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 

Mortality Rates 

Inflation rate 
Salary increases: 

2012-2021 

Thereafter 

Investment rate of return 

2.25% 
Varies based 
on experience 

Varies based 
on experience 

7.00% 

Pre-retirement, post-retirement and disabled mortality rates were based on the experience ofTPAF members 
reflecting mortality improvement on a generational basis based on a 60-year average of Social Security date 
from 1953 to 2013. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the July I, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July I, 2012 to June 30, 2015. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments (7.00% at June 
30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of 
Investments and Divisions of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term 
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expected rate of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate ranges of 
expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) 
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate 
of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage by 
adding expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included 
in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 
Absolute return/risk mitigation 
Cash equivalents 
U.S. Treasuries 
Investment grade credit 
Public high yield 
Global diversified credit 
Credit oriented hedge funds 
Debt related private equity 
Debt related real estate 
Private real asset 
Equity related real estate 
U.S. Equity 
Non-U.S. developed markets equity 
Emerging markets equity 
Buyouts/venture capital 

Discount Rate 

Target Long-Tenn Expected 
Allocation Real Rate of Return 

5.00% 5.51% 
5.50% 1.00% 
3.00% 1.87% 
10.00% 3.78% 
2.50% 6.82% 
5.00% 7.10% 
1.00% 6.60% 
2.00% 10.63% 
1.00% 6.61% 
2.50% 11.83% 
6.25% 9.23% 

30.00% 8.19% 
11.50% 9.00% 
6.50% 11.64% 
8.25% 13.08% 

100.00% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 4.25% as of June 30, 2017 and 3.22% as of 
June 30, 2016. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term rate of return on pension plan 
investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of3.58% as of June 30, 2017 based on the Bond Buyer GO 
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an 
average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed 
that contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that 
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The 
State contributed 40% of the actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan 
member through 2036. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to 
projected benefit payments through 2036, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit 
payments after that date in determining the total pension liability. 
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Sensitivity of the Stale 's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District to 
changes in the discount rate 

The following presents the State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the District 
as of June 30, 2017 calculated using the discount rate as disclosed above as well as what the State's 
proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the· District would be if it were calculated 
using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (3.25 percent) or I-percentage-point higher (5.25 
percent) than the current rate: 

State's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability 
associated with the District 

Pension plan fiduciary net position 

$ 

At I% 
Decrease 
(3.25%) 

722,850,017 $ 

At Current 
Discount Rate 

(4.25%) 

At1% 
Increase 
(5.25%) 

608.443,545 $ 514,194,996 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
TPAF financial report. 

Additional Information 

Collective balances of the Local Group at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred inflows of resources 
Net pension liability 

State's proportionate share associated with 
the District 

$ 
$ 

$ 

14,251,854,934 
11,807,238,433 
67,423,605,859 

0.9024191711% 

Collective pension expense for the plan for the measurement period ended June 30, 2017 is $4,682,493,081. 

The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pension through 
the pension plan (active and inactive employees) determined at July I, 2017, 2016, 2015 and 2014 is 8.3, 8.3, 
8.3, and 8.5 years, respectively. 
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7. Post-Retirement Benefits 

State Plan 

Plan description and benefits provided 

The School District contributes to the New Jersey State Health Benefits Program (the "SHBP"), a multiple­
employer defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan administered by the State of New Jersey Division 
of Pension and Benefits. SHBP provide medical, prescription drug, mental health/substance abuse and 
Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered dependents. The State Health Benefits Program 
Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated, Title 52, Article 17.25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation 
and administration of the program are found in Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. 
The State of New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues a publicly available financial report that 
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for SHBP. That report may be 
obtained by writing to Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295. 

The State's contributions to the SHBP Fund for TPAF retirees' post-retirement benefits on behalf of the District 
for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were $8,819,992, $8,457,625 and $8,552,579 respectively, 
which equaled the required contributions for each year. 

P.L. 1987, c.384 and P.L. 1990, c.6 required Teachers' Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) and the Public 
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits for those state 
employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement. P .L. 2007, 
c. I 03 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and 
PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement 
medical benefits for retired state employees and retired educational employees. The cost of these benefits is 
funded through contributions by the State in accordance with P .L. 1994, c.62. Funding of post-retirement 
medical benefits changed from a pre-funding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in Fiscal Year 1994. 
As the employer contributions for local government education employers are legally required to be funded by 
the State, this constitutes a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement No. 75 (GASB 75) and 
the State is treated as a non-employer contributing entity. 

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable P.L. 1992, c.126, which provides employer paid health 
benefits to members of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program (APB) who retired from a board of 
education or county college with 25 years of service. 

The School Employees Health Benefits Program (SEHBP) Act is found in New Jersey Statutes Annotated, 
Title 52, Article 17 .25 et.seq. Rules governing the operation and administration of the program are found in 
Title 17, Chapter 9 of the New Jersey Administrative Code. 
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7. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued) 

State Plan (continued) 

The State provides OPEB benefits through a defined benefit OPEB plan that is not administered through a 
trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the 
criteria in paragraph 4 ofGASB 75. 

Tola/ OPEB Liabilily 

The net OPEB liability from New Jersey's plan is $53,639,841,858. 

Changes in the District's Total OPEB Liability 

Below represents the changes in the District's total OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

Total OPEB Liability 
BeginningTotalOPEB Liability, June 30, 2016 $ 713,403,660 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Changes of assumptions 
Member contributions 
Gross benefit payments 

Net changes 
Ending Total OPEB Liability, June 30, 2017 

Employees covered by benefit terms 

The following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 

Local Education 

Active P Ian Members 

$ 

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 
Inactive Plan Members Entitled to but Not Yet Receiving Benefits 
Total Plan Members 

23,853,635 
20,804,270 

(85,869,098) 
560,794 

( 15.229,642) 

(55,880,041) 

657,523,619 

June 30, 2017 

223,747 
142,331 

366,078 

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal obligation to make employer 
contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS and TPAF participants. The District's proportionate share 
percentage determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero percent. 
Accordingly, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective net OPEB liability on the Statement 
of Net Position. The State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability associated with the District as of 
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7. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued) 

State Plan (continued) 

June 30, 2017 was $657,523,619. Additional information can be obtained from the State of New Jersey's 
comprehensive annual financial report. 

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs 

The total OPES liability in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation reported by the State in the State's most 
recently issued CAFR was determined using the following actuarial assumptions and other inputs, applied to 
all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified. 

Inflation rate 
Salary increase through 2026 

Thereafter 

TPAF 
2.50% 

1.55 - 4.55% 
based on years of service 

2.00 - 5.45% 
based on years of service 

PERS 
2.50% 

2.15-4.15% 
based on age 
3.15 - 5.15% 
based on age 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of the actual 
experience studies for the periods July I, 2012 -June 30, 2015 and July I, 2011 -June 30, 2014 for TPAF 
and PERS, respectively. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate for June 30, 2017 and 2016 was 3.58% and 2.85%, respectively. This represents the 
municipal bond return rate as chosen by the Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal 
Bond Index, which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa 
or higher. 

Mortality Rates 

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Headcount-Weighted Healthy Employee 
Male/Female Mortality table for males or females, as appropriate, with adjustments for mortality 
improvements based on MP- 2017 scale. Postretirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 
Headcount-Weighted Healthy Annuitant Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement 
projections from the central year using the MP-2017 scale. Disability mortality was based on the RP-2014 
Headcount-Weighted Disabled Male/Female mortality table with fully generational improvement projections 
from the central year using the MP-2017 scale. 
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State Plan (continued) 

Health Care Trend Assumptions 

For pre-Medicare preferred provider organization (PPO) medical benefits, this amount initially is 5.9% and 
decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. For self-insured post-65 PPO medical benefits, the 
trend rate is 4.5%. For health maintenance organization (HMO) medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 
5.9% and decreases to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after nine years. For prescription drug benefits, the initial 
trend rate is I 0.5% decreasing to a 5.0% long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B 
reimbursement, the trend rate is 5.0%. The Medicare Advantage trend rate is 4.5% and will continue in all 
future years. 

The following represents sensitivity of the State's proportionate share of the net OP EB liability associated 
with the District to changes in the discount rate and healthcare cost trend rate. 

The following presents the State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability associated with the District 
as of June 30, 2017 calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage-point lower (2.58%) or !­
percentage-point higher (4.58%) than the current discount rate: 

At 1% At current At 1% 
decrease discount rate increase 
(2.58%) (3.58%) (4.58%) 

Net OPEB Liability (Allocable to the District 
and the responsibility of the State) $ 780,527,855 $ 657 ,523,S 19 $ 559,955,311 

The following presents the State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability associated with the District 
as of June 30, 2017 calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is I-percentage-point lower or !­
percentage-point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rate: 

Net OPEB Liability (Allocable to the District 

At 1% 

decrease 

Healthcare Cost 

Trend Rates 

At 1% 

increase 

and the responsibility of the State) $ 540,749,532 $ 657,523,519 $ 812,598,000 

75 



Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

7. Post-Retirement Benefits (continued) 

State Plan (continued) 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized on-behalf OPEB expense and revenue in the 
government-wide financial statements of $35, 164,0 l 5 for OPEB expenses incurred by the State. 

Collective balances of the Education Group at June 30, 2017 are as follows: 

Deferred outflows of resources 
Deferred inflows of resources 
Collective OPEB Expense 

District's Proportion 

Special Funding Situation 

$ 
$ 

$ 

99,843,255 
6.443,612,287 
3,348,490,523 

1.23% 

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required to be funded by the State, 
therefore, the District records an expense and corresponding revenue for its respective share of total OPEB 
expense and revenue attributable to the State of New Jersey. 

Toms River Regional Schools Post-Retirement Health Plan 

Plan Description 

The District provides postemployment medical benefits, including prescription drug coverage, and vision and 
dental care, in accordance with state statute, to participating retirees and their beneficiaries. As of July I, 
2013, the valuation date, approximately 20 retirees meet the eligibility requirements set forth in P.L. 1992, 
cl26. The District sponsors and participates in a single-employer defined benefit OPEB plan. The OPEB 
plan is administered by the District and does not issue a stand-alone financial statement. 

The obligations of the plan members and the District are established by action of the District pursuant to 
applicable collective bargaining and employment agreements. The required contribution rates of the 
employer and members vary depending on the applicable agreement. The plan is closed to new entrants. 

Employees covered by benefit terms 

At June 30, 2018, there are eighteen inactive employees currently receiving benefits under the plan. There 
are no active employees or inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits. 
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Toms River Regional Schools Post-retirement Health Plan (continued) 

Total OPEB Liability 

The net OPEB liability from District's plan is $3,231,183. 

Actuarial assumptions and other inputs 

The total OPEB liability of$3,231,I83 was reported in the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation prepared by the 
District's actuary, Mernard Consulting, Inc., which was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions and other inputs, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Discount rate 
Healthcare cost trend rates - Medical 

2.98% 
3.60% 

Healthcare cost trend rates - Pharmacy 7.50% 
Healthcare cost trend rates - Standard Dental 4.10% 
Healthcare cost trend rates - Vision 2.10% 

The discount rate utilized during the June 30, 2018 measurement period was 2.98%. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial 
experience study for the period July I, 2017 through June 29, 2018. 

Changes in the total OPEB liability reported by the Menard Consulting, Inc.: 

Balance at June 30, 2017 
Changes for the year: 
Interest 
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 
Employer contributions 
Changes in assumptions or other 

Net changes 
Balance at June 30, 2018 

Total OPEB Liability 
$ 3,718,675 

112,332 
(276,178) 
(259,611) 
(64,035) 

$ (487,492) 
$ 3.231,183 

Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 3.13% in 2017 to 2.98% 
in 2018. 
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Toms River Regional Schools Post-retirement Health Plan (continued) 

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the District recognized negative OPEB expense of $227,881. 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District for school board retirees, as well as what the 
District's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is I-percentage -point 
lower (1.98%) or I-percentage-point higher (3.98%) than the current discount rate: 

Net OP EB liability $ 

At!% 
Decrease 
(1.98%) 

At Current 
Discount Rate 

(2.98%) 

3,502,718 $ 3,231,183 $ 

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare trend rates. 

Atlo/o 
Increase 
(3.98%) 

2,995,351 

The following presents the total OPEB liability of the District for school board retirees, as well as what the 
District's total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare trend rates that are I­
percentage -point lower (2.60%) or I-percentage-point higher (4.60%) than the current discount rate: 

At I% 
Decrease 
(2.60%) 

At Current 
Healthcare Trend Rate 

(3.60%) 

Net OPEB liability $ 2,997,245 $ 3,231,183 $ 

8. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

At1% 
Increase 
(4.60%) 

3,494,692 

The following interfund balances were recorded on the various balance sheets as of June 30, 2018: 

Fund 

General Fund 
Special Revenue Fund 
Capital Projects Fund 
Day Care Center Enterprise Fund 

Interfund 
Receivable 

$124,180 

$124,180 

Interfund 
Payable 

$ 8,693 
79,457 
36,030 

$124,180 
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The general fund interfund receivable is due from the special revenue fund in the amount of $8,693 and 
$36,030 from the day care center enterprise fund, both for a transfer during 2017-2018 to cover a cash deficit 
that is due back to the general fund. The general fund interfund receivable from the capital proejcts fund 
represents the interest earned in the capital projects fund to offset the cost of debt. 

All interfunds are expected to be repaid within one year. 

9. Transfers - Reconciliation 

The following presents a reconciliation of transfers made during the 2018 fiscal year: 

Transfers Transfers 
In Out 

General Fund $ 191,737 $455,910 
Special Revenue Fund 4,000 
Capital Projects Fund 79,457 
Debt Service Fund 455,910 
Food Service Enterprise Fund 4,000 
Bennett Complex Enterprise Fund 20,972 
R W J Barnabas Health 

Arena Enterprise Fund 91 308 
$651,647 $651,647 

The transfer between the general fund and the debt service fund represents the transfer of funds from the 
capital reserve account to fund debt service expenditures. The transfer from the RWJ Barnabas Health Arena 
Enterprise Fund to the General Fund of $91,308 and the transfer from the Bennett Complex Enterprise Fund 
to the general fund of $20,972 represent a return on investment transferred to the General Fund. The transfer 
from the Special Revenue Fund to the Food Service Enterprise Fund represents the transfer of assets 
purchased with grant funding in the Special Revenue Fund which will be utilized and carried as a capital 
asset in the Food Service Enterprise Fund. The transfer from the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund 
represents the transfer of interest earned in the Capital Projects Fund to offset the cost of debt. 

10. Economic Dependency 

The District receives support from federal and state governments. A significant reduction in the level of 
support, if this were to occur, would have an effect on the.District's programs and activities. 
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The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; 
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. 

During the 2018 fiscal year, the District was covered by commercial insurance, as well as being self-insured 
for workers' compensation ($650,000 deductible/limit per occurrence), general and auto liability ($300,000 
deductible/limit per occurrence) and student accident ($25,000 deductible/limit per occurrence). 

Health Insurance-Self Insured 

The District is self-insured for health benefits, which provides for the District's employees' health benefits. There 
is a stop-loss policy for $300,000 per covered individual. Under the program, annual rates are established with the 
insurance carrier based on expenses, projected claims and a margin for fluctuation, thereby providing a predictable 
monthly premium. The claims are filed with and paid by Meritain and on a monthly basis Meritain bills the 
District for actual claims paid. 

This activity is reported in the government-wide financial statements and includes an accrual for health insurance 
claims incurred but not reported in the amount of $5,982,000 at June 30, 2018. This represents the amount 
estimated by categorizing the various claims and reviewing past history primarily on actual claims during the 
previous fiscal years, for which information was available and supplemental information with respect to certain 
other individual claims and proceedings. The stated liability is the District's best estimate based on currently 
known information and application of the foregoing procedures and funds the liability with annual appropriations 
in the general fund. 

Changes in the funds incurred but not reported claims liability amount for health insurance for the fiscal years 
2018, 2017 and 2016 were: 

Current Year 
Beginning Claims and Claim Balance 

Fiscal ofYear Changes in Payments/ at End 
Year Liability Estimates Reductions of Year 

2017-18 $5,760,000 $46,172,368 $45,950,368 $5,982,000 
2016-17 5,542,952 43,901,718 43,684,670 5,760,000 
2015-16 5,702,456 47,103,425 47,262,929 5,542,952 

Self-Insured Workers' Compensation/General and Auto Liability/Employment Practice/Legal 
Liability/Student Accident 

The District is self-insured for amounts limited to between $25,000 and $650,000 per occurrence, depending 
upon the type and year the liability was incurred for certain types of claims and any excess is covered by 
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11. Risk Management ( continued) 

excess insurance coverage. The liability below was estimated by an actuary categorizing the various claims 
and reviewing past history based primarily on actual settlements by type of claim during the preceding fiscal 
years, for which information was available and supplemental information with respect to certain other 
individual claims and proceedings. The stated liability is the District's best estimate based on currently 
known information and application of the foregoing procedures. 

Changes in the case reserves and incurred but not reported claims liability amount for workers' compensation, 
general and auto liability, employment practice, legal liability and student accident claims for the fiscal years 
ending 2018, 2017 and 2016 were: 

Current Year 
Beginning Claims and Claim Balance 

Fiscal ofYear Changes in Payments/ atEnd 
Year Liability Estimates Reductions ofYear 

2017-18 $7,988,253 $5,130,927 $3,860,238 $9,258,942 
2016-17 7,561,879 2,668,518 2,242,144 7,988,253 
2015-16 6,363,322 3,552,388 2,353,831 7,561,879 

A complete schedule of insurance can be found in the Statistical Section of this Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and 
no settlements have exceeded insurance coverage over the past three years. 

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance 

The District has elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under the "Benefit 
Reimbursement Method." Under this plan, the District is required to reimburse the New Jersey 
Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its former employees and charged to its account with the 
State. The District is billed quarterly for amounts due to the State. 

The following is a summary of District contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State 
for benefits paid and the ending balance of the District's unemployment trust fund for the past three years: 

Interest on Ending 
Fiscal Year Investments Contributions Amount Paid Balance 

2017-18 $ 175 $ 407,100 $ 244,090 $5,778,380 
2016-17 73 397,310 309,752 5,615,195 
2015-16 32 379,841 319,268 5,527,564 

81 



Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

12. Deferred Compensation 

The District offers its employees a choice of various deferred compensation plans created in accordance with 
Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permit 
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plans are not 
available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan 
administrators are as follows: 

AIGNalic 
Tom Seely Agency 
Metlife 
Discovery Financial 

13. Restricted Assets 

Lincoln Investment Planning 
Asset Management Investment Planning 
Siracusa Benefits Program 
Legend Group/NEA Program 

AXA Equitable 
McGuckin Financial 
Travelers Citistreet 

The District has restricted certain assets to offset the capital reserve, maintenance reserve and emergency 
reserve fund balances in the general fund in the amount of $5,206,098, $7,196,820 and $709,865, 
respectively. The District also has restricted cash held with fiscal agent in the general fund in the amount of 
$2,283,408, which represents proceeds not yet expended from capital leases entered into through June 30, 
2018 and $17,224,814 in the capital projects fund which represents funds not yet expended on the Energy 
Savings Improvement Plan. 

14. Capital Reserve Account 

A capital reserve account was established by the District's Board of Education by inclusion in September of 
2000 for the accumulation of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The 
capital reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund 
annual budget. Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the District's 
approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of the LRFP to the Department, a district 
may increase the balance in the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget 
certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at year end (June I to June 30) of any unanticipated 
revenue or unexpended line items of appropriation amounts, or both. A district may also appropriate 
additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either by a separate proposal at 
budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant to N.J.S.A. 
19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14. l(g), the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the local 
support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP. 
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The activity of the capital reserve for the July I, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows: 

Beginning balance, June 30, 2017 
Budget withdrawal 
Interest earnings 
Deposits: 

Unused capital outlay funds 
Ending balance, June 30, 2018 

$ 5,874,517 
(755,910) 

10,500 

103,991 
$ 5,206,098 

The June 30, 2018 balance in the capital reserve account did not exceed the local support costs of 
uncompleted capital projects. The District has budgeted $430,000 of the June 30, 2018 capital reserve 
balance in its 2018-19 fiscal year budget. 

15. Maintenance Reserve Account 

A maintenance reserve account was established by the Toms River Regional School District during the 2003-2004 
school year for the accumulation of funds for use as maintenance expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The 
maintenance reserve account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund 
annual budget. 

The maintenance reserve account is used to accumulate funds for the required maintenance of a facility in 
accordance with the EFCFA (N.J.S.A. 18A: 7G-9) as amended by P.L. 2004, c. 73 (S1701). Districts may only 
increase the balance in the maintenance reserve account by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget 
certified for taxes (N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.2) or by deposit of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item 
appropriation by board resolution at year end. The board resolution for deposit at year end into a maintenance 
reserve account must be made between June I and June 30 of the budget year. 

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the July I, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows: 

Beginning balance, June 30, 2017 
Budget withdrawal 
Interest earnings 
Deposits: 

Approved by June 2018 resolution 
Ending balance, June 30, 2018 

$ 6,687,720 
(2,000,000) 

9,100 

2,500,000 
$ 7,196,820 

The balance in the maintenance reserve does not exceed four percent of the replacement cost of the school 
district's school facilities for the current year at June 30, 2018. The District has budgeted $2,600,000 of the 
June 30, 2018 maintenance reserve balance in its 2018-19 fiscal year budget as a result of the reduction of 
state aid subsequent to the 2018-19 budget adoption. 
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An emergency reserve account was established by the District during the 2006-2007 school year for the 
accumulation of funds for use as emergency expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The emergency reserve 
account is maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget. The 
emergency reserve account is used to accumulate funds in accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-41c(l) to finance 
unanticipated general fund expenditures required for a thorough and efficient education. Unanticipated means 
reasonable unforeseeable and shall not include additional costs caused by poor planning. The maximum balance 
permitted at any time in this reserve is the greater of $250,000 or I percent of the general fund budget not to 
exceed $1 million. Deposits may be made to the emergency reserve account by the board resolution at year end of 
any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line item appropriation or both. The department has defined year end 
for the purpose of depositing surplus into reserve accounts as an amount approved by the district board of 
education between June I and June 30. Withdrawals from the reserve require the approval of the Commissioner 
unless the withdrawal is necessary to meet an increase in total health care costs in excess of 4 percent. 

The activity of the emergency reserve for the July I, 2017 to June 30, 2018 fiscal year is as follows: 

Beginning balance, June 30, 2017 
Interest earnings 
Ending balance, June 30, 2018 

17. Contingent Liabilities 

$ 707,415 
2,450 

$ 709,865 

The District participates in numerous state and federal grant programs, which are governed by various rules 
and regulations of the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied with the 
rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the 
collectability of any related receivable at June 30, 2018 may be impaired. In the opinion of the District's 
management, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the rules and 
regulations or final eligible cost requirements governing the respective grants or funding; therefore, no 
provisions have been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements for such contingencies. 

The District is involved in several claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations. In the opinion of the 
administration and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse 
effect on the financial position of the Board. However, certain cases have a high probability of an 
unfavorable outcome. Therefore, an accrual of $1,343,198 has been recorded in the governmental funds to 
address any litigation matters that pertain to fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. 

18. Commitments 

The District has contractual commitments at June 30, 2018 to various vendors, which are recorded in the 
general fund as fund balance assigned to other purposes in the amount of $3,003,55 I and is included in the 
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18. Commitments (continued) 

assigned-other purposes fund balance of $1,763,474 and $3,701,558 in the capital projects fund included in 
restricted fund balance of $16,853,314. 

19. Deferred Pension Obligation 

In 2009, the State of New Jersey permitted School Districts to defer up to 50% of their contributions due in 
2009. The District elected this option, resulting in a deferral of $1,144,755, which has been reported in the 
District's long-term liabilities section. The balance as of June 30, 2018 is $776,417. 

20. Extraordinary Item 

The former superintendent for the District was ordered to pay $4,336,988 in restitution to the School District. 
The District has received $4,142,988 of these funds through June 30, 2018, which includes $7,616 received 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. The $7,616 received in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 has 
been recorded as an extraordinary item. Applicable authorities and District attorneys' are vigorously 
pursuing the remaining funds owed to the District. The remaining balance has not been recorded in the 
financial statements and will not be recorded until the funds are released and received by the District. 

21. Tax Abatements 

As defined by the GASB, a tax abatement is an agreement between a government and an individual or entity 
in which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity promises to 
subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic development or otherwise benefits the 
government or its citizens. However, the county or municipality in which the school district is situated may 
have entered into tax abatement agreements, and that potential must be disclosed in these financial 
statements. If the county or municipality entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not 
directly affect the school district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A. 54:4-76 require 
that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other taxpayers and remitted to the school 
district. 

For a local school district board of education or board of school estimate that has elected to raise their 
minimum tax levy using the required local share provision at N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-S(b), the loss of revenue 
resulting from the municipality or county having entered into a tax abatement agreement is indeterminate due 
to the complex nature of the calculation of required local share performed by the New Jersey Department of 
Education based upon district property value and wealth. 

The Township of Toms River provides for long-term tax exemptions, as authorized by New Jersey State 
Statutes. N.J.S.A. 40A:20-l et seq. sets forth the criteria and mechanism by which property taxes can and 
are abated. The exemptions provided by the Township of Toms River are for affordable housing projects 
and other permitted purposes. Taxes abated include municipal, local school and county taxes. 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

21. Tax Abatements (continued) 

The Township of Toms River recognized revenue of $323,078 from the annual service charge in lieu of 
payment of taxes in 2017 and taxes in 2017 that otherwise would have been due on these long-term tax 
exemptions amounted to $892,086, based upon the assessed valuations of the long-term tax exemptions 
properties. A portion of the $569,008 abatement would have been allocated to the District. 

The Borough of Pine Beach, Township of Beachwood and Borough of South Toms River did not provide 
any long term tax exemptions in 2017. 

22. Subsequent Events 

On July 13, 2018, the New Jersey State budget was signed, which included revised state aid for school 
districts. Most districts in the State received an increase in state aid, however, certain districts received a 
decrease. Toms River Regional School District's revised aid allocation resulted in a decrease in State aid of 
$2,357,955. The District filed an application to the State of New Jersey Department of Education have the 
reduction in aid reversed. In November 2018, the District's application for restoration of aid was denied. As 
a result, the District revised the 2018-19 budget to utilize $1,157,955 of unassigned fund balance and 
$1,200,000 of additional maintenance reserve funds. 

23. Change in Accounting Principle 

Effective in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the District implemented Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting/or Postemp/oymenl Benefits Other 
Than Pensions. The implementation of this Statement required a restatement of prior year net position in the 
government-wide financial statements. 

Beginning Net Position - June 30, 2017 

Adjustments: 
District OPEB Adjustment for GASB Statement No. 75 

Beginning Net Position - June 30, 2017, as restated 

$ 

$ 

Governmental 
Activities 

4,351,746 

( 4, 170,081) 

181,665 
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Swc's proportion ofllie net pension 

Toms River Regional School District 
Required Supplcmcnwy lnfonnation 

Schedule ofllie State's Proponionalc Shore ofllie Net Pension Liabilil)' Associaled Willi Ilic Dislrict 
Tcochcrs' Pension and Annuily Fund 

Last Ten Fiscol Years• 

Year Ended June 30 
2015 2016 2017 

liabilil)'(auct) associaled willl Ille Districl • 
uica!Gtoup 0.8861361810% 0.88S6836S34% 0.8971177283% 

Dislrict's proportionate shore of Ille net 
pension liabilil)' (asset) s s $ 

State's proponionate sh= of Ille net 
pension liabilil)' (assCI) associated 
willl lllc Dislrict $ 473,610,948 $ SS9,789,890 $ 70S, 729, 9:?S 

Tela! proponicnalC share of Ille net pension liabilil)' (asscl) 
associated willi die District $ 47316101948 s SS9.7891890 s 1osi729192s 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of Ille tola1 pension liabilil)' 33.64% 28.71% 2233% 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were dctcnnined as of Ille previous fiscal year-end 

• This schedule is presmlCd to illUSlr3le lhe n:quirement to show infonna1ion for ten years. However, until a full ten•)ffl' ucnd is eompded, 
governments shculd prcscnl information for lhose years for "hieh infonnation is available. 

Covered payroll infonnalion is not prescnled since Ille T cachcrs' Pension and Annuil)' Fund is a special fWlding siluation in which Ille District docs not 
make contributions to lllis plan_ 

See Note to Requirrd Supplememary Information 

1..-J 

2018 

0.9024191711% 

$ 

s 608,443,S4S 

s 608443 S4S 

2S.41% 
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Toms River Regional School District 
Required Supplemental)' Information 

Schedule of the State's Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability Associated With the District 
and Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Public Employee's Retirement System and Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund 

Last Ten Fiscal Years• 

Year Ended June 30, 
2018 2017 

State's proportion of the net OPEB 
liability ( asset) associated with the District 1.23% 

$ • $ 

M-1 

1.23% 

District's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability 
associated with the District $ 657,523,619 S 713,403,660 

Total proportionate share of the net OPEB liability (asset) 
associated with the District S 657,523,619 S 713,403,660 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total OPEB liability 

Total OPEB Liability 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Changes of assumptions 
Member contributions 
Gross benefit payments 

Net change in total OPEB liability 

Total OPEB liability - beginning 

Total OPEB liability • ending 

Covered-employee payroll 

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 

0.00% 

2018 

$ 23,853,635 
20,804,270 

(85,869,098) 
560,794 

(15,229,642} 
(55,880,041) 

713.403,660 

$ 657,523,619 

s 82,505,263 

796.95% 

The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the previous fiscal year-

• This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for ten years. 
However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for 
those vears for which information is available. 

•• information not available. 

See Note to Required Supplementary Information 

0.00% 

2017 .. 
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Toms River Regional School District 
Required Supplementary lnfonnation 

Schedule of the Changes in Net OPEB Liability 
District Plan 

Last Ten Fiscal Years* 

Balance, Beginning of Year 

Changes for the year: 
Service Cost 
Interest 
Effect of economic/demographic gains or losses 
Employer contributions 
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 

Net changes 

Balance, End of Year 

Total OPEB Liability 

OPEB plan's fiduciary net position 

Net OPEB Liability 

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
percentage of the total OPEB liability -

Covered employee payroll 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of coverred employee payroll 

M-2 

2018 

$ 3,718,675 

112,332 
(276,178) 
(259,611) 

(64,035) 
(487,492) 

$ 3,231,183 

$ 3,231,183 

$ 

$ 3,231,183 

0.00% 

$ 

0.00% 

* This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show infonnation for ten years. 
However, until a full ten-year trend is compiled, governments should present infonnation 
for those vears for which information is available. 

See Note to Required Supplementary Information 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to Required Supplementary Information 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM - PENSION 

Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 3.98% as of June 30, 2016 to 5.00% as of June 30, 2017. 

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND - PENSION 

Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 3.22% as of June 30, 2016 to 4.25% as of June 30, 2017. 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

A. State of New Jersey Post-Employment Retirement Plan 

Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 3.13% as of June 30, 2016 to 2.98% as of June 30, 2017. 

B. Toms River School District Post-Employment Retirement Plan 

Benefit Changes 

There were none. 

Changes of Assumptions 

The discount rate changed from 2.00% as of June 30, 2017 to 2.92% as of June 30, 2018. 
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ExhibitC•I 
Page I 

Toms River Rqlanal Schoob 
General Fund 

Bud11ctary Com1mlson Schedule 
(Budgetary Bub) 

Vear Ended June 30, 2018 

Variance 
Orl11lnal Bud&ct Final Final ta 

llwlU1 ImmCw .l!!!!w1 4.tl!!al 

REVENUES: 
Local Sol.Res: 
Local Tax Levy $ ISl,9)6,71S $ ISl,916,71S $ 151,916,716 s I 
Tuition from Individuals 66,754 66,754 90,316 23,562 
Tuition from other LEAs wilhin die Stale 427,330 427,330 l,OS4,986 627.656 
Tuition from other so=es 97,244 97,244 
Transportation recs from olher LEAs wilhin die Stale 40.000 40,000 IS9,199 119,199 
Rents and Royalties 110,000 110,000 119,921 9,921 
Interest Earned on ln,'Cstmcnts 60,411 60,411 
Solar Credits 460,000 460,000 313,681 (146.319) 
MiiceUaneous 412,280 412,280 1,041,300 629,020 
Interest Earned on Cunen1 Expense Emergency Rcsenc 2,450 2,450 2,450 
ln1eres1 Earned on MainlCDance RCSCM: 9,100 9,100 9,100 
Interest Earned on Capital Rcsenc Funds 10,SOO 10.SOO 10.500 

Total • Local Sol.RCS IS3,45S,129 IS3,45S, 129 IS4,87S,824 l,420,69S 

Stale Soun:es: 
EAluwional Ackquacy Aid 433,801 433,801 433,801 
Equaliz.alion Aid 39,941,537 39,941,S37 39,941,537 
Categorical Special Education Aid 9,263,660 9,263,660 9,263,660 
Transportation Aid 4,600,705 4,600.705 4,600.705 
Security Aid 1,848,137 1,848,137 1,848,137 
Adjusuncnl Aid 11,788,519 $ (1,366,845) 10.421,674 10,421,674 
PARCC Readiness Aid 155,830 ISS,830 155,830 
Per Pupil Growth Aid 155,830 ISS,830 ISS,830 
Professional Lcamlng Conununily Aid IS4,220 154.220 154,220 
Emergency Aid 1,366,845 1,366,845 l.366,84S 
Additional Non-Public Transportation Aid 107,300 107,300 
Stale Reimbursed Lead Tcslins 24,317 24,317 
Extraordinary Aid 750,000 750,000 1,475,963 725.963 

TPAF Pension (Qn,Bd,alf • Non,Budgeted) 13,655,802 13,655,802 

TP AF Po5t-rctircment Medical (On-Bch&lf-Non-Budgetcd) 8,819,992 8,819.992 

TPAF Non-contributory lnsur.mcc (On-Behalf- Non Budgeled) 17,226 17,226 
TPAF Socilll Sccurily (Reimbursed· Ncm-Budgcled) 6.76S.S33 6,165.533 

Total State Sol.Res 69,092,239 69,092,239 99,208,372 30,116.133 

Federal Sol.Res: 
Medicaid Assistance Program 261905 261.905 309,882 47,977 

Total • Fedcml Sources 261905 261905 309 882 47,977 
Total Revenues 222.8091273 222.809,273 254,394,078 31,584.805 

EXPENDITURES: 
Current Expense: 
Rqular Programs• lnslructlon 

Kindergarten· Smlarics of Teachers 3,400,693 (183,700) 3,216,993 3,204,847 12,146 
Gr.ides 1-5 • Smlaries of Teachers 22,636,609 (1,075,147) 21,561,462 21,509,506 Sl,956 
Grades 6-8 • Salaries ofTemchers 15,011,849 93,SSI IS,IOS,700 15,091,051 14,649 
Grades 9-12 • Salaries ofTemchers 21,647,768 (892,671) 20,7SS,097 20,727,339 27,758 

Regular Programs· Home Instruction 
Salaries ofTeachers 130,000 85,408 215,408 215,007 401 
Purch3Scd Professional-Educational Services 95,000 (11.253) 83,747 79,507 4,240 

Regular Programs. Undistributed Instruction 
Other Salaries for Instruction 96,070 1,404 97.474 96,034 1,440 
Purchased Professional-Educational Services 1,999,000 528,086 2,527.086 2,S21,887 5,199 
Purchased Technical Scmccs 325,575 (29,998) 295,577 266.243 29,334 
Olher Purchased Services 2,365,400 148,129 2,Sl3,S29 2.342,335 171,194 
General Supplies 1,489,400 300,622 1,790,022 1,451,411 338,611 
Textbooks 1,219,500 (741,508) 477,992 382,843 95.149 
Olher Objects 154,000 1991628 353,628 335,191 18,437 

TOTAL REGULAR PROGRAJ\IS • INSTRUCTION 70.570,864 o.m.149) 68,993.715 68,223,201 770,514 
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ExhibitC•I 
Page 2 

(continued) 
Toms Rh·er Rqlonal Schools 

Gfflenl Fund 
Budgelary Comparison Schedule 

(Budi:eury Buis) 
Var Ended June 30, 1018 

Variance 
Orlaful Budget Final Final to 
.llwlul Iramfm. Bwl&cl Atl!lal 

SPECIAL EDUCATION - INSTRUCTION 
Coiinlllve • Mild: 

Salaries of Teachcn s 421,577 s (56,560) s 36S,017 s 360,467 s 4,SSO 
Other Salaries for lnsuuclion 400,870 (34,82S) 366,04S 3S8,746 7,299 
Purchased Professional·Edueational Sctviccs 90,000 46,6S9 136,6S9 136,034 62S 
General Supplies 8,SOO 1,950 10,4SO 10,34S IOS 
Textbooks 140 140 139 I 

Total Cognitive• Mild 920,947 (42,636) 878,311 865,731 12,S80 
Co111lllve • Moderate: 

Salaries ofTeachen 137,022 (S6,972) 80,0SO 74,102 S,948 
Other Salaries for lnsuuction 40,317 3,000 43,317 38,947 4,370 
Ptuehascd Professional·Edl!Qlicmal Services 4S,OOO (25,866) 19.134 18,814 320 
Oenml Supplies J,200 6,083 9,283 9,003 280 
Textbooks soo !430! 70 68 2 

Tola) Coi:nlllve • Moderate 226,039 (74,ISS) ISl,8S4 140,934 10,920 
Laming and/or Language Disabilities 

Salaries or Teachers 2.S22.834 26,720 2.S49,SS4 2.S42.901 6,6SJ 
Other Salaries for lnsuuclion 1.422.032 (149,292) 1.272.740 l.2Sl,838 20,902 
Purc:hucd Profcssioaal•Eduwional Scmccs 420,000 IS3,7SS S73,7SS S30,381 43,374 
Ocncnl Supplies S4,IOO (26,360) 27,740 26,653 1,087 
Textbooks 3S6 3S6 3SS I 

Total Laraln11 a11d/or Lan1uage Disabilities 4,418,966 S,179 4,424,145 4,3S2,128 72.017 

Audltorlly lmpalrmcnh 
Salaries ofT each en 149,708 49,08S 198,793 197,629 1,164 
Other Salaries for lnsuuclion 14,S60 9,820 24,380 23,843 S37 
Purchased Profcssional•Edueational Services 92,300 (SJ,118) 39,182 32,320 6,862 
General Supplies 6,800 6,048 12,848 12,818 JO 
Textbooks soo !166! 334 333 I 

Total Audllorlly lmpalrmenh 263,868 11,669 27S,S37 266,943 8,S94 

Behavioral Disabilities 
Salllries of Teachers 496,017 (74,99S) 421,022 412.287 8,73$ 
Other Salllries for lnsuuclion 146,443 43,780 190,223 187,067 3,IS6 
Ptuehascd Professional•Educational Services 102,600 17,S32 120,132 99,623 20,509 
Ocneml Supplies 8,000 6,710 14,710 13,223 1,487 
Textbooks 1,600 !l,600! 

Total Behavioral Disabilities 7S4,660 (8,S73) 746.087 712.200 33,887 

lllulllple Disabilities 
Salaries ofTcachcn 289.339 (34,138) 2SS.201 2S2.8S3 2.348 
Other Salaries for lnsuuclion 359,244 2S,682 384,926 374,S78 10,348 
Purclwcd Profcssional•Educalional Services 8S,OOO 60,138 14S.138 143,990 1,148 
Ocncnl Supplies 12.900 4,ISS 17.08S 16.S86 499 
Other Objccu soo soo soo 

Total Mulliple Disabilities 746,983 SS,867 802.BSO 788,S07 14,343 

Resource Room/Resource Center 
Salaries ofTcachcn 7,093,833 62,800 7,IS6,633 7,148,077 8,SS6 
Other Salaries for lnsuuclion 2S,317 3,000 28,317 27,900 417 
Purchosc:d Profcssional•Educational Services 240,000 (38,000) 202,000 199,747 2.2S3 
General Supplies 38,000 (IS,693) 22,307 22,306 I 
Tex1books 3000 l,S6S 4,S6S 4489 76 

Total Resource Room/Resource Crater 7,400,1.SO 13,672 7,413,822 7,402,519 11,303 

Aullsm 
Salaries ofTemcbers l,S61,398 (206,173) l,3SS,22S 1,349,287 S,938 
Other Salaries for lnslrllclion 1,637,956 (I.SS,443) 1,482.SIJ l,4S9,131 23,382 
l'w'chascd Professional·Educalional Services 774,000 164,0S6 938,0S6 884,829 S3,227 
Ocneml Su11plies SS,700 (IS.S89) 43,111 39,JSS 3,7S6 
Textbooks 500 (193) 307 307 
Other Objects Sl67 S.167 S 09S 72 

Total Autism 4,032.SS4 (208,175) 3,824,379 3,738,004 86,375 
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ExhibilC•I 
Pmgcl 

(continued) 
Toms River Re:lonal Schools 

General Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

(Budgetary Ba1l1) 
Vear Ended June 30, 2018 

Variance 
Orlalnal Budget Final Flnalto 

.DwllSI. Iwwm lww1 tUl!!!I .Awt.i!l 
Prachool Dl11bllilia • Part-11me 

Salaries ofT eachm $ 770,7114 $ 18,132 $ 788,916 $ 787,240 s 1,676 
Other Smlaries for tnsuuclion 600,320 (125,620) 474,700 467,036 7,664 
Purchased Professional·Educalionml Smices 120,000 72,S93 192,S93 IBS,236 7,JS7 
Other Purchased Services S,000 S,000 4,07S 92S 
Oenenl Sup11lies 14000 1,211 IS,211 ll,90S 1,306 

Total Preschool Dlsabilltles • Part• 11me l,SI0,104 (33,6114) 1,476,420 l,4S7,492 18,928 

Praehool DlsabiUtia • Fall-11me 
Salaries ofT eachm 442,384 (IS,S24) 426,860 424,652 2.208 
Other Salaries for tnsauclion 125,082 (16,000) 109,082 108,246 836 
Purchased Professional·Eduwional Smices 45,000 18,493 63,493 56,264 7,229 
Oenenl Suwlies 2,200 !2,200! 

Total Prcsdiool Disabilities· Full-11me 614,666 (IS,231) S99,4JS 589,162 10,273 

Home lastraclion 
Salaries ofT eachcrs 130,000 61,S07 191,507 191,S06 I 
Purchased Profmioml-Edacational Smices 14S.OOO {98,9114! 46,016 3S.46S 10,SSI 

Total Home Instruction 215,000 (37,477) 237,S23 226,971 IO,SS2 

TOTAL SPEOAL EDUCATION· INSTRUCTION 21,163.937 jl33,S74! 20,830.363 20.S40.S9I 289,m 

BQic Skills/Remedial • lnslraclion 
Salaries ofTcacltcrs 847,424 (30,800) 816,624 772.342 44,282 
Other Purchased Smices soo soo soo 
Oenenl Supplies 8,200 8,200 11,200 
Texlhooks 1.soo 1.500 1,500 

Total Buie Skills/Remedial· Instruction 857,624 (30,800) 826,1124 772.342 54,482 

Bllin11,11al Education· Instruction 
Salaries ofTcachm 563,832 13,000 S76,832 S72.SS9 4,273 
Other Purclwed Scnices 3,200 3,200 127 3,073 
Oenenl Supplies S,000 S,000 S,000 
Other Objffls 2,500 2.SOO 2,500 

Total Bilingual Education • lnstraclion S74,S32 13,000 S87,S32 S72.686 14,846 

School·Spon. Cocurricular AcMs, • Inst. 
Salaries 637,000 (2.968) 634,032 632.77S l,2S7 
Purchased Smices Sl,000 13,239 66,239 S0,St8 IS,721 
Supplies and Materials 97,200 42,JIS 139,SIS 32.2SS 107,260 
Other Objffls 20,000 32,251 S2.2SI 4S,677 6~74 

Total School-Spon. Cocurrlcular Actvts. • Inst. 807,200 114,837 892.037 761,225 130,812 

School-Spon. Alhlellcs 
Salaries 2.S72,927 (3,318) 2,569,609 2.398,342 171,267 
Purchased Services 361,750 48,408 410,ISS 360,713 49,445 
Supplies and Materials 233,SOO (27,744) 205,756 145,651 60,105 
Other Objects uo,soo !2l,4S7! 107,043 IOS,494 1,549 

Total School-Spon. Athletics 3,298,677 (6,111) 3,292,566 3,010,200 282,366 

Community Services Programs/Opcrallon1 
Salaries 25,827 1,700 27,527 26,993 S34 
Purchased Services 2,250 2,250 2,250 
Suwlics and Matcriols 4,200 (1,500) 2,700 528 2,172 

Other Objects 1,000 1,000 100 900 
Total Community Servkcs Prognuns/Operallons 33,277 200 33,477 27,621 5,8S6 
TOTAL INSTRUCTION 97,306,111 !l,849,S97l 9S14S6,5l4 93,907,866 1,548,648 
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(continued) 
Toms River Regional Schools 

General Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

(Budgetary Basis) 
Year Ended June 30, 2018 

Variance 
Original Bud11et Final Final to 

.l!wlm Iwwm llww1 &l!!aJ. .&l!la1 

Undistributed Expenditures· Instruction 
Tuition IO Other LEAs Within the State - Regulu s 150,000 s 144,404 s 294,404 $ 230,162 s 64,242 
Tuition to Other LEAs Within the State - Special 169,624 ISB,296 327,920 236,912 91,008 
Tuition IO County Voe. School DisL • Regulu JS0,000 10,46.S 360,465 319,667 40,798 
Tuition to CSSD & Regional Day Schools 1,273,127 146,084 1,419,211 1,389,973 29,238 
Tuition to Priwte Schools for the Disabled - Within State 2,913,573 532,584 3,446,157 3,261,301 184,856 
Tuition to Priv. Sch. Disabled & Other LEAs-Spl, 0/S SJS,330 (12S,349) 409,981 36S,283 44,698 
Tuition - State Facilities 100,000 (4,063) 95,937 9S,417 S20 
Tuition • Other 130,000 j87,009l 42,991 42,739 252 

Total Undistributed Expenditures· Instruction 5,621,654 775,412 6,397,066 .S,941,454 4S.S,612 

Undistribuled Expend. -Atlend. & Social Work 
Salaries 172,070 1,000 173,070 169,950 3,120 
Other Pwdiased Semces 2,500 jl.000! l,.SOO 1.soo 

Total Undistributed Expend. - Atlend. & Social Work 174,570 174,570 169,9.SO 4,620 

Undist. Expend. - Heallb Services 
Salaries 2,494,742 (128,107) 2,366,63S 2.346,ISJ 20,482 
Purchased Professional and Technical Semces S66,000 4S3,798 1,019,798 906,121 113,677 
Supplies and Materials 110,800 (11,335) 99,46S 84,640 14,82S 

Other Objects 8260 8,260 8,260 
Total Undistributed Expenditures - Health Services 3,171,S42 322,616 3,494,ISS 3,34S,174 148,984 

Undist. Expend. - Other Supp. Serv, Students· Relllted Serv, 
Salaries 2,024,170 (80,668) 1,943,502 1,928,061 IS,441 
Purchased Professional - Educational Semces 1,331,192 87,9S3 l,419,14S 1,381,343 37,802 
Supplies and Materials 24,100 (11,990) 12,110 9,84.S 2,26.S 
Other Objects 6,588 6,S88 6,16.S 423 

Total Undist. Expend. - Other Supp. Serv. Students- Related Serv. 3,379,462 1.883 J,381,34S 3,32S,414 .S.S,931 

Uadist. Expend. - Other Supp. Serv. Students• Extra Serv, 
Salaries 2,500 (2,500) 

Other Salaries for lnslnlction 1,000 (1,000) 
Supplies and Materials 4,000 (4,000) 

Other Objects 71000 !7,000! 
Total Undist. Expend. - Other Supp. Serv, Students· Extra Serv. 14,SOO (14,SOO) 

Undist. Expend. - Guidance 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 3,3S4,764 (81,782) 3,272,982 3,259,642 13,340 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 581,906 10,000 591,906 S88,S43 3,363 
Pwd,ased Professional • Educational Services 1,000 1,000 1.000 
Other Pwd,ased Semces 1,7.SO (175) l,S7S 1,57.S 
Supplies and Materials 29,.SOO 764 30,264 17,SSO 12,684 
Other Objects 10,300 j420l 9,880 2.237 7,643 

Total Undist. Expend. - Guidance 3,979,220 (71,613) 3,907,607 3,868,002 39,60.S 

Undist. Expend. - Child Study Team 
Salaries of Other Professional Staff 3,029,221 (IS.308) 3,013,913 2,994,181 19,732 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 463,744 (12,000) 451,744 437,488 14,256 
Pwd,ased Pro( - Educational Services 100,000 48,627 148,627 123,446 25,181 
Other Pwd,ased Pro( and T ecb. Services 79,SOO 117 79,617 79,617 
Other Pwd,ased Services 470 470 470 
Supplies and Materials 53,500 (20,839) 32,661 31,568 1,093 
Other Objects 1.000 S.3SO 6,JSO 2.8SO 3.500 

Total Undist. Expend. - Cblld Study Team 3,726,965 6,417 3,733,382 3,669,620 63,762 

UndisL Expend. - lmproYffllent of Inst. Serv. 
Salaries of Supervisors oflnslruclion 2,767,208 (216,4SO) 2.SS0,7S8 2,S43,994 6,764 

Salaries of Other Professional Staff 9S,OOO (S3,300) 41,700 41,SS7 143 
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 36,903 4,000 40,903 39,843 1,060 
Purchased Prof. - Educational Services 10,000 4,984 14,984 14,978 6 
Other Purchased Services 6,000 6S 6,065 283 5,782 
Supplies and Materials 11,000 (21S) I0,78S l,OIS 9,740 
Other Objects S.000 s.ooo 4.0IO 960 

Total Undist. Expend.- Improvement of Inst. Serv. 2,931.111 (260,916) 2,670,19S 2.64S,740 24.4.SS 
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(continued) 
Toms River Regional Schools 

General Fund 
Budeetary Comparison Schedule 

(Budgetary Basis) 
Year Ended Ju11e 30, 2018 

Variance 
Original Budaet Final Final lo 
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Undisl. E,pcncl. - Edu. Media ~rv.JSch. Ubrary 
Salaries s 1,738.482 s (54,000) $ 1.684.482 $ 1,652.030 $ 32,452 
~d Professional & Technical Scmccs 2,000 2.000 2.000 
Olher Purchased Scmccs 5,000 (4,000) 1,000 1,000 
Supplies and Materials 139.000 3.932 142932 116.869 26.063 

Tolal Undlsl. E•pend. - Edu. Media Serv.lScb. Ubrary 1,884,482 (54,068) 1,830,414 1,768,899 61,SIS 

Undisl. E1pencl. • lnslrucllonal Slaff Tralnln1 Serv. 
Smlaries - Other Professionml SIAIT 30,000 (18,000) 12,000 11,170 830 
Purch11Sed Professional • Educational SC1Viccs 120,000 65,844 185,844 183,263 2,581 
Supplies and Materials 2.UI 2,ISI 2,117 34 
Other Objects s,ooo {1,996! 3,004 1,192 1,812 

Total Undlsl. Expend.• Instructional StalTTralnln1 ~rv. ISS,000 47,999 202,999 197,742 5,251 

Undlsl. E1pend. - Supp. ~rv. • General Admln. 
Salaries 1,336,334 (71,349) 1,264,985 1,262.388 2,597 
Legal Services 325,000 299,771 624,771 624,748 23 
Audil Fees 90,000 10,000 100,000 97,000 3,000 
Architectural/Engineering SC1Viccs 90,000 184,882 274,882 48,829 226,053 
Other Purchased Professional Services 95,000 (49,315) 45,685 36,350 9,335 
CommunicationsfT elcphone 379,000 231,315 610,3 IS 571,998 38,317 
Bollld of Education Olher Purchased Scmccs 7,500 1,400 8,900 2.831 6,069 
Miscellaneous Purchased Services 624,547 (111,188) S13,3S9 470,897 42,462 
General Supplies 21.500 765 22,26S 10.313 11,952 
Board of Educa1ion In-House Training/Meeting Supplies 5,000 $,000 3,223 1,777 
Judgements Agains1 the School District 40,000 (11,933) 28,067 28,000 67 
Miscellaneous Expenditures 60,230 (11,975) 48,2SS 44,761 3,494 
Board of Educaticn Dues and Fees 28,000 28.000 26.663 1,337 

Tolal U11dls1. E•pencl. - S"PP. ~. - Cneral Admln. 3,102.111 472,373 3,574,484 3.228.001 346,483 

Undisl. E•pencl. - Support ~rv. • School Admln. 
Salaries of Principals/Assis1an1 Principals 5,008,361 132,723 5,141,084 5,130,419 I0,66S 
Salaries ofSccrcwial and Clerical AssiSlants 2,644,789 (S0,902) 2,593,887 2,581,792 12,09S 
Tra,,,I 2.000 (1,300) 700 700 
Supplies ond Materials 57,500 30,158 87,658 7S,938 11,720 
Other Objects 124,600 11.784 136.384 112.064 24.320 

Toial Undlsi. E1pencl. • Support ~rv. • School Admln. 7,837,250 122,463 7,959,713 7,900,213 S9,SOO 

UndlsL E•pend. - Central ~rvlccs 
Salaries 2,203,212 (40,172) 2.163,040 2.ISl,777 11,263 
Purchased Professional Scmces 10,000 11,$71 21,$71 21.S71 
Purchased Technical Services 21>,000 S28 20,$28 18,524 2,004 
Misc Purchased Services 50,800 (1,886) 48,914 26,640 22,274 
Supplies ond Materials 84,990 (28,881) $6,109 41,213 14,896 
Miscellaneous Expenditures 21.750 !2,0342 19,716 11.545 8.171 

Tolal Undlsl. E1pcncl. - Central Services 2.390,752 (60,874) 2,329,878 2,271,270 S8,608 

Undlst. E,pcnd. - Technology Admln. 
Salaries l,087,52S (33,100) .l.OS4,42S 1,050,880 3,545 
Purchased Professional Services 29,000 3,666 32,666 32,66.S I 
Purchased Technical Services 243,800 (IS,'71) 228,229 215,979 12,250 
Other Purch11Sed Services 100,150 30,41.S 130,$6.S 116,591 13,974 
Rentols 31,500 31,$00 30,263 1,237 
Travel S89 589 589 
Supplies and Materials 81,900 60,752 142,652 76,093 66,559 
Other Objects 3,000 3,000 1.435 l,S6$ 

Tolal Undls1.E,pcnd. - Technololl)' Admln. l,$76,87.S 46,751 1,623,626 1,524.495 99,131 

Undlst. Expend.• Rcq,.lred Malnl. for Sch. Facll. 
Smlaries 2.229,729 (77,967) 2,151.762 2,1$1,2().1 SS8 
Cleaning. Repair and Mmin1enancc Services 590,300 $10,999 1,101,299 837,075 264,224 
General Supplies 625,000 ($7,157) $67,843 475,540 92,303 
Other Objects 22.500 1,406 23.906 20.914 2.992 

Tolal Undlsl. Elpeacl. • Required Malnl. for Sch. Fadl. 3,467.529 377,281 3,844,810 3,484.733 360,077 
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General Fund 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

(Bud11etary Bosls) 
Vear Ended Junel0, 1018 

Variance 
Orltlnal Budget Flnal Final lo 
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Undisl. E1pend. • Cuscodlal Servlca 
Salories s S,786,263 s (387,203) S S,399,060 $ S,341,S74 s S7,486 
Salories ofNon•lnsuuclional Aides 412,SS3 (38,0IS) 374,S38 366,667 7,871 
Cleaning. Repair and Maintenonce Services 33S,200 41,14S 376,34S 3S2,716 23,629 
Ocher PwcliMCd Property Scmces 47S,OOO (21,871) 4S3,129 44S,467 7,662. 
lnsunnce 644,S91 467,100 1,111,691 1,110,120 l,S71 
Travel l,SOO (600) 900 900 
Miscelloneous Purchased Services 2S,OOO (24,SOO) 500 soo 
Clcneral Supplies 40S,OOO (92.791) 312,209 284,900 27,309 
Natural Gas 910,000 (114,000) 796,000 79S,614 386 
Eleclriciiy 2,600,000 (232,248) 2,367,752 2,358,087 9,66S 
Ocher Objects 481000 po,920! 17,080 1411SI 2,929 

Total Undist. Expend,· Cuslodial Services 11,643,107 (433,903) 11,209,204 11,069,296 139,908 

Undist. Expend.· Care and Upkeep of Grounds 
Salaries 869,SIO (I ll,60S) 7S7,90S 7S3,266 4,639 
Cleaning. Repair and Mmntenance Scmces 110,000 4,009 114,009 33.661 80,348 
General Supplies 2SO.OOO 7,3S2 2S7,3S2 194.774 62,S78 
Ocher Objects 20.000 !16,260! 3,740 3,740 

Tocal Undisi. E1pend.. Care and Upkeep of Grounds 1,249,SIO (116.S04) 1.133.006 98S,441 147,S6S 

Undist. Espend. • Securily 
Salaries 1,022,467 37,820 1,060,287 l,OS7,36S 2,922 

Cleaning. Repair and Maintenance Services 25,000 (25,000) 

Clcneral Supplies 30,000 113.m) 16,227 IS,004 1,223 

Ocher Objects 12.SOO !9,98?} 2.Sl3 1,049 1,464 

Tocal Uadlst. £spend.. Securily 1,089,967 (10,940) 1,079,027 1,073.418 S,609 

Undist. Expend.· Student Transporcatlon Serv. 
Salaries for Pu11il Trans. (Be1ween Home&. School) • Rqp1lar S,OS4.480 (164,491) 4,889,989 4,888,384 l,60S 
Salaries for Pup;jl Trans. (Be1ween Home&. School) • Sp. Ed. 2,782,737 (16S,079) 2,617.658 2.616,884 774 
Salaries for Pupil Trans. Ocher than Between Home &. School ISO.ODO 85,073 23S,073 23S,073 
Ocher Purcbascd Professional and Technical Scmces 4,000 4,000 182 3.818 
Cleaning. Repair &: Maintenance Services 31.000 7,887 38,887 3S,S26 3,361 
lease Purchase PaymenlS-School Buses S76,000 4,338 '80.338 SB0,336 2 
Con~ Services Aid In Lieu of Payment for Non-public School SIUdents 220,000 228,S74 448,S74 446,BSJ 1.121 
Contracted Services (Bctwccn Home and School)· Vendors 425,000 180,363 60S,J63 S04,796 IOO,S67 
Contracted Services (Ocher tban Between Home and School)· Vendors 25,000 (19,086) S,914 4,542 1,372 
Contracted Services (Be1ween Home and School) • Joint AgRcments 10,000 (1,962) 8,038 7,501 S37 
Contracted Scnices (Sp. Ed.)· Vendors 1,300,000 Sl6.6SI l,816,6SI 1,609,945 206.706 
Contracted Services (Sp. Ed.)· Joint AgRcments 80,000 (44,877) 3S,123 26,426 8,697 
Contracted Services (Regular Students) • ESCs 12,500 (12,SOO) 
Contracted Services (Special Education Students) • ESCs 125,000 238,798 363,798 289,778 74,020 
Miscellaneous Purcbascd Services· Transpottation 150,000 (98,616) Sl,384 49,503 1.881 
General Supplies 41,110 (18,832) 22,278 20,103 2.17S 
Transponation Supplies 67.S,000 (24,806) 6.S0,194 611,816 38,378 
Ocher Objects l,33S,OOO !290,843! 1,044,157 l,OJ4,S92 9,565 

Total Undist. £spend.· Student Transporlation Scrv. 12.996,827 420,.592 13,417,419 12,962,240 4SS.179 

Unallouted Benefits 
Social Sccuri1y Contributions 2,968,091 (293.022) 2,67S,069 2,674,165 904 
TPAF Conlributions ERIP 120,000 (31,050) 88,9.SO 88.870 80 
Other Retirement Conlriburions • PERS 4,075,688 (269,160) 3,806,528 3,801,106 S.422 
Other Retirement Conlributions • Deferred PERS Payment 163,S38 (11,453) IS2,08S ISO,SS8 1.527 
Wotlanen's Compensation 1,840,501 2,025,454 3,86S,9SS 3,860,238 S.717 
Hcallh Benefits 46,062.419 (US.OSI) 45,927.368 45,832,623 94,74S 
Tuition Reimbursement 60,000 (33,068) 26,932 25,695 1,237 
Other Em11loyec Benefits 2.128,682 239.S09 2,368,191 2.293,430 74,761 

Total Unallacaled Benefits 57,418,919 1,492.159 S8,91 l,078 .S8,726.68S 184,393 

On-behalr Contributions 
TPAF Pension Conlributions (On-behalf· Non-Budgeted) 13,655,802 (13.6SS,802) 
TPAF Post Rctircment Medical (On-behalf· Non-Budgeted) 8,819,992 (8,819,992) 
TPAF Non-conlribulory Insurance (On-behalf· Non-Budgeted) 17.226 (17,226) 
Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Conlributions (non-budgeted) 6,76.S.S33 (6.76S,S33) 

Tocal On-behalf Contributions 29,258,553 (29,2S8,SS3) 
TOTAL UNDISTRIBUTED EXPENDITURES 127.811:3.SJ 3,062.628 130.873.981 157,416,340 !26,.S42.3S9! 
TOTAL GENERAL CURRENT E.XPENSE 225,117,464 1,213,031 226,330,495 251,324,206 (24,993,711) 
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Dud11e1ary Comparison Schedule 

(Bud11e1ary Basis) 
Vear Ended June 30, 2018 

Variance 
Orlalnal Bud11e1 Final Final to 

Bwm1 Iwa1m llwlu1 .Asl!!!l 
CAPITAL OUTLA V 
Equipment 

RC&Ular Proerams-lnstructlon: 
Grad!:$ 1-S s 10.000 $ (312) S 9,688 s 3,238 s 6,450 

GradC$6-8 IS,000 IS,000 IS,000 
Grades9-12 25,000 8,387 33.387 8,387 25,000 

Special Educalion-lns1ructlon: 
Multiple Disabilities 8,000 17,894 25,894 25,893 
Alllism 4,000 (4,000) 
Preschool Disabilities - Part Time 4,000 ?SO 4,750 4,7SO 
School· Spons. & Oilier lnsuuc1ion Program 9,000 22,IOS 31,10.S 18,4.52 12.6S3 

Undistributed Espcadilurcs: 
Undislribuled Exp.-lllS1JUC1ion 3,000 3,000 3.000 
Suppon Seniccs • lnsttucrional Staff 6,000 6,000 3,ISO 2.8SO 
Suppon Seniccs • Relaied Seniccs IS,000 (IS,000) 
General Adminillrllion 2.002 2,002 2.002 
School Adminisb'alion 18,000 18.000 18,000 
Centtal Services 8,000 18,675 26,675 6,436 20,239 
Admin Info T cch 10,000 21.024 31,024 10,828 20,196 
Undislribu1ed Exp.-Req. Maint of School Facililies 20,000 (7,066) 12.934 12.923 II 
Undislribuled Exp.-Cllllodial Services 25,000 6,380 31,380 20.377 11,003 
Undislribu1ed Exp.-Can: and Upkeep of Grounds 20,000 30,920 S0,920 S0,920 
Undislribuled Exp.-Sccurily 20,000 (20,000) 

Undistrlbuled Esp.-N.,n-lnstruetlonal Services 
Non-lnstruclional Equipmcnl 40,000 22,518 62,518 61,836 682 
School buses-special 170,(03 170,103 170,103 

To1al EAjulpmenl 257,000 277,380 534,380 348,37S 186,00.S 

Facllltlcs Acquisition and Construction Services 

An:hi1ec111n111Engineering Services 623,383 623,383 161,363 462.020 

Oilier Purchased Professional & Technical Services 8,SOO 8,500 8,481 19 
Consuuclion Services 500,000 497,30S 997,305 643,100 3S4,20S 
Oilier Objects - Debt Service Assessment 371,261 371,261 371,261 

Total Facllltlcs Acquisition and Construction Services 871,261 1,129,188 2,000,449 1,184,205 816,244 

Assets 11equired under capillll leascs (non budgeted) 2,845,573 {2,84S,S73} 
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLA V 1,128,261 1,406,568 2,534,829 4,378,153 (1,843,324) 

SPECIAL SCHOOLS 
Summer School - Instruction 

Salaries of Teachers 40,000 40,000 31,394 8,606 
General Supplies soo soo 329 171 
Olher Objects I 000 I 000 72 928 

Total Instruction 41 SOO 41 soo 3179S 9,70S 
Total Summer School 41 soo 41 soo 31,795 9,705 

TOTAL SPECIAL SCHOOLS 41 soo 41 500 31.79.S 9,705 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 226,287.225 2,619,599 228,906,824 255,734,154 !26,827.330! 

(Deficiency) E1ccss of Revenues (Under) Over Expenditures !3,477.952! !216191S99} !6,0971SSI} !1,340,076! 4,7.57,47.S 

Other Financin& Sources (Uses): 
Capital lease proceeds 2,845,573 2,84S,S73 
Transfer In 112,280 112,280 191,737 79,457 
TmnsferOu1 {4S5,910! {45.S.910! {4.SS,910! 

Total Ocher Financing Sources (Uses) (343,630) (343,630) 2.S81,400 2,925,030 

Extraordinary llem- Rcstltullon proceeds 7,616 7.616 

(Deficiency) Escess or Revenues 
(Under) Over Espenditurcs and Other FlnAncln11 Sources (Uses) 
and E11raordlnary 11cm (3,821,582) (2,619,599) (6,441,181) 1,248,940 7,690,121 

Fund Balance, July I 23,721 747 23,721.747 23,721 747 
Fund Balance, June 30 s 19,900.16.S s p.619.S99J S 17,280,566 s 24,970,687 s 7,690,121 
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Reeaphulallon of (Deficiency) £1cas of Revenues and 
Other Financing Sources (uses) (Under) Over Expenditures: 

Total 

Budgeted Fund Balance 
Adju51ment for Prior Year Encumbrances 
Withdmwal Capital Resetvc 
Withdmwal Maintenance Reseive 
lntm:st earned on Maintemmee Reseivc 
Interest earned on Emergency Resen-e 
lntm:st earned on Capital Resetve 
Increase in Capital Reseivc 

Recapitulation of Fund Balance: 
Restricted Fund Balance: 

Excess Smplus Designated for Subsequent Y car's Expenditures 
Excess Smplus-current year 
Capital Reseivc 
Capital Reseivc (utilized in subsequent year's budget) 
Maintenance Resetve 
Maintenance Resetve (utilized in subsequent year's budget) 
Emergency Resene 

Assigned to: 

General Fund 
Budgelary Comparison Schedule 

(Budgetary B11l1) 
Vear Ended JuneJ0, 1018 

s 

s 

Original 

l!llwl 

(1,200,000) 

(7.SS,910) 
(2,000,000) 

9,100 
2,450 

10,500 
112,278 

(3,821,582) 

s 

s 

Additional Assigned Fund Balance Designaied for Subsequent Y car's Expenditures 
Desipated for Subsequent Y eu's Expenditures 
Year End Encumbrances 

Unassigned Fund Balance 

Recondliation of Budgecary Fund Balance 10 CAAP Fund Balance: 
Final State Aid Paymaits Nol Realized on GMP BIISis 
Solar Renewable Energy Credit Revenue Realized on GAAP Basis 
Fund t,.,lance per Go>fflllllent Funds (GAAP) 

Budget 

IrwCw 

(2,619,599) 
$ 

(2,619.599) S 

Flnal 

.l!!lll.m 

(1,200,000) S 4,891,322 
(2,619,599) (2,619,599) 

(755,910) (755,910) 
(2,000,000) (2,000,000) 

9,100 9,100 
2,450 2,450 

10,SOO 10,500 
112.278 1,711,077 

(6,441,181) S 1,248.940 

s 1,573,524 
S90,S34 

4,776,098 
430,000 

4,596,820 
2.600.000 

709,865 

l,IS7,9SS 
226.476 

3,003.m 
S,JOS,864 

24.970.687 

(6.608,871) 
62930 

Ii 11:12:l li6 

s 

s 
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Variance 
Final lo 

..lllllll1 

6,091,322 

I 598,799 
7.690,121 
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Toms River Regional School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Variance 
Orieinal Budeet Final Final to 
Badget Transrers Budget Actual Actual 

Revenues: 
Federal Sources $ S,S38,0S2 s 2,016,990 s 7,SSS,042 s 7,007,117 s (547,925) 
State Sources 992,610 165,444 l,IS8,0S4 881,346 (276,708) 
Local Sources l,714J66 (1,018,561} 69S,70S 454,876 (240,829} 

Total revenues 8J44,928 1,163,873 9,408,801 8,343,339 (1,065,462} 

Expenditures: 
Instruction: 

Salaries of teachers 503,403 1,208,SSJ 1,711,956 1,706,ISl S,80S 
Other salaries for instruction 54,343 54,343 21,731 32,612 
Purchased professional and technical serv 12,090 12,090 840 11,250 
Purchased professional educational services 39,438 90,214 129,652 S9,SS2 70,100 
Cleaning, repair and maintenance 54,387 54,387 47,120 7;167 
Other purchased professional services 78,034 58,734 136,768 124,057 12,711 
Contracted services - vendors 201 201 201 
Tuition 3;l10,S6S 290,599 3,561,164 3,S61,164 
Travel 7,346 7,346 3,141 4;l0S 
General supplies 3,478,350 (2,780,681) 697,669 430,806 266,863 
Textbooks 86,670 (10,799) 75,871 75,278 593 
Other objects 21 746 21 746 16 868 4 878 

Total instruction 7,456,460 (993,267) 6,463,193 6,046,708 416,485 

Support services: 
Salaries of other professional staff 43,470 43,470 42,586 884 
Personal services-employee benefits 746,556 746,556 743,453 3,103 
Purch11Sed professional educational services 788,468 664,489 1,452,957 1,021,663 431;194 
Contracted services - vendors 4,986 4,986 4,758 228 
Travel 86 86 86 
Supplies and materials 20,460 20,460 18,520 1,940 
Other objects 393,813 393,813 253,975 139,838 

Total support services 788,468 1,873,860 2,662,328 2,084,955 577,373 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Instructional equipment 97,976 97,976 26,372 71,604 
Non-instructional equipment 181,304 181,304 181304 

Total facilities acquisition and construction services 279;180 279;180 207,676 71,604 

Other financing uses: 
Transfer out (4,000) (4,000) (4,000) 

Total expenditures 8;144,928 1.163,873 9,408,801 8,343,339 1.065,462 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) 

expenditures s s s s s 
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Toms River Regional School District 
Note to Required Supplementary Information 

Budget to GAAP Reconciliation 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

General 
Fund 

Sources/inflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue" from the 

budgetary comparison schedule (C-1, C-2) $ 254,394,078 

Differences- Budgetary to GAAP: 

Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP 
in that encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, 
and the related revenue is recognized. 

Prior year 
Current year 

State aid payments recognized for budgetary purposes, 
not recognized for GAAP statements. 

Prior year 6,728,281 
Current year (6,608,871) 

Adjustment to record the value of Solar Renewable Energy Credits (SREC) 
income on the modified accrual basis 62 930 

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balances - governmental 
funds (B-2) s 254,576,418 

Uses/outflows of resources 
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows" from the 

budgetary comparison schedule (C-1, C-2) $ 255,734, I 54 

Differences - Budgetary to GAAP: 

Transfer to food service enterprise fund 

Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but 
not received are reported in the year the order is placed for 
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received 
for financial reporting purposes. 

Prior year 
Current year 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental 
funds (B-2) $ 255,734, l 54 

C-3 

Special 
Revenue 

Fund 

$ 8,343,339 

312,391 
(521,308) 

$ 8,134,422 

$ 8,343,339 

(4,000) 

312,391 
(521,308) 

$ 8,130,422 
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Special Revenue Fund 



Toms River Regional School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

EPA 
NcwJffSC)' National 

LD.E.A. Tille Ill Sustainable Tech Ready ClnttDiosel NEA 
Title I, Part A Part B. Bmc Preschool Title II A Tidelll lmmlgnnt Gnni NayYGnnt Rebate Program BlgRnd 

Revenues: 
Fedcrnl sources s 2.250,428 s 3,669,387 s 123.884 s 474,370 s 46,520 s s,n9 s 1,400 s 175,000 s S.920 
State sources 
Oilier sources $ IS1Sl6 

Tow R''fflUCS $ 2JS01428 $ 3,669.387 $ 123.884 $ 474J70 $ 46.520 $ sn9 $ IS S16 $ 1400 $ 175,000 $ S1920 

Expenditures: 
lnsuuclion: 

Salaries of teachers s 1,366,729 s 306,530 $ 23,700 

Other salaries for insuuction 6,000 $ soo 
Purchased professional and technical serv s 840 
Purchased professional educational senices 50,272 $ 1.400 s.oso 
Other purdlllSed professional seni.:cs 
Cleaning. repair and maintenance 1,727 

Tuition $ 3,437,280 $ 123,884 
Tra,-c:I 
General supplies S4,727 15,410 s 6,647 9,289 

Textbooks 
Oilier objects 100 

T olal insuuc1ion 1,477,828 3,437,280 123,884 306,530 39,110 6,647 ll,S16 1,400 S,920 

Suppon senices: 
Salaries of other professional Slaff 39,407 1,680 329 

Personal services-employee benefits 615,801 127,044 608 
PurchOJed professional educational services 98,777 232,107 40,796 2,S74 

Contracted services • vendors 4,446 

Supplies and materials 14,169 2,S48 1,803 

Oilier objecu 
Tola! suppon services m.600 232,107 167,840 7,410 2,132 

Facilities acquisition and construction services: 
Instructional equipment 
Non-instructional equipment s 17S 000 

Total facilities acquisition nnd construction 
senices 175,000 

Other financing uses: 
Transfers out !4,0001 

Total expenditures s 2,250,428 s 3,669,387 s 123,884 $ 474,370 s 461S20 $ 8,779 s IS.S16 $ 1400 s 17S 000 s S920 
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E-1 
p.2 

(continued) 

Toms River Regional School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures - Budgetary Basis 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Fcdenl New Je!'.!!! Non-Public Aid 
£mff&CIIC)' Ausillary Handicapped 

Ma.nacement Sernccs Senices 
Assutance Tcstbooks Cbl92 Tnmporlalion Cb 193 Nuning Technology Security 

Revenues: 
Federal sowws s 251,429 
S1a1csowws s 7S.278 s 223,974 s 35,360 s 2S3.730 s 134,34S s 50,870 s 107,789 
Olhcr sources 

Total l'C\'CIIIICS s 251,429 $ 7S.278 $ 223,974 s 35,360 $ 253,730 s 134~S s S0870 $ 107,789 

Expenditures: 
lnstruc1ion: 

Snlarics of teacltcrs 

Olhcr salaries for instruclion 
Purcluiscd prodcssional and technical scrv 
Pwdwcd professional cducationnl services 
Olhcr purchased professional services s 107,789 
Cle:mins. repair and maintcnan;c 
Tuition 
Travel 
Oencrol supplies $ 42,444 
Textbook! s 7S,278 
Other objects 

Totnl insuuction 75,278 42,444 107,789 

Suppon services: 
Salaries of other professional stair 
Penonnl serviccs-anploycc bcnelils 
Pun:hased professional cduca1ional services s 223,974 s 35,360 s 253,730 $ 134,345 
Conlmcted services • \'Clldors 
Supplies and materials 
Other objects s 2Sl,429 2 S46 

Total suppon services 251,429 223,974 35,360 2S3,730 134,345 2,546 

Facilities acqui,ition mu! conlUUClion services: 
lnsuuctionnl cqwpmcn1 S,880 
Non-inSUUctional equipment 

Total facilities acquisition and construction 
services 5880 

Olher financing uses: 
Transfers out 

Totnl expenditures s 251,429 s 7S.278 $ 223,974 s 3S.360 s 253,730 $ 134134S $ S0,870 $ 107 789 
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E-1 
p.3 

(continued) 

Toms River Regional School District 
Special Revenue Fund 

Combining Schedule of Program Revenues and Expenditures- Budgetary Basis 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Various 
01bcrLoal Orchestn Local 

ProjttlS Donation Granes Total 

Rcvenw:s: 
Fcderol sources $ 7,007,117 
State sources 881,346 
Other sources s 184,589 $ 27920 $ 22618SI 454 876 

To1al revenues s 184,589 $ 27 920 $ 226,851 $ 8,343,339 

Expenditures: 
I-ion: 

Salaries of IC11Chcrs $ 960 $ 8,232 $ 1,706,151 

Other salaries for instruction $ IS,231 21,731 
Pun:hascd prodcssional and technical sav 840 
Purchased professional cducationol scniccs 2,100 700 59,$$2 
Other purchased professional scrviccs 16,268 124,0$7 
Clcanins, repair and maintenance 45,393 47,120 
Tuition 3,561,164 
Travel 3,141 3,141 
General supplies 116,468 12.689 173,132 430,806 
TeKtbooks 75,278 
Olhcr objccls 2968 13 800 16868 

Total instrue1ion 171,030 27.920 212,132 6,046,708 

Suppon scniccs: 
Salaries of olhcr professional suff 1,170 42,586 
Pcrsonol scmccs-cmployce benefits 743,4$3 
Purchased profcssionol educational scniccs 1,021.663 
ConlraClcd scniccs • vendors 312 4,758 
Supplies and mntcriols 18.S20 
Other objects 253975 

Total suppon services 1,482 2,084,955 

Facilities acquisition ond construction services: 
lnslructional equipment 13,559 6,933 26,372 
Non-instructional equipment . 6J04 181J04 

To!ol facilities ~uisition ond construClion 
services 13559 13J37 207 676 

Other finarn:ins uses: 
Tnuisfcn out (4,000) 

T o!ol expenditures s 184,589 $ 27920 $ 226,851 s 8J43J39 
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Capital Projects Fund 



Toms River Regional School District 
Capital Projects Fund 

Summary Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance 

(Budgetary Basis) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Revenues and other financing sources 
Debt issuance 

Premium on debt issuance 

Interest earned 
Total revenues and other financing sources 

Expenditures and other financing uses 
Architectural/Engineering Services 
Interest 

Costs or issuance 

Transfers out 
Total expenditures and other financing uses 

Excess or revenues over expenditures and other financing uses 

Fund Balance, July I 

Fund &lance, June 30 

F-1 

Curreat 
Year 

$ 16,710,000 

1,301,561 
79,457 

18,091,018 

685,870 

350,975 

121,402 

79,457 
1.237,704 

16,853,314 

s 16,853,314 
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Toms River Regional School District 
Capital Projects Fund 

F-la 

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance and Project Status 
(Budgetary Basis) 

Energy Savings Improvement Program 

From Inception and for the year ended June 30, 2018 

Prior Current 
Periods Vear Totals 

Revenues and other financing sources 
Debt issuance s 16,710,000 s 16,710,000 

Premium on debt issuance 1,301,561 1,301,561 

Interest Earned 79,457 79,457 
Total revenues and other financing sources 18,091,018 18,091,018 

E1pendltures and other financing uses 
Architectural/Engineering Services 685,870 685,870 

Construction services 

Interest 350,975 350,975 

Costs of issuance 121,402 121,402 
Transfers out 19,451 79,457 

Total expenditures and other financing uses 1,237,704 1,237,704 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 

(under) expenditures s s 16,853,314 s 16,853,314 

Additional Project Information: 
Project Number NIA 
Grant Date N/A 
Bond Authorization Date 12/2017 
Bond Authorized s 16,710,000 

Bonds Issued 16,710,000 
Original Authorized Cost 16,710,000 
Revised Authorized Cost s 11;.mi.mm 

Percentage Increase over Original Authorized 0% 
Percentage Completion 7% 
Original Target Completion Date 6/30/2019 

Revised 
Authorized 

Cost 

s 16,710,000 

16,710,000 

3,546,812 

13,163,188 

16,710,000 

s 
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. Fiduciary Funds 



H•I 

Toms River Regional School District 
Fiduciary Funds 

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

June 30, 2018 

Trust A11en£I 
Private• 
Purpose Clas.s 

Scholanhlp Unemployment Student Trust 
Funds Comeematlon Totab ActiVill'. Palroll Fund Tolab 

Assels 
Cash and cash equivalents s 49,S76 s S,8S9,8S1 s S.909.433 S 762131S s 6,775,908 s 391S98 s 7,577,821 
Total assets 49,576 S,8S9,8S7 S,909,433 S 762131S s 6177S1908 s 39,S98 s 7,577,821 

Liabilities 
Payroll deductions and 

withholdings payable s 1,726,320 s 1,726,320 
Summer payroll payable S,049,S88 S,049,S88 
Accounts payable 81,477 81,477 
Due to class funds s 39,S98 39,598 
Due IO student groups s 762,31S 762.)IS 
Total liabilities 81,477 81,477 s 762,31S s 6,775,908 s 39,S98 s 7,577,821 

Net position 
Held in trust for 

unemployment benefits S,778,380 S,778,380 
Held in trust for schol11JShips 49S76 49,S76 
Total net position s 491S76 s S17781380 s S182719S6 
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MIDDLE SCHOOLS: 

lntennediate North 

lntennediate East 

lntennediate South 

HIGH SCHOOLS: 

High School East 

High School North 

High School South 

Total all schools 

Toms River Regional School District 
Student Activity Agency Fund 

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Balance Cash Cash 
July l, 2017 Receipts Disbursements 

$ 25,880 $ 34,366 $ 32,765 

113,901 37,767 37,942 

36,594 83,777 69,026 

176,375 155,910 139,733 

239,629 407,063 422,854 

177,931 414,936 419,625 

176,039 310,849 314,205 

593,599 1,132,848 1,156,684 

$ 769,974 $ 1,288,758 $ 1,296,417 

H-3 

Balance 
June 30, 2018 

$ 27,481 

113,726 

51,345 

192,552 

223,838 

173,242 

172,683 

569,763 

$ 762,315 
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Toms River Regional School District 
Payroll Agency Fund 

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Balance 

July Cash Cash 
1, 2017 Receipts Disbursements 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,603,264 $ 161,540,290 $ 161,367,646 

Total assets $ 6,603,264 $ 161,540,290 $ 161,367,646 

Liabilities 
Payroll deductions and withholdings 

payable $ 1,803,916 $ 154,765,650 $ 154,843,246 

Summer payroll payable 4,799,348 6,774,640 6,524,400 

Total liabilities $ 6,603,264 $ 161,540,290 $ 161,367,646 

H-4 

Balance 

June 

30, 2018 

$ 6,775,908 

$ 6,775,908 

$ 1,726,320 

5,049,588 

$ 6,775,908 
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HIGH SCHOOLS: 

High School North 

High School South 
Total all schools 

Toms River Regional School District 
Class Trust Fund 

Schedule of Cash Receipts and Disbursements 

Year ended June 30, 20J8 

Balance Cash Cash 
July I, 2017 Receipts Disbursements 

$ 12,210 $ 14 $ 4,302 
30,327 1,365 16 

$ 42,537 $ 1,379 $ 4,318 

H-5 

Balance 

June 30, 2018 

$ 7,922 

31,676 

$ 39,598 
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Long-Term Debt 



1-1 
Toms River Regional School District 

Long-Term Debt 

Schedule or Serial Bonds Payable 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Date of Amount of Annual Maturities Interest Balance Bmlancc 
Issue Issue Issue Date Amount Rtltc Juli:: 11 2017 Issued Retired June 301 2018 

Schools 4/20/2009 S IS,790,000 7/IS/2018 s 1,275,000 3.SO % 
Refunding bonds 7/IS/2019 1,335,000 3.63 

7/JS/2020 1,375,000 3.7S 
7/IS/2021 1,425,000 3.88 
7/IS/2022 1,485,000 4.00 s 8,115,000 S 1.220.000 s 6,895,000 

Schools 12/27/2012 17,63S,OOO 7/IS/2018 1,125.000 4.00 
Refunding bonds 7/IS/2019 1,180,000 4.00 

7/IS/2020 1,235.000 4.00 
7/IS/2021 1,285,000 4.00 
7/15/2022 1,345,000 4.00 
7/IS/2023 l,39S,OOO 4.00 
7/IS/2024 l,4SS,000 4.00 
7/IS/202S l,SIS,000 4.00 
7/IS/2026 1,580,000 4.00 
7/IS/2027 l,64S,000 4.00 
7/IS/2028 1,710,000 4.00 16,550,000 1,080,000 IS,470,000 

Schools S/23/2013 20,36S,OOO 7/IS/2018 950,000 1.67 
Refunding bonds 7/IS/2019 960,000 2.01 

7/IS/2020 96S,OOO 2.31 
7/IS/2021 2,690,000 2.62 
7/IS/2022 2,760,000. 2.87 
7/IS/2023 4,490,000 2.97 
7/IS/2024 4,630,000 3.12 18,390,000 945,000 17,445,000 

Schools 10/27/2016 6,055,000 I/IS/2019 1,490,000 1.40 
Refunding bonds I/IS/2020 l,SIS,000 1.40 

I/IS/2021 l,SS0,000 1.40 6,025,000 1,470,000 4,SSS,000 

School Energy Savings Pro8J3111 12/20/2017 16,710,000 12/IS/2019 820,000 S.00 
12/IS/2020 885,000 S.00 
12/IS/2021 385,000 S.00 
12/IS/2022 425,000 S.00 
12/IS/2023 4SS,OOO 5.00 
12/IS/2024 480,000 S.00 
12/IS/202S S30,000 S.00 
12/IS/2026 580,000 S.00 
12/IS/2027 635,000 S.00 
12/IS/2028 695,000 S.00 

, 12/IS/2029 760,000 S.00 
12/IS/2030 825,000 5.00 
12/IS/2031 895,000 S.00 
12/IS/2032 970,000 S.00 
12/IS/2033 1,050,000 S.00 
12/IS/2034 1.125,000 S.00 
12/IS/203S 1,190,000 3.12S 
12/IS/2036 1,260,000 3.25 
12/IS/2037 1,335,000 3.25 
12/IS/2038 1,410,000 3.25 s 16,710,000 16,710,000 

$ 49,080.000 s 16,710,000 S 4,715,000 s 61,07S,OOO 
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Toms River Regional School District 
Long-Tenn Debt 

Schedule of Obligations Under Capital Leases 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Amount of Issued 
Original Balance Current 

Series Issue July 1, 2017 Year 

Municipal Capital Corp.- Multiple Locations $ 59,271 $ 8,IOO 

Municipal Capital Corp. - Central Athletics 6,415 1,043 

TD Equipment - IT Equipment 750,000 230,597 

TD Equipment - IT Equipment 700,000 72,278 

TD Equipment - IT Equipment 1,700,000 693,442 

TD Equipment - IT Equipment 1,700,000 1,036,425 

TD Equipment - School Buses and Technology 2,150,000 1,728,912 

TD Equipment • Phone system 875,000 789,093 

TD Equipment - School Buses and Technology 2,080,000 2,080,000 

TD Equipment· School Buses and Technology 2,130,000 s 2,130,000 
$ 6,639,890 s 2,130,000 

1-2 

Retired 
Current Balance 

Year June 30, 2018 

$ 8,100 

1,043 

153,187 $ 77,4IO 

72,278 

344,320 349,122 

339,677 696,748 

423,545 1,305,367 

170,436 618,657 

401,736 1,678,264 

2,130,000 

s 1,914,322 $ 6,855,568 
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CREBS· November 19, 2008 

Toms River Regional School District 
Long-Term Debt 

Schedule of Notes Payable 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Amount of 
Interest Original Balance 

Rate Issue July I, 2017 

1.15% s 2,742,510 $ 1,097,004 
$ 1,097,004 

I-2a 

Retired 

Current Balance 
Year June 30, 2018 

$ 182,834 s 914,170 
$ 182,834 s 914,170 
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Deferred Pension Obligation 

Toms River Regional School District 
Long-Term Debt 

Schedule of Deferred Pension Obligation 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Amount of 

Interest Original Balance 
Rate Issue July I, 2017 

8.25% $ 958,051 $ 842,878 
$ 842,878 

1-2b 

Retired 
Current Balance 

Year June 30, 2018 

$ 66,461 $ 776,417 
$ 66,461 $ 776,417 
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1-3 

Toms River Regional School District 
Debt Service Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Variance 
Original Budget Final Final 

Budget Transfers Budget Actual to Actual 

Revenues: 

Local tax levy $ 5,612,753 $ 5,612,753 $ 5,612,753 

State sources: 

Debt Service Aid 349,207 349,207 349,207 

Total revenues 5,961,960 5,961,960 5,961,960 

Expenditures: 

Principal on CREBs 182,834 182,834 182,834 

Principal on bonds 4,715,000 4,715,000 4,715,000 

Interest on ERi 492,169 492,169 492,169 

Interest on bonds 1,027,915 1,027,915 1,027,908 $ 7 

Total expenditures 6,417,918 6,417,918 6,417,911 7 
(Deficiency) excess of revenues (under) 

over expenditures (455,958) (455,958) (455,951) 7 

Other financing sources: 

Transfers in 455,910 455,910 455,910 

Total other financing sources 455,910 455,910 455,910 

Net change in fund balance (48) (48) (41) 7 

Fund balance, July I 84,208 84,208 84,208 

Fund balance, June 30 $ 84,160 $ . $ 84,160 $ 84,167 $ 7 
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EXHIBIT J-1 
TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Unaudlttd 

JUNE30 
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Governmental Activities: (as restated) 
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 99,813,914 $ I 00.138,595 $ 104,334,891 $ 105,202,765 $ 107,466,300 $ 106, 170,502 $ 118,369,561 $ 45,783,902 $ 47,172,494 $ 45,657,155 
Restricted 15,420,155 14,975.296 14,493,814 12,842,765 9,390,291 5,988,584 205,799 342,812 364.199 1,150,319 
Unrestricted (deficit) (117,937,802} (114,932,226} (111,724,008} (106,964,540} (29,043,889} (18,654,892} (8,623,810} (13,046,576) (3,591,545) (4,543,377) 

Total Governmental Activities 
Net Position $ c2 Zill zrn s 18166S $ Z l!M 622 $ 11 QSQ gqo $ BZ 812 Zil2 $ 23 SIM 12A $ 102 2SI SSQ $ llQBQ 138 $ 43 2J5 HS $ 422M09Z 

Business-Type Activities: 
Investment in Capital Assets $ 8,997,956 s 8,810,878 s 9,079,296 s 9,333.216 s 9,451,339 $ 9,782,088 $ 8,735,666 $ 6,406,443 s 6,553.808 $ 6.230,000 
Unrestricted 2,396,522 2,558,382 2,092,765 1,674,628 2,320,105 2J45,021 3,232,844 3,592,818 3,724,150 3,375,546 

Total Business-Type Activities 
Net Position s II J2HZ8 $ 11362261! s 11122061 $ 111!1!2844 $ II ZZI ~4 $ 12Q27 IQ2 $ 11268510 $ 2222261 $ IQ 222 258 $ 2605 546 

Government-Wide: 
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ I 08,811.870 $ 108,949,473 $ 113,414,187 s 114,535.981 s 116,917,639 $ 115,952,590 $ 127,105,227 $ 52,190,345 $ 53,726,302 $ 51,887,155 
Restricted 15,420,155 14,975.296 14,493,814 12,842,765 9,390,291 5,988,584 205,799 342,812 364,199 1,150,319 
Unrestricted (deficit) (IIS,541J80) (112,373,844) ( I 09,631,243) (105,289,912) (26,723,784) (16,409,871 l (5,390,966) (9453,758) 132,605 (1,167,831} 

Total Government-Wide Net Position $ 8 fiCJO NS $ I I 5SQ225 $ 18 226 758 $ 221!88 834 $ 22584146 $ 105 531 3Q3 $ 121220060 $ 43072)22 s 54223106 $ 51862Ml 

Source :CAFR Schedule A-1 

GASB No. 63 was implemented in the 2013 fiscal year, which required a change in language from net assets to net position for full accrual funds. 
This required presentation did not impact any of the balances from prior years. (See footnotes for detail). 

GASB No. 68 was implemented during the 2015 fiscal year, which required the restatement of beginning net position in the amount of$76,82S,980. This amount is not reflected in the June 30, 2014 Net Position, above. 
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EXHIBIT J-2 
(Page I of3) 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 
2018 2017 2016 201S 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Expenses: (as restated) 
Governmental Activities: 
lnsuuction: 

lnsuuction $ 211,887,951 $ 195,622,192 s 178,305,712 
Re11ular s 139,814,483 s 123,114,6S4 s 121,909,028 s 6S,93S,727 $ 66,235,265 $ 96,723,532 $ 91,725,377 
Special Education 23,825,273 16,319,752 IS.SI 1,096 14,817,304 13,913,417 20,409,347 18.SBl,171 
Other Special Education 1,648,562 1,383,970 1,453,892 1,323,853 1,378,203 2,08S,S79 1,936,770 
Vocational 1,564,781 I.SIS,261 2,633,777 2,648,657 
School Sponson:d.lOther lnslnlctionnl 2,98S,ISS 2,806,100 3,730,381 3,699,586 4,006,264 8,041,BSS 7,839,463 
Adult Continuin11 Education Programs 17,637 28,290 23,848 39,201 31,901 

Suppon Services: 
Attendance I social work 387,746 350,317 314,030 
Health services 6)97,628 S,703,878 S,21S,940 
Other Suppon Services 24,918,381 22,887,331 20,445,313 19,794.456 20,844,273 21.193.367 73,236,252 68,SSB,277 
Improvement of inslnlction 6,011,197 S,888,044 S,289.591 
School library 3,891,383 3,604,S9S 3)S2,S94 
lnsuuctional staffuaininJt 220,608 201,790 2S3,IS6 
General Administration 4,916,786 5,409,665 4,493,013 3,712,059 2,519,575 2,238,220 1,913,430 2,237,326 IS,7S7,271 2,904,801 
School Administrative Services 17,792,269 16,066,720 14,292,348 12,988,419 11,725,998 10,032,174 10,017.867 10,150.928 3,314,477 14,759,196 
Central services 5,034,316 4,381,223 3,867,SS2 
Administrative inform11tion technoloJlV 2,861,286 2,809,911 3,278,731 
Required maintennnce 7,377,341 7,102,SSO S,388.SS7 
Operation or plant 20,591,699 l8,3S2,Sl7 17,812.538 
Security 2,429,200 2,298,268 2,088,660 
Pupil Transponation 22,S14,l 18 20,142,043 18,731,SS2 16,2SS,165 17,617,143 ll,69S,418 11,314,786 10,923,759 16,639.502 16,955,034 
Tuition 4,328,874 4,124,211 3,148,205 2,985,309 2,070,901 667.S98 2,387,954 
Student & Instruction Related Services 10,560,935 12,342,624 19,031,847 18,415,334 18,713,173 25,149,439 23,444,250 
Plant Operations & Maintenance 28,494,762 24,909,297 · 17,129,935 IS,818,621 17,263,493 24,895,033 24,101,000 
Special Schools 70,589 65,624 42,164 43,489 31,000 26,900 42,143 69,862 80,057 

Costs or issuance 121,402 35,641 
Interest on Long-Term Debt 2,819,562 l,S90,S63 2,20S,859 2,394,907 2,672,509 2,544,895 3,085,116 4,221,619 3,255,648 3,428,108 
Unallocated Depreciation 8,666,231 8,174,831 S,747,264 3,077,096 4,731,200 
Unallocated Amonization 92SS 

Total Governmental Activities Expenses 340,243,462 312,512,872 28S,33S,146 266,84SJ14 240,423,S9S 238,342,581 232,357,987 227,001,141 222,759,217 215,554,939 

Business-Type Activities: 
Food Service 4,294.142 4,344,472 4,637.749 4,637,S19 S,187,ISI S,469,971 S,185,881 S,113,640 4,713,932 4,922,710 
Corporate Center 916,866 829,536 850,433 907,582 749,028 799,006 817,782 924,024 926,541 982,127 
Dav Care Center 738,499 706,731 808,082 862,347 827,779 747,396 811,474 700,641 463,IS7 329,499 
Bennen Complex 361,086 342,781 328,542 680,839 317.332 278,982 271,046 
RWJ Barnabas Health Arena 410,859 381,959 403,707 693,480 287,525 217,684 276,295 324,514 370,161 626,118 

Total Business-Type Activities Expenses 6,721,452 6,605,479 7,028,513 7,781,767 7,368,815 7,513,039 7,362,478 7,062,819 6,473,791 6,860,454 

Total District Expenses $ 3!1!126!121! $ J12 mm s 222 JfiJ fiS2 s 2ZH2fi2l!I $ MZZ2HII! $ mmfiza s 232 ZZ!l ~fiS $ ZMllfil 261! $ mmoos $ 22Hl~m 
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EXHIBIT J-2 
(Pagel of3) 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION• (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Accrual Basis or Accounting) 

Unaudited 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30 
2018 2017 2016 201S 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

(115 restated) 
Pr~ram Revenues: 

Operating Grants & Contributions $ 7,889,330 $ 7,941,100 $ 7,468,S73 s 6,997,929 $ 6,909,414 s 8,44S,687 $ 7,752,618 $ 9,867,886 $ 12,808,646 $ 8,068,901 
Charges for services 1,401,745 l,S24,208 1,228,039 l,109,S87 l,37S,7S7 1,325,068 
Capital Grants & Contributions 241,092 78,082 lS,089 IOJ24 33,279 

Total Governmental Activities Program 
Revenues 9,S32,167 9,543,390 8,711,701 8,117,840 8,318,450 91770,7SS 7,752,618 9,867,886 12,808,646 8,068,901 

Business-Type Activities: 
Charges for Services: 

Food Service 2,006,216 2,165,766 2,247,791 2,435.298 2,636,196 2,872,39S 3,099,881 3,386,422 3,372,171 3,836,181 
Corporate Center 933,800 891,265 1,094,318 l,036,S02 1,022,375 763,881 667,877 631,684 937,439 787,549 
Day Care Cenicr 749,19S 687,233 69S,707 78S.S64 839,809 74S,S89 722,030 707,876 443,0SB 443.142 
Bennett Complex 410,492 4Sl,3S7 446,380 379,110 388,887 336,464 366,712 
RWJ Barnabas Health Arena S36,481 406,743 40S,S40 313,868 390,492 303,249 3S6,S69 735,439 842,228 1,000,306 

Operating Grants & Contributions 2.J:.17,811 2Jll,619 2,414,690 2,022,935 1,986,596 2,022,890 1,877,730 1,831,685 1~48,918 1,426.J:.78 

Total Business-Type Activities Program 
Revenues 6,8S3,99S 6,913,983 7,304,426 6,973.J:.77 7,264JSS 7,044,468 7,090,799 7.J:.93,106 7,143,814 7,493,456 

Total District Program Revenues $ Hil!!fi 162 $ Hi!SZm $ lli!!lli 121 s 1a21112 $ IS Sll21!!!S $ 1681 S 223 s 1Hmm $ IZ Hi!!222 $ IUSH!i!! $ 1smm 

Net (ExpenseVRevenue: 
Govemmcntol Activities s (330,711.295) S (302,969,482) S (276,623,445) $ (258,727,374) S (232,IOS,14S) $ (228,571,826) $ (224,605,369) S (217,133.2SS) S (209,9SO,S71) $ (207,486,038) 
Business-Type Activities 132J43 308,S04 27S,913 (808,490} (104,460} (468,571} (271 679} 230.J:.87 670,023 633 002 

Total Government-Wide Expense $ m!!SZ!!Zm $ (l!!2 lili!!2Zlll $ (2ZliHZml S (2S2 mll~l s (232 2!12 li!!S) S (222 ~!! 32Zl S (22! IIZZ ~Ill $ (2162!!2 21i8l S (2!12 211!! ml $ !2!.!fi !!Sl !!llil 
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EXHIBIT J-2 
{Pll.JlC 3 of3) 

TOl\fS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION· (ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Accrual Basis or Accounting) 

Unaudited 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30 
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

(as restated) 
General Revenues & Other Changes in Net Position: 
Governmental Activities: 
Property Taxes Levied for General 

Purposes, Net s 151,916,716 s 144,911,347 s 137,S69,066 s 132,197,482 s I 18,SIS,706 s 132,719,175 s 131,104,192 s 126.219.467 s I IS,800,000 s I I 1,634,746 
Taxes Levied for Debt Service S,612,7S3 S,697,674 6,002,643 6,ISl,SIO 6.230,678 6,406.267 6,303,660 6,427,760 6,661,616 4,06S,8S2 
Unrestricted Grants & Contributions 168,480,782 138,865,669 126,812.212 I 18,915,604 98,565,195 85,456,375 84,568,143 77,052.160 84,341,484 80,99S,846 
lnvestmenl Earnings 161,918 28,209 4,788 2,341 1.268 S,445 7 54,ISS 27.210 210,337 
Miscellaneous Income 1,537,832 1,065,489 1.246,460 852,447 66S.IS2 3,477,887 3,538,549 3,517.281 2.214,S28 2,916,172 
Transfers 108.280 112.280 112.280 112.282 IS2.280 587,084 192.280 513.209 
FEMA Reimbursement 16S 674 

Tolal Govcmmenial Activilies 327,818J81 290,680,668 271,747,449 258,231,666 224,133,279 228,817,907 225,706,831 213,784,032 209,044,838 199,822,953 

Special llem 7,616 5,000,000 
Extraordinary I1em 365,782 899,703 589,976 2J80,374 

Business-Type Activities: 
Investment EaminllS 9SS 97S 584 626 1.075 1,325 1,954 4.225 5,291 16,561 
FEMA Reimbursement 73,900 
Miscellaneous Income 82,646 
Transfers (108,280} (I 12,280} (I 12,280) (112,282} (152,280) (587,084} (192,280) (513,209} 

Tola( Business-Type Activities (107,325} (I I 1,305) (111,696) 44,890 (151,205) (585,759} (190,326} (508,984) S,291 16,561 

Total Government-Wide s l22 2U!2Sfi s 22!! S62 lfil s 221mm s m226m s m2112112:1 s 22112l2 1!111 s mSlfiS!lS s 21l22.HHII s 2!!2 !!S!l 122 s 122 n2 m 

Change in Net Position: 
Governmental Activities s (2,885,398) S (6,923,032) s (3,976.293) S 94.268 s (5,691,492) S 246,081 s 1,101,462 s (3,349.223) S (905,733) S (7,663,085) 
Business-Type Activi1ies 25,218 197,199 164J17 (763,600) (2SS,66S} (1,054,330) (462,005} (278,697} 675,314 649,563 

Total District s (2 Bfi!l 111!!} s '622211m s !l 812!!26} s Cfiti2m} s c22!121m s (11!!112!12} s 6l2!1S2 s {l fi22 221U s (2l!l ~ 12} s czo1J sm 

Source: CAFR Schedule A-2 

Note: In the 20 I 6 fiscal vear. allocations were revised between various expense accounts. 

Note 2: GASB 7S was implemented in the 2018 fiscal year, which increased the unrestricted grants and contributions and various expense lines from the previous year. 
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TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENT AL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Unaudited 

JUNE30, 
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 

General Fund: 
Restricted $ 15,276,841 s 14,975,296 s 14,493,814 s 12,842,765 $ 9,390,561 s 5,887,107 s 5,974,848 s 5,796,119 
Assigned 3,147,905 2,018,170 1,092,087 1,916,077 1,110,444 2,396,538 1,364,933 
Unassigned 474,200 p,951,224} 

Total General Fund $ 18,424,746 $ 16,993,466 $ 15,585,901 $ 14,758,842 $ 10,501,005 $ 8,757,845 $ 7,339,781 $ 3!844,895 

All Other Governmental Funds: 
Restricted: 

Capital Projects Fund $ 16,853,314 s 1,108 $ 114,112 $ 249,446 
Debt Service Fund 84,167 $ 84,208 $ 49 $ 157,002 $ 165,684 100,369 911687 1061165 

Total All Other Governmental 
Funds s 16,937,481 s 84,208 s 49 $ 157,002 s 165,684 s 101,477 s 205,799 $ 355,611 

Source: CAFR Schedule B-1 

Note I: GASB 54 was implemented in the 2011 fiscal year, which required the presentation of governmental fund balances to be reponcd in different classifications 
from those presented in prior years. Prior years have not been restated and are not required to be. 

EXHIBIT J-3 

2010 2009 

$ 9,069,361 $ 13,302,560 

3,330,513 2,144,003 

$ 12,399,874 $ 15,446,563 

$ 257,947 $ 1,150,148 
106,252 171 

$ 364,199 s 1,150,319 
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EXHIBIT J-4 
(Page I of2) 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Unaudited 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30 
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Revenuts: 
Tax levy s 157,529,469 $ 150,609,021 $ 143,571,709 $ 138,348,992 $ 124,749,384 $ 139,125,442 $ 137,407,852 $ 132,647,227 $ 122,461,616 $ 115,700,598 
Other Local Revenue 3,468,772 2,978,380 2,620,178 2,150,232 2,523,642 3,487,656 3,644,472 4,133,207 2,441,589 6,794,020 
Restricted Grants-in-Aid - Ocean County 4,778 4,500 21,967 
State Sources 99,676,989 95,495,409 92,004,137 88,717,248 85,733,921 87,060,718 81,872,704 76,746,160 84,137,134 82,176,131 
Federal Revenue 309,882 494,916 7,810,536 9,SOl,970 12,831J74 353,171 2,695,439 301J22 6,866,649 

Subtotal 260,985,112 249,577,726 246,006,560 238,718,442 225,838,221 230,026,987 225,620,467 213,832,594 209,044,839 211,559,365 

Special Revenue: 
Federal 6,944,604 6,802,961 6,534,583 6,120,186 6,162,773 6,849,177 6,836,288 8,231,588 11,626,193 6,866,649 
State 822,S41 830,725 808,188 702,210 596,876 964,064 810,414 1,074,527 1,182,453 1,202,252 

Total Revenues 268,7S2,2S7 257,211,412 253,349,331 24S,S40,838 232,597,870 237,840,228 233,267,169 223,138,709 221,853,485 219,628,266 

Expenditures: 
Instruction: 
Instruction 98,261,574 98,785,657 96,460,261 
Rc,tular Instruction 67,749,842 71,424,029 69,909,028 65,935,727 66,235,265 70,775,226 60,157,586 
Special Education Instruction 13,449,986 16,319,752 15,Sll,096 14,817,304 13,913,417 13,682,035 12,867,969 
Other Instruction 11,379,122 1,383,970 1,453,892 1,323,853 1,378,203 1,391,433 1,337,305 
Vocational 1,564,781 1,515,261 1,792,949 1,883,453 
School Sponsored/Other Instructional 3,638,816 2,806,100 3,730,381 3,699,586 4,006,264 6,484,121 4,395,856 
Adult/Continuing Education Programs 17,637 28,290 23,848 27,573 22,427 

Support Services: 
Tuition 5,941,454 5,135,651 3,944,585 4,275,708 4,124,211 3,148,205 2,985,309 2,070,901 667,598 2,387,954 
Student & Instruction Related Services 21,074,301 20,580,310 19,878,812 16,833,119 18,128,663 19,031,847 18,415,334 18,713,173 17,114,306 16,546,017 
General Administration 3,209,748 3,877,107 3,229,855 2,846,459 2,300,496 2,238,220 1,913,430 2,237,326 2,740,117 2,400,865 
School Administrative Services 7,900,213 7,730,391 7,504,228 10,912,587 10,720,294 10,076,204 10,017,867 10,150,928 10,713,775 10,424,275 
Central services 2,271,270 2,146,758 2,074,046 
Administrative infonnation technology 1,494,232 1,551,109 1,609,660 
Plant Operations & Maintenance 16,612,888 16,450,307 16,273,944 17,289,882 17,275,268 17,348,622 15,848,523 17,398,949 19,645,580 19,427,536 
Student Transportation 12,381,904 11,575,212 11,271,722 ll,5Sl,Sl7 12,552,552 ll,69S,418 11,314,786 10,923,759 12,933,062 13,748,617 
Business & Other Support Services 292 
Unallocated Benefits 87,985,238 80,117,455 80,832,203 73,918,744 71,706,026 75,107,138 74,118,411 68,242,373 62,267,473 52,799,752 

122 



EXHIBIT J-4 
(Page 2 of2) 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(ModJjied Accrual Basis of Accoundng) 

Unaudited 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 
2018 2017 2016 201S 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Expenditures (continued): 
Special Schools $ 31,795 $ 32,276 $ 31,169 $ 26,635 $ 27,538 $ 31,000 $ 26,900 $ 42,143 $ 46,691 $ SS,OS9 

Capital Projects Fund 113,004 43,740 8,SOI 1,092,353 1,SIS,483 
Debt Service: 6,455,314 6,Sll,486 6,Sl9,S48 6,537,969 6,765,667 6,772,384 6,766,561 7,011,966 7,107,723 

Debt service payment - principal 6,812,156 
Debt service payment - interest 2,037,444 
Costs of issuance 121,402 

Capital Outlay: 
Equipment 4,120,910 2,636,870 1,471,730 2,301,535 2,325,038 921,527 1,182,495 852,188 273,988 1,014,401 
Facilities Acquisition & Construction 

Services 1.184,205 1,387,668 2,597,507 1,362,825 1,518,998 602,484 406,962 400,772 160,413 

Total Expenditures 271,440,734 258,462,085 253,691,208 244,056,325 239,150,904 237,701,370 230,415,682 224,879,832 228,820,659 214,092,570 

(Deficiency) Excess of Revenues 
(Under) Over Expenditures (2,688,477} {1,250,673} (341,877} 1,484,513 (6,553,034} 138,858 2,851,487 (1,741,123} (6,%7,174} 5,535,696 

Other Financing Sources/(Uses): 
Transfers Out (539,367) (455,910) (22) (4,324) (300,000) 
Transfers In 647,647 568,190 112,280 112,282 152,302 S87,084 192,280 513,209 
Proceeds from Community Disaster Loan (CDL) 411,148 4,588,852 
Refunding bonds issued 6,055,000 
Payment 10 bond refunding escrow agenl (6,022,525) 
Non-Federal Cos! Share Reimbursemcnl Program 
proceeds funded by Community Development 
Block Gran! 25,022 

Bonds issued 16,710,000 
Premium on bonds issued 1,301,561 
Capital Leases (Nonbudgeted) 2,845,573 2,206,838 1,651,236 1,338,895 426,450 301,307 180,134 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 20,965,414 2,376,615 112J80 2,174,666 6,080,027 l,009JIO 493,587 693,343 (300,000} 

Extraordinary Item 7616 365 782 899703 589 976 2 280 374 

Net Change in Fund Balances s 182M SSJ s I ~2122~ s 62Q 106 s 1242 ISS s I 8Q2 362 s I 1~11068 s J J4S O'.M s U ~2211Q} s (62621'.Ml s S 2JS 626 

Debt Service as a Percentage of 
Noncapital Expenditures 3.4% 2.5% 2.6% 2.7% 2.8% 2.9% 3.0% 3.0% 3.1% 3.S% 

Source: District records CAFR Schedule B-2 

Note: Noncapital expenditures are total expenditures less capital outlay. 

Note: In the 2016 fiscal year, allocations were revised between various expense accounts. 
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FISCAL 
YEAR INTEREST PRIOR 

ENDING ON YEAR 
JUNE30, INVESTMENTS TUITION REFUNDS 

2018 $ 82,461 s 1,242,546 
2017 28,209 1,457,109 
2016 4,788 1,143,509 
2015 2,341 1,031,474 s 26S 
2014 1,246 1,292,661 11,316 
2013 S,437 1,325,068 
2012 1,416,542 
2011 54,073 870,836 
2010 26,918 400,375 20,606 
2009 208,104 428,009 863,856 

Source: District records 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
GENERAL FUND - OTHER LOCAL REVENUE BY SOURCE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Modijied Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

Unaudited 

NET RENTAL 
DONATIONS E-Rate INCOME TRANSPORTATION 

s 270,572 s 119,921 s 159,199 
225,000 127,076 67,099 
602,780 14S,63S 84,530 
300,000 128,231 78,113 

140,966 83,096 
165,676 121,638 
164,S38 149,326 
104,019 180,438 

$ 163,706 84,422 127,018 
107,744 88,520 90,457 

EXHIBIT J-5 

SALE OF 
SOLAR RENEWABLE 

ENERGY CREDITS MISCELLANEOUS TOTAL 

s 376,611 $ 770,728 $ 3,022,038 
365,735 319,490 2,589,718 
485,024 12,974 2,479,240 
229,013 185,477 1,954,914 
460,199 338,241 2,327,725 

1,231,420 2,849,239 
1,764,000 3,494,406 
1,862,613 3,071,979 
1,418,402 2,241,447 
1,326,637 3,113,327 
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TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ASSESSED VALUE AND VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 

BOROUGH OF BEACHWOOD 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 
2009 

TOWNSHIP OF TOMS RIVER 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 
2009 

BOROUGH OF PINE BEACH 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 
2009 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH TOMS RIVER 
2018 
2017 
2016 
2015 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 
2009 

EXHIBIT J-6 

ESTIMATED NET 
ASSESSED/f AXABLE 

VALUATIONS 

$ 808,928,748 
807,205,944 
803,231,600 

1,002,554,600 
1,004,086,500 
1,010,656,000 
1,018,095,300 
1,019,970,687 
1,020,998,700 
1,042,734,166 

$ 12,900,040,060 
12,840,826,260 
12,672,646,060 
12,524,602,960 
12,460,318,0 18 
11,389,473,485 
16,353,737,465 
16,986,477,060 
17,155,320,796 
17,221,567,478 

$ 246,829,467 
247,433,325 
246,598,826 
245,057,300 
244,468,238 
244,264,100 
301,485,400 
302,358,228 
302,167,066 
319,505,115 

$ 222,375,581 
220,876,359 
220,503,621 
271,377,300 
277,255,530 
277,442,693 
281,070, 781 
282,485,773 
282,917,127 
283,439,208 

Source: Municipal Tax Offices. Beginning with 2010, net taxable values were used from the abstract 
of ratables for Ocean County 
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EXHIBIT J-7 
TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RA TES 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(Rate per $100 of Assessed Value) 
Unaudited 

ASSESSMENT SCHOOL BOROUGH/ OCEAN COUNTY 
YEAR DISTRICT TOWNSHIP &OTHER TOTAL 

BOROUGH OF BEACHWOOD 
2018 $ 1.047 $ 0.897 s 0.451 $ 2.395 
2017 1.027 0.873 0.451 2.351 
2016 1.033 0.865 0.434 2.332 
2015 0.080 0.673 0.362 1.831 
2014 0.756 0.674 0.353 1.783 
2013 0.741 0.673 0.354 1.768 
2012 0.730 0.650 0.344 1.724 
2011 0.731 0.622 0.337 1.690 
2010 0.716 0.585 0.334 1.635 
2009 0.666 0.559 0.320 1.545 

TOWNSHIP OF TOMS RIVER 
2018 $ 1.145 s 0.650 s 0.493 s 2.288 
2017 1.123 0.649 0.497 2.269 
2016 1.083 0.648 0.481 2.212 
2015 1.044 0.612 0.471 2.127 
2014 1.014 0.584 0.430 2.028 
2013 0.992 0.544 0.431 1.961 
2012 0.778 0.412 0.348 1.538 
2011 0.739 0.377 0.335 1.451 
2010 0.706 0.347 0.317 1.370 
2009 0.634 0.290 0.308 1.232 

BOROUGH OF PINE BEACH 
2018 s 1.090 s 0.810 $ 0.470 s 2.370 
2017 1.050 0.780 0.460 2.290 
2016 1.003 0.740 0.457 2.230 
2015 1.003 0.693 0.469 2.165 
2014 0.963 0.660 0.456 2.079 
2013 0.937 0.650 0.421 2.008 
2012 0.785 0.499 0.370 1.654 
2011 0.785 0.484 0.361 l.630 
20!0 0.738 0.469 0.347 1.554 
2009 0.700 0.465 0.338 1.503 

BOROUGH OF SOUTH TOMS RIVER 
2018 s 0.956 s l.529 $ 0.418 s 2.903 
2017 0.958 1.485 0.420 2.863 
2016 0.950 l.430 0.414 2.794 
2015 0.751 l.089 0.343 2.183 
2014 0.710 l.050 0.341 2.101 
2013 0.702 l.009 0.325 2.036 
2012 0.725 0.951 0.335 2.011 
2011 0.732 0.888 0.338 1.958 
20!0 0.696 0.862 0.341 1.899 
2009 0.643 0.786 0.320 1.749 

Source: Starting with 2010, Ocean County Board of Taxation, breakdown of tax rates 
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EXHIBIT J-8 
TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAX PAYERS 
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

Unaudil~J 

2018 2009 
%OF TOTAL %0FTOTAL 

TAXABLE NET TAXABLE NET 
ASSESSED ASSESSED ASSESSED ASSESSED 

TAXPAYER VALUE RANK VALUE TAXPAYER VALUE RANK VALUE 

1E&t11m2012 me IEI'.! 
CVS Health Cc,p s 3,289.900 I 0.41% Individual Taxpa~w # I s 4,133,900 I 0.40% 
DCTN3 Beachwood. NJ LLC 2,875.200 2 0.36% Individual Taxpa~w #2 3,S0'-400 2 0.34'1. 
Town & Couniry Bllkety l,S33,SOO 3 0.19% Individual Tllltpa~r #3 3,297,300 3 0.32% 
Moorehouse Speedwell LTD Panncrship 1,400,900 4 0.17°Ai Town & Coun1ry Bakery 2,038,300 4 0.20% 
Rite Aid Corp/Luse Com Depts 3S73 1,380.000 5 0.17% Cranberry Road LLC 1,741,SOO 5 0.17% 
Stone Fin: Grille LLC 1,157.000 6 0.14% Rite Aid Cc,p 1,544,100 6 0.15". 
443 Associates LLC 755.000 7 0.09% Individual TllltpaF #4 1,369,300 7 0.13% 
Beachwood Atlanlic Dh·d LLC 648.900 8 0.08% Individual Tllltpa~r #5 1,352,400 8 0.13% 
Beachwood Yach! Club 640,900 9 0,08% Moon:housc·Speedwell LTD 1,327,200 9 0.13% 
N~ l'ropcmes LU: )lll>,400 10 0.07% Individual lllllpa~r #I> l,nJ,JOO 10 0.13% 

s 14.211i700 s 21,631,700 

!QMS Bll:'.ER me IEI'.! 
CPI @ Simon Property Group. LP s 135,000,000 I I.OS% CPI @ Simon Property Group, LP s 76,499,900 I 0.54% 
Fairways II Bey Lea LLC S5,ooo,ooo 2 0.43% SOD INC@ D Donofrio 24,881,300 2 0.18% 
BASF Corp 42,000.000 3 0.33% Ciba Speciality Chemical Corp 20,629,300 3 0.15% 
SDD INC@ D Donofrio 39,000,000 4 0.30% J & I Realty Associates LLC 16,450,700 4 0.12% 
J&I Realty Assoc LLC @ AAC Mpll 31,654,300 5 0.25% Fairways al Bey Lea LLC IS,966,600 s 0.11% 
Seacoun Pavilion LLC 30,000,000 6 0.23% SP Acquisition Assoc @ Pyne Co 15,314,700 6 0.11% 
East Coast Holiday on Bay LLC 26,640,000 7 0.21% Indian Head Pl&m Assoc @ JK Mgmt 10,500,000 7 0.07% 
S/K Bey Lea Associates I LLC 19,750,000 8 0.15% ACI Toms RMr UC 9,274,800 8 0.07% 
1256 IHR Associates LLC 18.733,100 ·9 0.15% Dover Parlcade LLC @ Paramount RJ1y 8,772,400 9 0.06% 
Dover Parkade LLC @ Paramount RIiy 1115001000 10 0.14% 999 Route 37 West@ Cronhcim 755,000 10 0.01% 

s 415,277.400 s 199,044,700 

mm:u m111s B•VEB me n;l'.! 
Lishthouse Pl. Muin& & Yacht s 3,717,700 I l.67°A, PPM Holdings Co s S,431,700 I 1.92% 
I RiVl:r Place, LLC 3,411,SOO 2 I.SJ% Lishlhou.sc Pt. Marina & Yacht 3,716,300 2 1.31% 
S30LLC 2,322,200 3 1.04% Lorlin Realty Inc 2,235,600 3 0.79% 
Moros. Zack Sr & Roula 1,760,100 4 0.79% Zack and Roula Moros 1,714,000 4 0.60% 
Lorlin Realty Inc 1,636,300 s 0.74% SafebctLLC 1,700,000 5 0.60% 
Legend Realty Associotes, Inc l,35S,SOO 6 0.61% 530LLC 1,520,000 6 0.54% 
Tradewinds Mllril\B, Inc. 993,800 7 D.4S% Tradcwinds Mllrina 1,370,500 7 0,48% 
RBC•NJ Properties, LLC 901,300 8 0.41% Kosich, Kathllrin 1,137,600 8 0.40% 
80)1110fl. Susan 897,700 9 0.40% 80)1lton. Susan 1,079,SOO 9 0.38% 
Stonge Mall Toms Ri,w, LLC 870000 10 0.39% Mini Mall, Inc 1.000,700 10 0.3S% 

s 171866,100 s 201905,900 

ell':!E IE&!;;H me IE!!! 
Dudeck. William Jr & Laura s 45.493 I 0.02% Individual Taxpa)w#I s 1,171,000 I 0.37% 
Sobieski, James & Grazia 28,439 2 0.01% Individual TaxpaF #2 1,079,200 2 0.34% 
La Pierre. Inc 27,481 3 0.01% Individual Taxpayer #3 1,073,400 3 0.34% 
Karpinsky. Lany & Dixie 24,775 4 0.01% Individual Taxpayer #4 1,041,700 4 0.33% 
Shirey, Charles & Kristine 23,915 s 0.01% Individual Taxpa)w #S 1,039,200 s 0.33% 
Finley, Raymond & Deborah 21,133 6 0.01% Individual Taxpll)'Cf #6 982,600 6 0.31% 
Kammcrman, Peter 21,099 7 0.01% Individual Taxpay« #7 977,600 7 0.31% 
Crowell, Oary &. Deborah 20,981 8 0.01% Individual Taxpayer #8 966,000 8 0.30% 
Canale. Jennie Trustee 20,172 9 0.01% Individual Taxpayer #9 879.400 9 0.28% 
Berkeley Holding Corp Elal 19.427 10 0.01% Individual Taxpayer # 10 878 700 10 0.211"/o 

s 2S21915 s 10,0881800 

Soun:c: Township tax office 
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EXHIBIT J-9 
TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

CALENDAR 
YEAR ENDED 

DECEMBER 31, TOTAL TAX LEVY AMOUNT PERCENT AGE OF LEVY 

Borough of Beachwood 
2018 NIA NIA NIA 
2017 $ 19,022,154 $ 18,742,223 95.53% 
2016 18,733,655 18,385,739 97.62% 
2015 18,388,302 17,860,771 97.13% 
2014 17,953,574 17,378,788 96.79% 
2013 17,906,306 17,293,794 96.57% 
2012 17,577,539 17,077,645 97.16% 
2011 17,269,528 16,928,427 96.30% 
2010 16,733,588 16,173,953 96.66% 
2009 15,784,498 15,293,527 96.89% 

Township of Toms River 
2018 NIA NIA NIA 
2017 $ 302,723,661 $ 296,410,794 97.91% 
2016 291,569,688 285,868,733 88.04% 
2015 277,610,168 271,732,211 97.88% 
2014 261,260,304 255,561,780 97.81% 
2013 231,047,482 225,649,792 97.66% 
2012 260,499,876 249,136,567 95.64% 
2011 254,757,257 246,018,967 96.57% 
2010 242,727,698 235,626,904 97.07% 
2009 118,269,202 113,188,256 95.70% 

Borough of Pine Beach 
·2018 NIA NIA NIA 
2017 $ 5,668,699 $ 5,609,004 98.94% 
2016 5,509,089 5,434,150 98.63% 
2015 5,331,898 5,246,053 98.29% 
2014 5,100,301 3,484,655 97.41% 
2013 4,911,915 4,148,088 97.67% 
2012 4,989,339 4,836,665 96.94% 
2011 4,928,439 4,850,570 98.42% 
2010 4,699,487 4,581,889 97.50% 
2009 4,539,269 4,400,340 96.94% 

Borough of South Toms River 
2018 NIA NIA NIA 
2017 $ 6,338,508 $ 6,135,359 96.80% 
2016 6,185,377 6,101,081 97.17% 
2015 5,943,841 5,674,371 95.47% 
2014 5,766,765 5,413,165 93.87% 
2013 5,663,235 5,349,728 94.46% 
2012 5,656,016 5,309,391 93.87% 
2011 5,540,073 5,288,930 95.47% 
2010 5,395,819 5,153,044 95.50% 
2009 4,962,865 4,754,738 95.81% 

NIA Information is not available. 

Source: Municipal Tax Offices 
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TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

FISCAL GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVillES 
YEAR GENERAL 

ENDED OBLIGATION COMMUNITY NOTES CAPITAL TOTAL 
JUNE30, BONDS DISASTER LOAN PAYABLE LEASES DISTRICT 

2018 s 63,759,415 s 914,170 $ 6,855,568 $ 71,529,153 
2017 50,634,395 1,097,004 6,639,890 58,371,289 
2016 55,098,339 $ 5,000,000 1,279,838 3,027,893 64,406,070 
2015 57,705,000 5,000,000 1,462,672 4,174,756 68,342,428 
2014 61,830,000 4,588,852 1,645,506 1,587,537 69,651,895 
2013 65,975,000 2,929,431 663,143 69,567,574 
2012 67,394,000 3,197,210 455,380 71,046,590 
2011 70,799,000 3,461,507 143,426 74,403,933 
2010 74,069,000 3,275,537 156,609 77,501,146 
2009 77,369,000 4,682,119 219,765 82,270,884 

Note: Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 
1 See Exhibit J -14 for personal income and population data. These ratios are calculated using personal income 

and population for the prior calendar years. 

NIA-information not available. 

Source: District CAFR Schedules 1-1, 1-2, 1-2a, footnotes and District records. 

EXHIBIT J· IO 

OCEAN 
%OF1 COUNTY 

PERSONAL PER 
INCOME CAPITA1 

NIA NIA 
0.09% $530 
0.07% 591 
0.07% 633 
0.06% 642 
0.06% 640 
0.06% 652 
0.05% 685 
0.05% 717 
0.05% 726 
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FISCAL 
YEAR ENDED 

JUNE301 

2018 
2017 
2016 
201S 
2014 
2013 
2012 
2011 
2010 
2009 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RATIOS OF NET GENERAL BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

PERCENTAGE OF 
GENERAL NETGENERAL ACTUAL TAXABLE 

BONDED DEBT BONDED DEBT VALUE OF 
OUTSTANDING DEDUCTIONS OUTSTANDING PROPERTY 

s 61,075,000 s 16,794,167 s 44,280,833 0.31% 
49,080,000 84,208 48,995,792 0.35% 
55,098,339 55,098,339 0.40% 
57,705,000 57,705,000 0.41% 
61,830,000 61,830,000 0.39% 
65,975,000 65,975,000 0.51% 
67,394,000 67,394,000 0.38% 
70,799,000 70,799,000 0.38% 
76,426,667 76,426,667 0.40% 
81,133,249 81,133,249 0.46% 

Note: Details regarding the District's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the basic financial statements. 

Source: Assessed valuations were provided by the Abstract ofRatables, County Board ofTaxation. 

NIA-information not available. 

EXHIBIT J•I I 

PER CAPITA 

NIA 
$530 
591 
633 
642 
640 
652 
685 
717 
726 
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TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
RATIOS OF OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT 

AS OF JUNE 30, 2018 
Unaudited 

EXHIBIT J-12 

ESTIMATED SHARE OF 
DEBT PERCENTAGE OVERLAPPING 

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT 

Debt Repaid With Property Truces: 
Toms River Regional Schools 

Net Overlapping Debt of School District: 
Beachwood 
Toms River 
Pine Beach 
South Toms River 

Total Direct & Overlapping Debt 

OUTSTANDING APPLICABLE DEBT 

100% $ 44,280,833 

100% 21,931,554 
100% 153,568,629 
100% 5,434,150 
100% 622,581 

$ 225,837,747 

Sources: Ocean County Office of the Treasurer, Beachwood, Toms River Township, Pine Beach and South Toms River. 

NOTE: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic boundaries of 
the District. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments 
that is borne by the residents and businesses of Beachwood, Toms River Township, Pine Beach and 
South Toms River. This process recognizes that, when considering the District's ability to issue and 
and repay long-tenn debt, the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken 
into account. However this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident and therefore responsible 
for repaying the debt, of each overlapping payment. 

For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of oyerlapping debt applicable is estimated using 
taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by detennining the portion of 
another governmental unit's taxable value that is within the District's boundaries and dividing it by each 
unit's total taxable value. 
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DebtLimil s 

Tollll Net Debt Applicable to Limit 

Lcl!l'l Debi Mmgin $ 

Tolal Net Debt Applicable to the Limit 
os a Pe«emage of Debt Limil 

Avenge Equalized Valuation ofT .. obtc Properly 

Debi Limil (4 % of A~c Equalization Value) 
Net Bonded School Debt 

L•Slll Debi M.orgin 

2018 

6SS.45 I .4 I& 

44,280,8)) 

6 II, 170,585 

6.76% 

2017 

s 637,576,714 s 

48,995,792 

s 588,580,922 $ 

7.68'/o 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
(Dollars In Tltousands} 

unm,,1;1N 

FISCAL YEAR 
2016 201S 2014 201l 

624.209,IS2 s 646,632,009 s 622,212,017 s 707,198,011 

53,404.951 S7,70S,OOO 61,830,000 65,975,000 

570,804,201 s 588,927,009 $ 560,382,017 $ 641,223,0 II 

8.56% 8.92% 9.94% 9.74% 

2012 

$ 746,186,283 

67J94,000 

$ 678,792,283 

9.46% 

Lqal Dehl Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year ZOii 

Equalized Valuation Duis 
2018 S 16,804,0SS,S IS 
2017 16,Sl 1,848,986 
2016 IS,822,921 1869 

$ 49,158,856~70 

s 16JS6128S14S7 

s 6SS,4S 1,418 
44~80,833 

s 611 170 S8S 

Source: Equalized valuation bases were obtained from the Dcpa,uncn1 of Education. rqional allocation forms 

EXHIBIT J.13 

2011 2010 2009 

$ 751,626.286 s 694,120.977 $ 649,556,991 

70,799,000 76,426,667 81 11))1249 

s 680,827,286 s 617,694,310 $ 568,423,742 

9.42% 11.01% 12.49% 
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TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

OCEAN COUNTY 
PER CAPITA 
PERSONAL UNEMPLOYMENT RA TES(c) 

YEAR POPULATION (a) INCOME(b) BEACHWOOD TOMS RIVER 

2018 NIA NIA NIA 
2017 110,205 $ 50,184 4.4% 
2016 108,946 47,413 4.9% 
2015 107,917 46,109 5.9% 
2014 108,430 44,453 6.6% 
2013 108,630 42,946 6.5% 
2012 109,026 42,603 11.0% 
2011 108,618 40,724 10.7% 
2010 108,095 40,291 10.3% 
2009 113,263 39,331 9.8% 

Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis. These numbers are estimated 
by the Bureau and may be revised from year to year. 

a Population infonnation provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development. These 
numbers are estimated by the Department and may be revised from year to year. 

b Per capita personal income by county estimated based upon the 20 IO Census published by the 
US Bureau of Economic Analysis. 

Not available - At the time of the filing of the 2018 audit, this information was not available. 

NIA 
4.4% 
4.9% 
5.7% 
6.7% 
8.6% 
10.0% 
9.9% 
9.7% 
9.4% 

PINE BEACH 

NIA 
4.6% 
4.6% 
4.4% 
6.8% 
6.8% 
8.9% 
8.8% 
8.4% 
8.0% 

EXHIBIT J-14 

S. TOMS RIVER 

NIA 
8.6% 
7.9% 
8.2% 
9.9% 
7.6% 
17.1% 
16.8% 
16.1% 
15.4% 
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TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
PRINCIPAL EMPWYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 
Unaudited 

2018 

EXHIBIT J-15 

2009 

TOTAL TOTAL 
EMPLOYER EMPLOYEES RANK EMPLOYMENT EMPLOYEES RANK EMPLOYMENT ------------------------------------

Source: Township Official Statements 

NA - Not Available 

THIS INFORMATION IS NOT AVAILABLE. 
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EXHIBIT J-16 
TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT DISTRICT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Unaudited 

Function/Program 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010• 2009 

Instruction: 
Regular 951 959 972 977 983 968 948 940 1,043 1,100 
Special Education 292 284 285 289 172 186 186 186 322 304 
Other Special Instruction I 1 I I I 3 
Vocational 22 24 23 26 

Support Services: 
Student & Instruction 

Related Services 282 278 270 268 261 261 248 261 40 46 
School Administrative 

Services 158 154 153 159 155 158 163 163 137 102 
General Administration 41 41 40 40 41 36 35 35 34 77 
Plant Operations & 

Maintenance 235 246 257 265 265 258 265 271 272 175 
Administrative lnfonnation 

Technology 14 14 17 17 18 18 17 18 18 19 
Pupil Transportation 195 191 195 194 191 192 188 186 185 190 
Other Support Services 117 112 120 115 119 123 124 125 121 111 

Total 2,286 2,280 2,3)0 2,325 2,206 2,200 2,)96 2,209 2,195 2,153 

• In 20 I 0, there was a change in al location methodology for staff 

Source: District Personnel Records 
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TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
OPERA TING STATISTICS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Unaudited 

OPERATING PUPIU 
FISCAL EXPENDITURES COST PER PERCENTAGE TEACHING TEACHER 
YEAR ENROLLMENT {a} PUPIL CHANGE STAFF~) RATIO (d} 

2018 15,565 $257,164,617 $16,522 3.7% 1,244 13.0 
2017 15,788 247,982,233 15,707 2.0% 1,243 14.2 
2016 15,908 243,110,485 15,282 4.0% 1,258 13.1 
2015 15,856 233,872,417 14,750 2.2% 1,269 13.5 
2014 16,182 228,770,177 14,137 -0.9% 1,274 13.7 
2013 16,596 230,742,699 13,904 3.2% 1,276 14.1 
2012 16,804 218,104, 770 12,979 NIA 1,261 14.4 
2011 17,020 218,104,770 12,815 -4.7% 1,253 14.3 
2010 17,170 228,820,659 13,327 2.9% 1,265 NIA 
2009 17,239 222,461,471 12,905 -2.1% 1,295 NIA 

Sources: District records 

Note: Enrollment based on annual October district count from the year prior. 

a Starting with 2011, operating expenditures equal total expenditures less debt service and capital projects (J-4). 
b Teaching staff includes only full-time equivalents of certificated staff. 
c Average daily enrollment and average daily attendance arc obtained from the School Register Summary (SRS). 
d Pupilfreacher ratio was obtained from the Taxpayers' Guide to Education Spending 

AVERAGE 
DAILY 

ENROLLMENT 
(ADEHc} 

15,399.4 
15,602.8 
15,812.0 
15,783.8 
16,134.0 
16,556.4 
16,787.4 
16,975.6 
17,090.1 
17,169.8 

EXHIBIT J-17 

AVERAGE %CHANGE IN 
DAILY AVERAGE STUDENT 

ATTENDANCE DAILY ATTENDANCE 
(ADA}{c} ENROLLMENT · PERCENTAGE 

14,568.3 -1.3% 94.6% 
14,755.4 -1.3% 94.6% 
14,963.0 0.2% 94.6% 
14,919.8 -2.2% 94.5% 
15,222.9 -2.6% 94.4% 
15,620.2 -1.4% 94.3% 
15,842.4 -1.1% 94.4% 
15,938.0 -0.7% 93.9% 
16,071.8 -0.5% 94.0% 
16,144.2 -2.3% 94.0% 
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EXHIBIT J.18 
(Page I of2) 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

DISTRICT BUILDINGS 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010• 2009• 

Elementary Schools: 
Beachwood (1988): 

Square Feet 70,445 70,445 70,445 70,445 70,445 70,445 70,445 70,445 
Capacity 786 786 786 786 786 786 786 786 
Enrollment 315 536 569 569 578 584 591 586 

Cedar Grove (1971 ): 
Square Feet 132,194 132,194 132,194 132,194 132,194 132,194 132,194 132,194 
Capacity 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 
Enrollment (a) 858 873 873 873 841 878 883 920 

Citta (1999): 
Square Feet 70,581 70,581 70,581 70,581 70,581 70,581 70,581 70,581 
Capacity 844 844 844 844 844 844 844 844 
Enrollment 613 666 637 637 632 6S3 672 670 

East Dover (1954 ): 
Square Feet 97,718 97,718 97,718 97,718 97,718 97,718 97,718 97,718 
Capacity 1,182 1,182 1,182 1,182 1,182 1,182 1,182 1,182 
Enrollment 661 689 68S 685 723 770 757 767 

Hooper Avenue (1965): 
Square Feet 89,063 89,063 89,063 89,063 89,063 89,063 89,063 89,063 
Capacity 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 
Enrollment 729 729 726 726 743 7SS 756 723 

Nonh Dover(l956): 
Square Feet 70,492 70,492 70,492 70,492 70,492 70,492 70,492 70,492 
Capacity 855 8SS 8SS 8SS 855 8SS 855 8SS 
Enrollment S24 SS6 S96 S96 607 632 649 667 

Pine Beach (1953): 
Square Feet 58,341 58,341 58,341 58,341 58,341 58,341 58,341 58,341 
Capacity 614 614 614 614 614 614 614 614 
Enrollment 452 442 437 437 450 447 440 466 

Silver Bay (1972): 
Square Feet 112,930 112,930 112,930 112,930 112,930 112,930 112,930 112,930 
Capacity 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 
Enrollment 637 648 611 611 64S 654 662 693 

South Toms River ( 1982): 
Square Feet 58,940 58,940 58,940 58,940 58,940 58,940 58,940 58,940 
Capacity 587 587 587 587 587 587 587 S87 
Enrollment 334 351 352 352 368 357 375 367 

Walnut Street (196S): 
Square Feet 87,663 87,663 87,663 87,663 87,663 87,663 87,663 87,663 
Capacity 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 
Enrollment 787 790 757 757 799 840 843 84S 

Washington Street (1960): 
Square Feet 49,890 49,890 49,890 49,890 49,890 49,890 49,890 49,890 
Capacity 533 S33 S33 533 533 S33 533 533 
Enrollment 417 412 379 379 390 393 385 402 

West Dover(l963): 
Square Feet 56,442 56,442 56,442 56,442 56,442 56,442 56,442 56,442 
Capacity 656 656 656 656 656 656 656 656 
Enrollment 383 394 393 393 390 403 407 407 
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EXHIBIT J-18 
(Page 2 of2) 

TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
SCHOOL BUILDING INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Una11dited 

DISTRICT BUILDINGS 2018 2017 2016 201S 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010• 2009° 

Middle Schools: 
East ( 1962): 

Square Feet 259,829 2S9,829 259,829 259,829 259,829 259,829 259,829 259,829 
Capacity l,S18 1,518 1,518 l,S18 1,518 1,518 1,518 1,518 
Enrollment 1,456 1,368 1,349 1,349 1,426 1,450 1,467 J,S12 

Nonh(l974): 
Square Feet 178,332 178,332 178,332 178,332 178.332 178,332 178,332 178,332 
Capacity 1,610 1,6IO 1,610 1,610 1,610 1,610 1,610 1,610 
Enrollment 1,244 1,265 1,279 1,279 1,335 1,387 1,423 1,412 

South (200S): 
Square Feet 194,382 194,382 194,382 194,382 194,382 194,382 194,382 194,382 
Capacity 1,242 1,242 1,242 1,242 1,242 1,242 1,242 1,242 
Enrollment 1,072 1,083 1,080 1.080 1,044 1,049 l,OS2 l,06S 

Hilth Schools: 
East (1979): 

Square Feet 241,420 241,420 241,420 241,420 241,420 241,420 241,420 241,420 
Capacity 1,980 1,980 1,980 1,980 1,980 1,980 1,980 1,980 
Enrollment 1,409 1,385 1,491 1,491 1,551 1,614 1,606 1,666 

North (1969): 
Square Feet 404,277 404.277 404,277 404,277 404,277 404,277 404,277 404,277 
Capacity 2,421 2,421 2,421 2,421 2,421 2,421 2,421 2,421 
Enrollment 2,101 2,212 2,366 2,366 2,381 2,295 2,210 2,311 

South (19SI): 
Square Feet 172,344 172,344 172,344 172,344 172.344 172,344 172,344 172,344 
Capacity 1,421 1,421 1,421 1,421 1,421 1,421 1,421 1.421 
Enrollment 1,373 1,389 1,394 1,394 1,436 1,427 1,397 1,506 

Other Buildings: 
Central Administration: 

Square Feet 79,417 79,417 79,417 79,417 79,417 79,417 79,417 79,417 
Transponation Compound 

Square Feet 34,800 34,800 34,800 34,800 34,800 34,800 34,800 34,800 
Facilities Compound 

Square Feel 32,325 32,325 32,325 32,325 32,325 32,325 32,325 32,325 

Number of Schools at June 30, 2018: 
Elementllry Schools = 12 
Middle Schools = 3 
Senior High Schools = 3 
Other=- 3 

Source: District Facilities Office. District Records 

Note: Year of original construction is shown in parentheses. Increases in square footage and capacity are the result of 
additions. Enrollment is based on the annual October district count (October 20 I 0), full and shared students on roll 
Source ASSA 
• For 20 IO and prior, the District grouped schools by elementary, middle and high school. For 2011 

and going forward. this information was broken down by individual school. 
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EXHIBIT J-19 
TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 

GENERAL FUND 
SCHEDULE OF REQUIRED MAINTENANCE BY SCHOOL FACILITY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
Unaudited 

SCHOOL 
FACILITIES 2018 2017 2016 201S 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Hi.Rh Schools: 
East $ 295,368 s 363,707 s 269,290 $ 348,805 s 313,760 s 320,434 s 286,299 s 257,878 s 332,722 s S0,893 
North 782,576 478,281 446,710 516,070 509,932 466,800 445,221 423,319 549,600 71,788 
South 216,564 261,994 197,690 264,716 221,601 233,675 2SO,SS4 179,389 232,319 62,349 

lntenncdiate Schools: 
East 337,134 309,351 298,380 329,238 330,S2S 303,214 291,563 260,478 349,560 35,084 
North 235,185 241,971 201,871 238,157 289,648 247,295 222,066 205,757 240,699 35,788 
South 233,514 232,SlO 208,274 232,440 220,012 211,386 214,785 202,992 260,753 14,065 

Elementary Schools: 
Beachwood 85,778 87,227 76,182 86,271 83,985 85,340 78,146 1S,3lS 103,149 12,488 
Cedar Grove 158,608 185,562 142,519 159,389 157,219 146,542 140,367 142,394 188,818 17,864 
Joseph A. Citta 84,363 88,484 77,026 92,973 92,249 105,432 84,021 78,382 139,651 12,058 
East Dover 133,607 134,0SO 112,893 121,165 109,113 109,458 103,931 105,275 136,544 9,401 
Hooper Avenue 107,954 107,183 100,484 112,355 110,407 103,876 108,156 114,434 116,688 24,040 
North Dover 87,831 88,108 79,927 93,513 86,996 81,429 85,764 78,720 89,940 8,082 
Pine Beach 67,572 70,719 60,596 71,768 66,157 66,SIO 64,431 66,679 160,947 20,698 
Silver Bay 132,772 152,421 137,683 148,137 126,846 127,044 120,175 117,101 86,267 10,858 
South Toms River 111,061 74,338 72,114 73,395 71,257 69,387 69,950 6S,13S 144,249 13,815 
Walnut Street 126,329 103,767 121,588 109,624 102,222 98,827 95,540 90,339 75,063 6,694 
Washington Street 59,514 63,256 54,136 61,827 66,450 61,SSO 57,268 52,728 84,839 18,694 
West Dover 72.176 67.1 IS 62.780 68,899 68.281 76,706 69.818 64.120 104,586 IS,904 

Subtotal 3.328.S06 3,ll0.044 2,720.145 3.128.802 3,026,660 2.914,905 2.788,055 2,580,435 3.396.394 440.S63 

Other Facilities 169,150 169.184 153,811 170.323 74.256 149.484 148.916 140,277 221,489 3,121,847 

Grand Total s 3,497,656 s 3,279,228 $ 2,873,956 $ 3,299,125 s J,Ul!! 2Hi s M6U82 s 2,236.221 s 2,22!! 212 s J 612.883 s J S6HI!! 

Source: District Records 
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TOMS RIVER REGIONAL SCHOOL DISTRICT 
INSURANCE SCHEDULE 

Excess General Liability/ Auto Liability 

Excess Workers Compensation 

Property Coverage for Claims Against Fire, Damage or 

JUNE 30, 2018 
Unaudited 

Other Losses, Including boiler & Machinery, Physical Plant 
Structure & Inland Marine 
Premises Environmental 

Professional Liability - Incidental Medical Malpractice 
Underground Storage Tank 
Bonds: 

Commercial Crime/Employee Dishonesty Bond 
Public Employees Faithful Performance 
Position Bond 
Position Bond 

Excess Student Accident 

Source: District Records 

COVERAGE 

$11,000,000/ $25,000,000 

Statutory 

150,000 
2,000,000 / 6,000,000 

I ,000,000/25,000,000 
l ,000,000/3,000,000 

1,000,000 
725,000 
5,000 
5,000 

5,000,000 

EXHIBIT J-20 

DEDUCTIBLE / SIR 

$300,000 

650,000 

100,000 
25,000 

300,000 
25,000 

1,000 
Treasurer 

Business Administrator 
Board Secretary 

25,000 
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Single Audit Section 



WISS 
A Partner to Grow With 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed 

in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

independent Auditors' Report 

Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 

Toms River Regional School District 
Toms River, New Jersey 
County of Ocean 

K-1 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America; audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of 
Education, State of New Jersey; and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the 
financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Toms River Regional School District, in the 
County of Ocean, New Jersey (the "District") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the 
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 15, 2019. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District's 
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performi ng their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion 
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other 
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and the audit 
requirements as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New 
Jersey. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

February 15, 2019 
Livingston, New Jersey 

Scott A. Clelland 
Licensed Public School Accountant 

No. 1049 

WISS & COMPANY, LLP 
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WISS 
A Partner to Grow With 

Report on Compliance For Each Major Federal and State Program and 
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the 

Uniform Guidance and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08 

Independent Auditors' Report 

Honorable President and 
Members of the Board of Education 

Toms River Regional School District 
Toms River, New Jersey 
County of Ocean 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program 

K-2 

We have audited the Toms River Regional School District's, in the County of Ocean, New Jersey 
(the "District") compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the 0MB 
Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could 
have a direct and material effect on each of the District's major federal and state programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. The District's major federal and state programs are identified in the 
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible fo r compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations and the terms 
and conditions of its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal 
and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements 
as prescribed by the Office of School Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; the 
audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance); 
and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State 
Grants and State Aid. Those standards, the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-
08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct 
and material effect on a major federal and state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on 
a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance with those requirements and performing such 
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for major each 
federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the 
District's compliance. 

Opinion on Eacl, Major Federal and State Program 

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control 
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and 
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the District's internal control over compliance 
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and 
state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New 
Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the District's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their 
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal or state program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of 
compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements 
of the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

February 15, 2019 
Livingston, New Jersey 

Scott A. Clelland 
Licensed Public School Accountant 

No. 1049 

IJIAAN <:I" ~ 
WISS & COMPANY, LLP 
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1. General 

Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

K-5 
p.l 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance present the 
activity of all federal awards and state financial assistance of the Toms River Regional School District 
(District). The District is defined in Note 1 to the District's basic financial statements. All federal awards 
and state financial assistance received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and 
state financial assistance passed through other government agencies are included on the schedules of 
expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance. 

2. Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented 
on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the enterprise fund, which 
are presented using the accrual basis of accounting and those recorded in the special revenue fund, which are 
presented using the grant accounting budgetary basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are 
described in Note I to the District's basic financial statements. The information in these schedules are 
presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 200-Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, Single Audit 
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid. Therefore, some amounts presented in 
these schedules may differ from amounts presented, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial 
statements. 

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with amounts reported in the District's basic 
financial statements. The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a 
GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements and schedules (Rsn are presented for the general fund and 
special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is pennitted 
by law or grant agreement to be recognized in the fiscal year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not 
recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made. The general fund is presented in 
the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis of accounting with the exception of the revenue 
recognition of the two last state aid payments in the current year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 
l SA:22-44.2. 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

3. Relationship to Basic Financial Statements (continued) 

K-5 
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( continued) 

For GAAP purposes, those payments are not recognized until the subsequent year due to the state deferral 
and recording of the last state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue fund is-presented in 
the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting budgetary basis, which recognizes encumbrances as 
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special 
revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payments in the current budget year, consistent with NJSA 
I SA:22-44.2. 

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $182,340 for the 
general fund and $208,917 for the special revenue fund. See note to required supplementary 
information for a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting 
for the general and special revenue funds. The adjustment to reconcile from budgetary basis 
accounts receivable to GAAP basis accounts receivable is $241,900 for the special revenue fund. 
This is a result of recognizing encumbrances as expenditures on the budgetary basis but not the 
GAAP basis. Federal and State award revenues are reported in the District's basic financial 
statements on a GAAP basis as follows: 

Federal State Total 

General Fund $ 309,882 $99,327,782 $99,637,664 
Special Revenue Fund 6,944,604 822,541 7,767,145 
Debt Service Fund 349,207 349,207 
Food Service Enterprise Fund 2,179,324 38,487 2,217,811 
Total award revenues $9,433,810 $100,538,017 $ 109,971,827 

4. Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and 
state financial reports. 
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5. Other 

Toms River Regional School District 

Notes to Schedules of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

K-5 
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Revenues and expenditures reported under the Food Donation Program represent current year value received 
and current year distributions, respectively. TPAF Social Security contributions represent the amount 
reimbursed by the State for the employer's share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the 
year ended June 30, 2018. 

The post retirement pension, medical benefits and long-term disability received on-behalf of the District for 
the year ended June 30, 2018 amounted to $22,493,020. Since on-behalf post retirement pension, disability 
insurance and medical benefits are paid by the State directly, these expenditures are not subject to a single 
audit in accordance with New Jersey 0MB Circular 15-08, however, they are required to be reported on the 
Schedule of Expenditures of State Financial Assistance, as directed by the funding agency. 

6. Adjustments 

The adjustments presented on schedule K-3 represent the cancellation of prior year accounts 
receivable and an overpayment received by the District which was utilized to offset current year 
expenditures. 

7. Indirect Costs 

The District did not use the 10% de minim is indirect cost rate. 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of report the auditor issued on whether 
the financial statements audited were prepared 
in accordance with GAAP: 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to the basic financial 
statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major federal programs: 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

Unmodified 

X 

X 

X 

X 

K-6 
p. 1 

No 

None Reported 

No 

No Material weakness(es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Yes 

Yes X None Reported 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major federal 
programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with 2 CFR 200.5 l 6(a)? 

Identification of federal major programs: 

Unmodified 

Yes X 

CFDA Number(s) FAIN Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

84.027 
84.173 

H027Al70100 
Hl73Al70114 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B 
programs: 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

Special Education Cluster: 
I.D.E.A. Part B, Basic Regular 

I.D.E.A. Preschool 

$750,000 

X Yes 

No 

No 
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( continued) 
Toms River Regional School District 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs (continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results (continued) 

State Financial Assistance 

Internal control over major state programs: 

X No Material weakness( es) identified? 

Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Yes 

Yes X None reported 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major state 
programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with NJOMB Circular 15-08? Yes X No 

Identification of major state programs: 

GMIS/Program Number 

495-034-5120-089 
495-034-5120-078 
495-034-5120-084 
495-034-5120-085 
495-034-5120-096 
495-034-5120-098 
495-034-5120-097 
495-034-5 120-101 
495-034-5120-106 

495-034-5094-003 
495-034-5120-014 

Name of State Program or Cluster 
General State Aid Cluster: 

Special Education Categorical Aid 
Equalization Aid 

Security Aid 
Adjustment Aid 

Under Adequacy Aid 
PARCC Readiness Aid 
Per Pupil Growth Aid 

Professional Leaming Community Aid 
Emergency Aid 

Other State Programs: 
Reimbursed TPAF - Social Security 

Transportation Aid 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B 
programs: $2,339,532 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs ( continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Part II - Schedule of Financial Statement Findings 

No compliance or internal control over financial reporting findings noted that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

K-7 
p. 1 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Schedule ofFindings and Questioned Costs (continued) 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

Part III - Schedule of Federal and State Award Findings 
and Questioned Costs 

K-7 
p.2 

This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of 
noncompliance, including questioned costs, related to the audit of major federal and state programs, 
as required by 2 CFR 200 Section 5 I 6(a) and New Jersey Treasury Circular 0MB I 5-08, 
respectively. 

Federal Award Programs 

No compliance or internal control findings noted that are required to be reported in accordance with 
2 CFR 200 Section 516(a). 

State Award Programs 

No compliance or internal control findings noted that are required to be reported in accordance with 
New Jersey Treasury Circular 0MB 15-08. 
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Toms River Regional School District 

Summary Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 

Year ended June 30, 2018 

No prior year findings were noted. 

K-8 
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